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Principal activity

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of GUS plc and did not trade during the year.
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GUS Business Holdings Limited

Balance shest at 31 March 2006

Note 2006 2005
£ £
Current asset
Amounts due from the parent undertaking 2 2
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 5 2 2

For the year ended 31 March 2006 the Company was entitled to exemption under section
243AA(1) of the Companies Act 1985.

Members have not required the Company to obtain an audit for the year ended 31 March
2006 in accordance with section 249B(2) of the Companies Act 1985.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for:

i) ensuring the Company keeps accounting records that comply with section 221 of the
Companies Act 1985; and

i} preparing accounts which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Company at the end of the financial year, and its profit and loss for the financial year,

in accordance with the requirements of section 226 of the Companies Act 1985, and
which otherwise comply with the requirements of the Companies Act relating to
accounts, so far as applicable to the Company.

The financial statements on pages 2 and 3 were approved by the Board on 11 August 2006
and are signed on its_behalf by:

P G Cooper

Director



GUS Business Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2006

Accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
and in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and applicable UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP).

Profit and loss account

The Company has not traded during the year and accordingly no profit and loss
account is presented. Any expenses have been borne by the ultimate parent
undertaking.

Directors’ emoluments

None of the directors received any emoluments from the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2006 (2005 nil).

Subsidiary undertaking

The Company holds the whole of the issued ordinary shares of The BizBox.com
Limited (a dormant company), which is incorporated in Great Britain and registered in
Scotland. Group financial statements are not prepared, as permitted under Section
228 (2) of the Companies Act 1985, as the Company is itself a wholly owned
subsidiary of another company (see note 6).

Called up share capital

2006 2005
£ £
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Allotted and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £1 each 2 2

Uitimate parent undertaking

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking is GUS pic, which is registered in
England and Wales. Copies of its group financial statements can be obtained from
the Secretary, GUS plc, One Stanhope Gate, London, W1K 1AF,
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Reaching consumers |
through the internet s now
a vital part of the Croup's
growth strategy. The Argos
website is the thurd largest
internet reta site in the :
UK and accounts for 12%
of Argas sales. Expernan’s
Interactive websites receive
more Thar 40 milhon
visitors each month,
making Experran one of
the top | 5 Internet
comparies ih the Unied
States based on revenue.




Overview The year under review has seen further major steps in the
transformation of GUS, with significant disposals, acquisitions
and organic investment.
In March 2006, the Board of GUS announced plans for the
demerger of our two remaining businesses, Argos Retail Group
and Experian.
This will enable all our existing shareholders to continue )
to benefit directly from an investment in both these |
attractive businesses.
|
Since january 2000,
CUS has exited from
businestes with low growth
pr low return on assels
such as home shopping.
property investment and
cer financing,
|
Yaar In brief May 05 June Q5 Jury/AugQust 05 Seprember/QOcioper 05
CUS places S0% remaning stace Argos opens 600th store Argos teams up with Help tne trperlan acguires (reoil bureds
17 Lewly Croud Hospites 1o ralie £600.000 i Romand

Homebasy wins TIY Retaiker cf
Experan acquitts LowerlyBlls con the Year Awaro 2005° Exparian acguires CiassesLiA com New Argos aédwerusing camaigr.,
‘Dont shop for it Argos It
Exoerlan acquires the Future Expenan aequiret Bake Hill
Foundaion




Argos Retall Group
GCeneral merchandise and home
enhancement reailing

Argos Retail Croup (ARC) 15 the UKS teading non-
food, non-clothing retailer, With its combination of
major retail brands it delivers choice, value and
convenience through integrated channels of stores,
catalogues, websites and home delivery options.
ARG incorporates;

— Argos - the UK's most successful general
merchandise retailer

— Homebase - one of the UK's leading home
enhancement companies

— ARG Financial Services - providing consumer
financial senvices. including the Argos and
Homebase store cards

ARG leads its markets by leveraging its size and
strength to improve purchasing scate, to share
services and to provide mutu-channel capability
across the business. :

ARG employs 48,000 people in the UK, the
Republic of Ireland and the Far East.

November 05 December Q5

Experian
Information solutions

Experian has a comprehensive understanding of
individuals and markets and helps organisations
to develop and manage customer relationships
by providing information, analysis, decision
management solutions and processing services.

Experian also helps consumers by enabling them
to understand, manage and protect their personal
information, and by providing valuable information
to enable them to make mare informed financial
decisions and purchases.

Experian is a strategic partner for clients across
diverse industries, including financial services,
telecommunications, insurance, retail and catalogue,
automotive, utnities, e-commerce and government.
It has a broader geographic reach and range of
services than any simidar company in its sector.

The company employs }2,600 people in 28 countrres
supporting clients in more than 60 countries,
Experian's operational headquarters are in
Nottingham, UK and Costa Mesa, California.

January/February 06 March/Aor: 06

Expes.an named LUKY
‘National Butiness of the Year'

CUS oemerges remaining
65N stake in Burberry

Eupgrian acqu.res
PriceCrabber.com

CUS annources gemerger of
ARC and [xperlan

Expenan acquires ClarityBlue,
Foctiall and Catalist

Argos wins ‘Onling Reta be* cf the
Year awa-d

CUS5 d.sposes of wehuamp, ity
last nome srcpping bulingts

[xperan’y CreditExpen mamed
‘Best Consume? Senrvice’

«ady Patten retirey from
CUS Board
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for the years ended 31 March 2006 200§
Toral sales £7.9bn {7.8bn
Profit before 1ax for continuing operations £649m {648m
Benchmark profit before 1ax* £829m {910m
Earnings per share 60.2p 59.6p
Benchmark earnings per share 62.3p 62.0p
Dividend per share 31.5p 29.5p

* Benchmark peol.t before tax 15 Oefined a3 proln sefore amort.sation of scquls Hon INKAAGIBIES. STore IMmDArryent charnges. axceptiondl items (1.e Gains or fosses on disposal cemerger
or closure of businesies and po0dwis Impa.sment charges), finanqing fair value remessurements and taxation. 1L Inzludes tne Croug's share 0 a1tociates’ pre-las oroht and the profis

or losses of discontinued operslions up to tae ate of disposal or closure.

— Sales from continuing operations up 9% to -
£7.3bn.

— EBIT from continuing operations up 7% to £745m,
reflecting both record profits at Experian and the

impact of a difficult UK reiail market on ARC. -

— Benchmark PBT down 9% to £829m (2005:
£910m), reflecting the impact of the disposal of
Lews, Burberry and Wehkamp during the year.

— An effective tax rate of 25.6% based on
Benchmark PBT (2005: 26.3%).

Benchmark EPS up 0.3p to 62.3p (2005: 62.0p),
reflecting the lower 1ax rate and the impact of the
share consolidation accompanying the Burberry
demerger in December 2005.

Net debt increased to £1.97bn at 31 March 2006,
up from £1.43bn a year ago, reflecting the cost of
acquisitions (about £820m) and a £100m special
pension contribution, partly funded by strong
operaung cash flow.

Final dividend of 21.9p proposed, making 31.5p
for the full year for each new consolidated CUS
share (2005: 29.5p per old share), Dividend cover
for GUS Is 2.0 times on benchmark EPS of 62.3p,
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Chairman’s statement

Sir Victor Blank
Chairman

CUS has made real progress again this year, both
operationally and strategically. Experian has
delivered a fourth successive year of double-dignt
growth and Argos Retail Croup (ARC), 1n a very
challenging retail environment, has again improved
its market position, under both the Argos and
Homebase brands.

During the course of the year, we continved 1o
nvest in these businesses. We also successfully
completed the sale of our remaining interest in
Lewis Croup; demerged our 65% sharehoiding in
Burberry by distributing our shares to you, the
shareholders; and sold the Wehkamp home
shopping business in the Netherlands.

In March. we announced plans for the demerger of
our two remaining businesses, Argos Retail Group
and Experian, These plans are now well advanced
and the demerger should be completed in October,
subject to shareholder approval. This is the final
step 1n our strategy of building successiul
businesses and enabling shareholders 1o invest
directly in them,

] hope you will agree that we have developed, over
the past six years, some very fine businesses out
of the GUS stable. Experian 15 today a global leader
in providing information solutions 1o organtsauons
and consumers; ARC is the UK's leading general
merchandise reiailer; Burberry is @ major
international luxury brand; and Lewrs Croup is one
of the leading furniture and appliance retailers in
Sauth Africa.

Qur strategy over the course of the last few years
has been to invest in and develop businesses with
above average growth potential and, in this way. to
create value for you. | believe that we have done
that and that the value of your shares in CUS has
grown very significantly since early 2000. In total,
during this time, we have created over i8bn of
sharehglder value,

Despite immense corporate activity during this
period, we have also given close attention to our
proader corporate responsibilities. The Croup
continues 10 be listed in all the major corporate
responsibility indices, including FTSE4Cood and the
Dow jones Clobal Sustainability Index. We have
improved the energy efficiency in our buildings and
increased the amount of waste we recycle; our
ethical audits have gone deeper and wider into our
supply chain, and we have been closely involved
with social topics such as financial awareness and
money management.

The CUS Charltable Trust has also supported
important projects that will leave a permanent
legacy in the charitable sector. For example, the
Trust brought together over 20 prostate cancer
organisations to improve heaith policy in thrs area.
It also facilitated a winming bid by the Ciuzens
Advice Bureau to receive £33 million from the
GCovernment's Financial In¢clusion Fung to provide
more face-to-face cebt advice.




As we finalise our plans for demerger, | would like
to pay a real triaute to the talent, energy and
commitment of everyone at GUS in bringing us 10
such a successful position, and most particularly to
the leadership of John Peace, so ably assisted by
David Tyler, Terry Duddy and Oon Robert. 1 hope
that shareholders will endorse my vate of thanks to
the team who have worked so successfully for us.
At the same ume, | would like to thank all my non-
execulive colleagues on the CUS Board, both past
and preseny, for their considerable input of time
and expertise,

We are very fortunate that the management that
has served us so well over recent years will
continue as the semior team in Expenian and ARG,
Don Robert will be the Chief Executive of Experian
and Paul Brooks the Cheef Financial Officer; Terry
Duddy will be the Chief Executive of ARC and
Richard Ashton the Croup Finance Director.

| am delighted. too, that other members of the CUS
Board will be joining the two businesses 1o provide
further continuity. Oliver Stocken and john Peace
will become the chairmen of ARG and Experian
respectively, and will be jorned 35 nom-executive
directors by john Coombe and Andy Hornby at ARC
and by Sir Alan Rudge and Dawvid Tyler at Experian.

They and their colleagues are all looking forward to
continuing ta develop these businesses and
creating further value as they focus on their
particular marke: places.

So, in what 15 probably my last statement as
Chatrman af CUS, | reiterate my thanks 10
calleagues and 10 you, the shareholders, who have
been so supportive of our efforts over the course
of the last few years. It is the people who work In
our businesses who make the difference between
moderate performance and exceflent performance.
As shareholders, 1 know that you will be well
served by the ongoing teams 1n Experian and ARG
and | thank them for their endeavours and wish
them all good fortune and all success for the future.

hean

Sir Victor Blank
Chairman

23 May 2006
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Our strategy over the course of the last few
years has been to invest in and develop
businesses with above average growth

potential and, in this way, to creaqte value for

shareholders.

Financial summary

Saley froht
2008 2005 2006 2003
12 montss to 11 March im im im im
Argos Retail Croup 5,548 5.313 3486 399.5
Experian 1,725 1,362 416.7 317.0
Central activities (1 {12} 20.2} (21.8)
Continuing operations 7,262 6,663 745.4 694.7
Discontinued operations’ 653 1,124 119 4 239.0
Total 7,915 7.787 864.8 933.7
Net interest (36.3) (23.7)
Benchmark PBT 828.5 910.0
Amontisation of acquisition intangibles (37.Q) (11.6)
Store impairment charges® (12.8) -
Exceprional items 17.5 (3.59)
Fair value remeasurements [2.8) -
793.4 (894.9)
Taxation (198.2) (249.7)
Equity minority interests (25.6) {49.4)
Profit atiributable 1o equity shareholdars 569.6 595.8
Benchmark EPS 62.3p 62.0p
Basic EPS 60.2p 59.6p
Wweightied average number of ordinary shares 946.7m  1.000.'m

The prafit f.gure snown aga 1t each buyiness sbove It earningt before 1aterest and axat on (CBIT),
defined as profit belore interesl. dmestigation cf acquiniton iInangidies s(ore IMdtrMent Crarges.
exleplional Items (Le gaing Of losses ¢ disposdl. semerger o closure of businesies ang grocw.ll
impairment charges). Laancing tar walue remeasurerments and taaaticn E alse incluces the Croup’s

share of associates’ pre tax profit

2CC% profit has been gptated to refiect clearer IFRS Interpratation an Leftain issuet.

' Discorunued operatians mclude Lewis, Burbe sy 4nd Wehkams with orofit in 2606 ub unta

the Caze of dispusal

t Resulung from crearkr RS INterpratation on $10FE iMparment whh af{el1 Homevase
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Business review

The business review on the following pages
provides information an the corporate
chjectives of the Croup and its businesses,
together with a review of our progress
during 2006 and an assessmant of the key
risks and uncertainties that we face.

GUS: corporate objectives

CUS plc is a retail and business services group.
Its activities now comprise general merchandise
retailing through Argos Retail Group and
information and customer relationship
management services through Experian,

GUS Is committed to creating long-term
shareholder value by focusing on businesses with
above average growth potential and establishing
leadership positions in its chosen markets,

Owver the last six years, CUS has established a track
record of creating value for shareholders by
focusing on growth businesses and investing in
their future. Since January 2000, CUS has exited
from low growth or low return on assets
businesses such as home shopping, property
investment and motor vehicle financing. 1t has also
simphfied its structure by disposing of Burberry
(via placings in 2002 and 2003 and a demerger 10
CUS shareholders in December 2005) and Lewis in
South Africa (via placings tn 2004 and 2005).

Over the same period, CUS has invested heavily

in Arges Retail Group (ARGC) and Experian, both
organically and by acquisition. This investment
has largely been funded by the proceeds of the
disposals noted above. As explained later, we have
clear strategies for continued growth at both
Argos Retail Group and Experian, supportied by
investment in operations, infrastructure,
complementary acquisitions and good pecple.

In order to enhance value further, the Board plans
to separate CLUS into two businesses: Argos Retail
Croup and Experian. As discussed later, and
subject to shareholder approval, this will be
achieved by means of a demerger with both
businesses becoming independently listed on the
London Stock Exchange.

The objective of CUS has been to deliver
sustainable returns for all its stakeholders.

Our aim has been to deliver a growth in total
sharenolder return over the medium term (i.e, over
three years} that at least matches the top quartiie
of comparable hsted companies. CUS achieves this
through sustainable growth in sales and profit, by
investing in projects that give returns in excess of
its cost of capital over the medium term. The
Board recognises that these objectives can be
affected in the short term by external economic,
social and poiitical factors, However, it believes
that consistent investment in businesses with
competitive advantage within growth markets will
provide sustainable returns to stakeholders over
the longer term,

Our objective has been to grow dividends for
shareholders broadly in line with earnings, subject
to the investment needs of the business and an
acceptable level of dividend cover. At the same
time, CUS has maintained an appropriate level of
debt funding and serviced this debt properly in the
interests of banks and bondhoiders.

We also aim 1o act responsibly and ethically
towards all of our stakeholders, including our
customers, colleagues, suppliers and business
partners and the communities around us.

Our approach to corporate responsibility 1
summarised later in the Business Review.

We believe that this approach Is assisting GUS
achieving its objectives for shareholder return.




GUS: progress in 2006

The year under review has seen further major
steps in the transformation of CUS, with significant
disposals, acquisitions and organic investment.

In March 2006, the Board of GUS announced plans
for the demerger of our two remaining businesses,
Argos Retail Croup and Experan. This will enable
all our existing shareholcers to continue o benefit
directly from an investment in both these attractive
businesses,

we have during the year completed the demerger
of Burberry and the drsposals of Lewis and
wehkamp, leaving GUS now focused entirely on
Argos Retail Group (ARC) and Expenan. In May
2005, we sold our remaining 50% stake in Lewis,
raising £140m; in January 2006, we sold wehkamp,
our last home shopping business, for £210m; and
in December 2005, we carried out the demerger
of our remaining 65% stake in Burberry Group plc.
Combined, these businesses contributed about
one-quarter of Benchmark PBT in the year to

31 March 2005.

We have invested over £800m in acquiring
businesses during the year. Most of this has been
tn Experian tn areas such as Interactive {including
LowerMyBills.com and PriceCrabber.com), tn
marketing database solutions (ClarityBlue) and
further ¢redit bureaux affiliates. Argos aiso
acquired 33 Index stores at a cast of £44m. All
these acguisitions are trading well.

we have continued to invest both capital and
revenue during the year in ARC and Experian.

At ARC, investments were made in new stores,
warehouses and ranges. Expenan continues to
invest in new products, regions and infrastructure.
Capital expenditure in the year to 31 March 2006
was about £360m for continuing operations -

a level that 1s expected broadly to repeat in the
current year

As announced in March 2006, the Board of

CUS proposes that ARC anc Experian should be
separated by means of a demerger with both
businesses becoming independently listed on the
London Stock Exchange. We have so far provided
the following information:

Timing: We are aiming 10 complete the demerger in
October 2006, subject 2o shareholder approval.

Debt allocatuon: At 31 March 2006, GUS hac net
deb: of £2.0bn. The Board of CUS believes that
Experian, as an independent company, should have
net deb: of about £1.0bn alter the proposed equity
issue. This, it behieves. woulg be consistent with a
BBB+/Baal credit rating. ARG will be aliocated net
debt of about £200m, in addition to its substantial
leasehold oblhigations.
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John Peace
Croup Chief Executive

The year under review has seen further
major steps in the transformation of GUS,
with significant disposals, acquisitions and
organic investment.

New share Issue in Experian: Subject to any major
changes in our financing requirements prior 1o the
demerger, the Board now expects o offer new
shares in Expenan at the time of the demerger.

Dividend policy: The dividend policy of Experian
and ARG is a matter for each Board following the
demerger, However, at this stage, it Is anticipated
that Experlan will have a cover of no less than three
times ana ARC a cover of no less than two times.

Outstanding bonds: As announced on 22 May 2006,
we have proposed cenain amendments to the
terms and conditions of our putstanding bonds.

Tax rates: Subject to any changes in legislation, n
is expected that the effective tax rate based on
Benchmark PBT will be in the region of 30% for ARG
and in the low twenties for Expenan, reflecting its
more international business mix.

Reporting currency: Experian will report in US
dallars post separation, given that the majority of
its profit comes from the US, Nearly two-thirds of
Experian’s EBIT In 2006 was generated by Experian
North Amernica,

Sector classification: It is expected that, following
discussions with the FTSE, ARC will be classified in
the General Retailers sector anc Expenan in the
Suppon Services sector.

We will continue to update the market accordingly
as further decisions are made.
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Business review: Argos Retail Group (ARG)

ARG: overview
Nature of business

Argos Retail Croup (ARC) is the UK’s leading non-
food, non-clothing retailer with sales of £5.5 billion
in 2006, It sells products under two distinctive and
complementary retail formats, Argos and
Homebase, both of which are household names in
the UK, Argos is 2 unique catalogue retailer
recagnised for choice, value and convenience. It
sells general merchandise and products for the
home from over 650 stores, online and over the
telephone. Argos’ internet site, www.argos.co.uk, is
the third largest Internet retail stte in the UK.
Homebase is the UK's second largest DIY retailer
and Is recognised for choice, style and customer
service across the wider home enhancement
market. It has 297 large, oul-of-town stores as well
as 2 growing Internet offering.

ARG’s vision is to be a leading retailing
group that delivers long-term sector-leading
sales and profit growth, by leveraging its
strengths to support its retail businesses -
Argos and Homebase.

Terry Duddy
Chief Executive,
Argos Retail Group

Markets In which ARG operates

ARG operates in the general merchandise and
home enhancement markets in the UK anc the
Republic of Ireland. In the year ended December
2005, the UK general merchandise market and the
home enhancement market each had sales of over
£2% billon, The general merchandise market
consists of jeweliery, toys, spons and leisure,
small domestic appliances, consumer electronics
and large domestic appliances (it exciudes health
and beauty and entertainment, neither of which
ARG operates in). The home enhancement market
consists of housewares, furniture, DIY, kitchens,
bathrooms and bedrooms, garden furniture and
gardening products.

In the combined general merchandise and the

home enhancement market ARG had a market

share of over 10% in 2005 according to market
research studies by GfK, Mintel and verdict,

Growth drivers

ARC's performance will depend on:

~ overalt growth in consumer expenditure;

— growth in the non-food, non-clothing market; and
— ARC’s ability 10 take share in its product markets.

Looking forward, the management team at ARC
believe that, following the current consumer
spending slowdown, ARG product markets should
return 10 more normal levels of growth over the
longer term. Future growth in these markets will
be driven by:

— increasing household formation;
— rising overall household disposable income;
— technology change and development;

— falling prices of necessary items such as food
and clothing leaving more discretionary spend for
consumers 10 spend on home and leisure related
products; and

— rapidly expanding sources of low cost supply
which wlill stimulate further consumer
expendilure across these product markets,




Competitive position

ARC faces compettion from many players in many
different sectors. They can be summarised as:

specialist muluples, such as B&Q in home
improvement, Currys and Comet in consumer
electromics and domes:ic apphances, Woolworths
in toys and wider general merchandise and

H. Samuel in jewellery;

specialist independents, that is regional and iocal
chains selling single product ranges. such as toys
and jewellery. With some exceptions, this area is
generally losing share;

supermarkets, such as Tesco and Asda, who have
been growing share in certain parts of the non-
food, non-clothing market, building on their
regular footfall and increased space given 1o
these ranges; and

online retailers. Although they represen: only a
small share of the non-food, non-cloething market
currently, the growth of PC usage, broadband
penetration and increasing use of Internet
shopping is likely to lead to traditional store-only
retailers losing share over time.

ARC sees its strengths in this competitive
landscape as deriving from its:

strong retail brands with large customer bases;

market leading position, allowing it to operate
with scale;

product market authority driven by wide choice,
availability and service;

purchasing and global sourcing scale and
expertise, driving value for the customer;

integrated multi-channel offering, allowing
customers to shop In store, online or over the
phone, as well as to collect products from store
or have them home-delivered; and

shared infrastructure and logistics expertise,
leveraging such capabilities as home delivery,
supply chain, caialogue production, the financial
services offering as well as other central functions
a2crpss the businesses,
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Homebase 15 the
second largest home
improvement retailer
in the UK, with 297
targe, out-of town
stores as well as a
growing Internet
offering.

Argos Is o unique catalogue retailer recogmised
for choice, value and convenience. it sells general
merchandise products from over 650 stores, as
well as online and over the telephone.
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Business review:

Argos Retail Group

ARC's competitive
position 15
strengthened by 1ts
shared infrastructure
and delivery expertise.

Corporate objectives and strategy

ARC’s vision is to be a leading retailing group that
delivers long-term sector-leading sales and profit
growth, by leveraging its strengths to suppor it
retai! brands - Argos and Homebase. it will achieve
this by developing world-class low cost sourcing
capabilities tenabling ARG to deliver value to
customers across a broad range of products) and
delivering end-to-end customer solutions (giving
customers convenien: ways 1o order, pay for and
obtain goods).

Key initiatives to support this strategy include:

growing market share in targeted large procuct
markets, Civen the flexibility of its formats and
attractive customer proposilions, purchasing scale
and sourctng capability, ARG has an opporiunty
to increase its share in a number of large,
fragmented product markets. These markets
include furniture, electrical goods, home
apphances, fitted kitchens and sports and leisure;

leveraging a shared product pool and capitalising
upon purchasing scale. With UK feadership in
many product markets, experiise in sourcing and
logistics and an increasing product overlap, ARC
expects to continye 1o provide value for money to
customers and improve tts own financial returns;

extending and explaiting multi-channel
leadership. The consumer focused, integrated
approach at Argos that allows ordening and
receip: across muluple channels 15 expected 10
continue to drive sales. This will continue 1o be
leveraged to support Homebase where
appropriate; and

expanding the Argos and Homebase store
networks. Both chains will continued to add new
stores as well as adjust formares such as the size
of stores or the use of mezzanine floors.

Homebase has continued to improve the
shopping experience for i1s customers by raising
in-store standards, improving stock avadabiliy
and offering better customer service.




ARG: progress in 2006

— Sales up 4% to £5.5bn: EBIT of £349m reflects the
difficult UK retail environment, especially in DIY

«.  Both Argos and Homebase outperformed their
markets, benefiting from invesiment in key
strategic initiatives

— Significant operational improvements in 2006,
well executed in both Argos and Homebase

— ARG remains cautious on the outlook for a
recovery in consumer spending

The annual rate of growth in consumer spending In
the UK slowed markedly in the year under review.
Higher interest payments and utility bills, a
moderation in the growth of disposable income
and a more cautious approach 10 borrowing
tinfluenced in particular by a slow housing market)
all combined to subdue spending. This weak
demand, coupled with higher cost inflation for
retailers in areas such as rents, business rates,
wages, wiilities and fuel bills, has adversely
impacted many retailers’ profits including those of
Argos and Homebase, Both businesses have
continucd to manage their costs effectively during
the year, while Investing to strengthen their iong-
term competitive posttions,

In the year under review, ARC has successfully
implemented a significant number of eperational
improvements, These include:

Argos
— roll-out of Argos Extra to all stores in July 2005,

— acquisition, integratton and rebranding of 33
Index stores;

- opening of 32 additional new stares,

— opening of two new warehouses supporting
Argos Direct, Argos Extra and direct importing;

— reorgamisation of siore staffing to serve
customers mare effectively; and

— introduction of a trial of the Argos Home
catalogue in 100 stores.

Homebase
opening of 10 new stores;
— addition of 23 mezzranines;
— national roll-out of Furniture Extra; and

— relocation of about 500 roles in buying,
merchandising and other functions to Milton
Keynes alongside Argos.

Looking forward, ARG remains cautious on the
outlook for a recovery in the rate of growth in
consumer spending and is planning on this basis.
it expects the DIY market in particular to remain
difficult. In the current financial year, underlying
cost inflation in both businesses is likely 10 be
about 4% - the same as 2006. ARC will continue to
wark to mitigate the impact of this through cost
reduction programmes and productivity
improvements while still investing in its key
Initiatives,

ARG has a clear strategy in place to deliver further
share gains. CUS believes that both Argos and
Homebase are well-positioned in their markets -
Argos as a leading multi-channel general
merchandise resailer and Homebase as a strong
brand across the wider home enhancement
market. There are continuing synergies available
from Argos and Homebase working closely
together in areas such as sourcing and supply
chain initiatives, home delivery and product
development,

Argos Retail Group (ARG)
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Sahs EnT
2006 2006 2005

12 months to 31 March im im im im
ATQOS 3,893 3,652 291.0 320.0
Homebase' 1,562 1,580 51.8 113.8
Financial Services 93 1] 6.1 0.2
Sub-total 5.548 5313 348.9 434.0
Argos - charge for OFT fine - : . (6.2}
Homebase - charge for
regrganisation {osts (18.3)
Total 5,548 5,313 348.9 399.5
EBIT margin? 6.3% 8.2%

2005 EBIT kas been ad;usled as & resull of clearer ITRS interpretation now dvaiiable on lease a(counting
and store Impa:rment fince CUS restated 1 resunts under IFRS in June 2305, The result has oeen to

reduce Argos ENIT By £1.2m and Increase Homebase EBIT by £5.2m
' Homebase sakes and EBIT for 12 months (o 28 February

1 Exciudmg one off ¢harges for Argos OFT hne and Homebase reorganisation costy
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Business review: Argos Retail Group

Argos Direct, the
delivery to home
operation, grew sales
by 10% in the year,
representing 22% of
revenue.

Argos: progress in 2006
Operational review

Argos Extra, which offers customers over 17,000
lines compared to around 13,000 previously, was
successfully rolled out to all stores and channels
for both the Autumn/Winter catalogue (launched tn
July 2005) and the Spring/Summer catalogue
(launched in January 2006). Of the 657 stores at
the year end, 191 stocked in the addiuonal ranges,
up from 128 last year. The remaining stores offer
customers the option 1o order-in for later collection
from store or for home delivery. Argos Extra is
trading in line with expectations and is estimated
to have contributed about 2% to total sales growth
in the year.

Looking forward, the emphasis will be on
optimising the product offer and further improving
customer awareness of the extended ranges. After
such major growth in the last year, the number of
catalogue lines in the nex: twelve months is
unhkely to increase significantly.

Argos is also tnalling a separate "Home™ catalogue
which 15 designed to increase ARC's markei-leading
share of the fragmented furniture and home
accessories market. The trial started in March 2006
with a 340-page catalogue avallable in 100 stores.
It offers consumers over 3,000 products from the
existing Argos catalogue presented in a more
aspirational manner,

Argas has further reduced prices for consumers. in
the current Spring/Summer catalogue, prices on re-
inciuded lines are 3% lower than last year. Argos 1s
also commitied to lowering prices during the life of
each catalogue; for example, over 1,800 pnice
reductions were made in the 2005 Autumn/Winter
catalogue. Its “non stop price drop™ campaign
reinforces this message to customers.

Argos continues to be able 10 fund these lower
prices as it delivers further supply chain benefits.
For example, the proportion of directly imported
goods in the current catalogue 1s 32% of sales, up
from 26% last year and 16X three years ago. Direct
importing drives gross margin benefits by lowering
the cost of goods sold, albeit that it requires
additional infrastructure mvestment and costs 10
support the more sophisticated supply ¢hain,

Argos opened 65 stores curing the year, including
the 33 acquired from Index in July 2005. The
mntegration and refiting of the Index stores was
achieved on plan and these stores contributed 2%
1o 10tal sales growth. Of the 65 openings, 10 were
in new towns with the balance being second or
thied stores in existing catchments, At 31 March
2006, Argos operated 657 stores. It expects to
open around 30 stores in the current year.

Argos is benefiting from the growth n online
shopping in the UK, with 12% of its sales now
ordered over the Internet for delivery to home or
for later collection in store, This is a 55% increase
on the previous year and the first time that the
value of orders over the internet has exceeded that
over the phone.

Argos Direct, the dehivery to home operation, grew
sales Dy 10% in the year, representing 22% of
revenue. Self-service kiosks are in over 300 stores
and account for about 10% of sales in those
locations. The new adverusing campaign at Argos
reinforces the massage abou: how convenient it 15
to shop from Argos.




Argos
2006 2005 Change
12 mpnths to 31 March {m im
Sales 3,893 3,652 ™
Total change 7% 8%
Like-for-like change {1%} 3%
ERIT' 291.0 320.0 (9%)
Charge for OFT fine - (16.2)
Total reported 291.0 3038
EBIT margin’ 7.5% 8.8%
At 31 March
Number of stores 657 582
Qf which: Argos Extra stocked-in 191 128

12005 EBIT has been acjusted 33 a result of clearer IFRS wnterpretation now avallable on lease accounting
senca CUS ressated s resulis under (25 an June 2005 The effec has been 10 reouce EBIT by i 2m

1Excluding one-off charge lor the OFT fine

Financial reviaw

Sales in the year 1o 31 March 2006 ncreased by 7%
in total. Of this, 8% came from new space while
like-for-like sales fell by 1% in the year. There were
strong performances from consumer electronics,
bedroom furmiture, textiles and white goods while
jewellery remained weak. Cross margin was in line
with last year,

£BIT in the year was £291m, & £29m dechne on the
previous year excluding the charge for the OFT fine
1ast year. There were £11m of one-off costs
incurred in the first half of the year: £7m
transitional costs relating to the Index stores and
{4 restructuring costs associated with changing
staffing arrangements in-store. Excluding these,
operating cos1s ingreased by 10% year-on-year, of
which underlying cost inflation was about 4%. The
balance reflects the direct costs of higher sales and
further investmen: in areas such as Argos Exira,
new space and infrastructure investment {especially
the new warehouses which are currently running
below full capacity utilisation). These costs have
been partly offset by cost saving initratives,
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The latest
Spring/Summer
edition of the Argos
catalogue has over

17.000 product hnes.

Prices on reancluded
Iines are 3% lower
than last year.
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Business review: Argos Retail Group

Furniture Extra, @
catalogue offering
over 700 lines, has
sigrificantly improved
Homebase's soles
performance in
furniture.

Homebase: progress in 2006
Operational review

The UK DI¥Y market was very challenging during
the year, with weak demand from consumers and
increasing promotional activity from major
competitors, Homebase continued to gain share in
ity market, atthough some of the price reductions
that It pursued, especially in the second half of the
year, did not generate the desired volume uplifts.
As a result, Homebase Intends to pursue a less
agoressive promotional stance in the current year.

Homebase continues to invest (n Initiatives to
differentlate 1:self further from other players. More
range reviews were completed during the year so
that all major product groups have now been
repositioned since the acquisition of Homebase in
December 2002. Homebase has also continued to
improve the shopping experience for its custamers
by raising in-store standards, improving stock
availapility and offering better customer service.

In home enhancement, Furniture Extra, a catalogue
offering over 700 hines, was rolled out 1o all siores
by December 2005, with product displays in 135
stores. This has significantly improved the sales
performance in furniture. A new 200-page home
furnishings catalogue is being trialled in 30 stores
from Easter 2006, while new merchandismg
techniques for textiles, cookshop and home
accessories are currently being trnialled in 11 stores,

Homebase continues 1o add space through new
stores and mezzanine floors, enabling i1 10 serve
new regions and sell new products more
effectively. During the year, Homebase opened a
net ten new stores, bringing the total at 28
February 2006 10 297. In the current year, it plang
& net increase of 15 stores, being a2 mix of
traditional and small store formats.

At the year end, 144 stares had a mezzanine floor,
up from 111 a year ago, Sales uplifts from the
latest mezzanine floors continue 1o be above those
generated by earlier trnals. In the current year,
Homebase plans to add mezzanines to at Jeas:
another ten stores.

Homebase continues (o leverage the ARG
infrastructure. Being part of ARG gives Homebase
considerable advantage over what it could achieve
on its own. For example, the proportion of goods
directly imported now stands at 22%, compared to
8% at acquisition. This growth has been
acceferated by Homebase having access to ARCY
established buying offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai
and Shenzhen. The Homebase website, which was
relaunched in February 2005 using the Argos IT
nfrastructure, is performing well, albeit from a
small base. The relacation of about 500 Homebase
roles to Milton Keynes, where Argos is based, was
completed successfully during the year and is
expected to deliver benefits in 1erms of closer co-
operation throughout ARG,



Homebase
2006 2005 Change
12 months tc 28 Feproary im im
Sales 1,562 1,580 {1%)
Total change (1%) 6%
Like-for-hike change (4%) 3%
EBIT si.8 113.8 (54%)
Charge for reorganmisation costs . {18.3)
Total reported 5.8 95.5
EBIT margin’ 3.3% 7.2%
At 28 February
Number of stores 297 287
OF which: number with mezzanine floor 144 11

12008 £8:T has been adjusted as & resutt of cludrer IFRS intgepretatian now avaiable on store

impairment singe CUS restated sts results under IFRS 1n june 200%. The resit nay been 10 Increase

Homebase EBIT by (5 2m
Jpactuding one-off charge 1o redrgan:sation costs

Financial review

In the year to 28 February 2008, sales at
Homebase fell shghtly in total, outperforming the
DIY market as a whole. New stores contributed 3%
to sales and are trading in ke with plan. tike-for-
Iike sales were down 4% for the year, although this
performance was worse in the latter part of the
period. Despite the difficult economic environment,
total sales of kitchens and furniture saw double-
digit percentage increases, driven by the
investment in Furniture Extra and additional
mezzanines. Core OIY and decoraung sales fell by
mud-single cigit percentages on a hke-for-like basis.
Cross margin for the vear as a whole was in line
with las: year, although down in the second half.

fioth the gross margin and operating cosis as @
percentage of sales at Homebase are significantly
mgher than at Argos. Total COsts increased by 8%
year-an-year, reflecting 4% underlying cost inflation
and a 4% lacrease from investment in areas such as
new stores and mezzarune space. These were only
partly funded by cost savings and productivity
improvements. The cambnned impact of lower
sales, cost inflaiion and investment in new space
Jed 1o a sharp recuction in EBIT to £52m.
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Mezzanine floors have
now been introduced
10 144 Homebase
stores, providing the
space to Showcase a
wide range of
bathrooms, kitchens
and furniture.
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Business review: Argos Retail Group

Self-service kiosks

are now in over 300
Argos stores, reducing
the time it takes

for customers to
purchase goods.

ARG Financial Services:
progress in 2006

The ARG FS gross loan book fell by £30m 10 end
the year at £433m. The dechne refiects the run-off
of personal loan balances resulting from the
decision taken in December 2004 to withdraw from
this very competitive market,

The Argos and Homebase store card balances grew
by 9% to £378m at year-end, primarily due to the
success of ‘buy now pay later’ credit offers, The
Argos store card funded 9% of sales in 2006, with a
1 7% increase in the active card base, The
Homebase card funded 4% of 1ts sales, with growth
in the active base of 33%. Credit offers are
supporting initiatives in the retail businesses such
as the trial of the Home catalogue in Argos and
growing kitchen sales in Homebase,

Modest expansion is expected in the total gross
loan book over the next twelve months, reflecting
continued growth n store cards but a further run-
off in personal loans.

Profit after funding costs increased to £6.1m,
driven by increased interest income from the
growth in the store card loan book, partially offset
by increased provisions for bad debts.

ARG Financial Services (ARG FS)

2006 2095
12 monrhs to 11 March Em im
Sales 91 81

farnings before funding costs 24.0 18.6

Funding costs (17.9) {18.4}

6.1 0.2
At 31 March
Cross loan book 433 463

Number of active store card holders (000s) 1,044 887




ARG: risks and uncertainties

The management 1eam at ARC has identified the
following factors as major potential risks 10 the
successful perfarmance of its business. Some, such
as IT failures, are specific risks that require
specific, identified actions to mitigate their effect.
Others. such as the impact of competition, are
areas addressed through strategic planning and
gperational management processes.

Compestition in the retail industry

ARG operates In highly competitive markets and its
failure to compete effectively could have a matenal
adverse sffect on its results.

Consumer preferences, perception
and spanding

The retall sndustry is subject to changes in
consumer preferences, perceptions and spending
habits. ARC's performance depends on factors
which may affect the level and pauerns of
consumer spencing in the United Kingdom and on
1ts ability to anticipate and respond 1o changes in
consumer preferences.

Poor economic conditions

ARG dersives a substantial proportion of its profits
from the United Kingdom and a material properuon
from the Republic of ireland and 1s therefare sensitive
to fluctuations in the UK and Irish economues.

seasonal fluctuations in sales

ARC's operations are characterised by seasonal
fluctuations in sales requering careful operational
and stock management,

Fallure or interruption in product supply

ARG purchases a substantial proportion of its
products from third-pany product supphers in
Creat Briiain, Europe and the Far East. s
operations may be intecrupted or otherwise
adversely affected by delays of interruptions in the
supply of these products.
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Raw material costs

The price of ARC's products may be significantly
aftfected by the cost of raw materiais used to
produce the product it sells (e.g. oil, plastic, weod
and gotd),

Failure or unavailability of operational
infrastructure

Any failure, interruption ar unavailability of ARC's
operational infrastructure could lead to increased
costs or disruption to supply.

fallura or interruption in information
technology systems

ARG is reliant on its IT systems for the provision of
information regarding most aspects of its
operational activity, Including the sale of goods
through stores, online and over the telephone
together with the management of stock through
the retail chains.

Cost inflation and legislative change

ARG’ operational costs are affected by underlying
cost inflation and legistative and fiscal policy
changes in relation 1o, for example; paper,
packaging, fuel, utilities, rates and wages.

A new advertising
campaign is
reinforcing the
message aboul how
easy it is Lo shop
from Argos.
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Business review: Experian

Experian: overview
MNature of business

Experian s a global leader 1n providing information
solutions 10 organisations and consumers. It helps
orgamsations 1o find, develop and manage
customer relationships by providing information,
decision-making solutions and processing services.
It also helps consumers 1o understand, manage and
protect their personal information and provides
valuable infarmation to help them make more
informed purchasing decisions. Experian sells to
clients in more than 60 countries,

It has four main areas of activity:

~ Credit’ providing data and solutions to help
corporate chents with decssion making for credit
purposes;

— Markeung: providing data and solutions to help
corporate chents with decision making for
marketing purposes;

— Qutsourcing: supporting corporate clients in
process tasks; and

— Interactive: providing consumers with valuable
information to make more informed financial and
purchasing decisions.

Experian’s vision is to use its people, data
and technology to become a necessary
part of every major consumer economy

in the world.

Don Robert
Chief Executive Officer,
Experian Group

Experian's databases are the foundation of its
business, with its solutions {proprietary analytics,
software and systems) providing further vatue for
clients by automating decision making.

Additlonal detailed information on Expenan is
available in "Explaining Experian” which is on the
CUS website, www.gusplc.com.

Markets in which Experian operates

Experian has a widespread and balanced portfolio
by product type, by vertical market servec and by
country served. As examples:

— in the year to 31 March 2006, the breakdown of
sales was Credut (47%), Marketung (25%),
Qutsourcing (8%) and Interactive (20%):

— financial services clients account for 55% of sales,
followed by 12% in direct-to-consumer, | 1% for
retai! and home shopping, 7% from telecomms,
utilities and insurance and the balance from
automotive. government, publishing and media,

- 1 employs over 12,600 people in 2B countries;

— it owns and operates consumer credit bureaux in
12 countries and business credit bureaux in 6
countries; and

— it classifies one billion consumers by socio-
demographic type in 25 countries around
the world.

Experlan as a whole is dependent on the economic
environment in which it operates but its broad
portiolio of products and markets served gives it
some resilience should its major markets weaken.
New products also affect Experians performance,
as does 1ts success in gaining share in its chosen
markets. "Explaiming Experian” details some of the
economic indicators that Expernian moninors.

Growth drivers

Experian is well-positioned to benefit from a
number of key drivers of long-term growth,
including expansion in:

— the direct-to-consumer market and online
advertising;

— consumer credit and card usage;
— multi-channel marketing;
- fraud prevention;

— wvertical markets such as automotive anc
government; and

— emerging markets such as Asia Pacific and
Eastern Europe.



Competitive position

Experian’s competition varies by product and
market, as summarised below:

- Credit information: there are two other national
cansumer credit bureaux in the US (Equifax and
TransUnion), In the UK, Experian is the clear
market leader m consumer credit with mainly
locat competiton elsewhere, Dun & Bradstreet 15
the only global business crecit competitor;

— Credit solutions: the market leader in the US is
Fair Isaac; outside the US, Experian is the major
player. facing mainly fragmented local
competition;

— Marketing: there are some targe competitors in
the US {such as Acxiom and Harte-Hanks} but
competition elsewhere 15 local, fragmented and
often speniaiist; and

— Interactive: Experian is the clear market leader in
selling credit repons direct to consumers ahead
of Equifax, TransUnicn, Fair Isaac and other
specialist providers. The online lead generation '
market is fragmented and Experian has strong
market positions in 1ts areas of operation.
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Experian continues to
invest organically in
1ts businesses, in
areas such as !
product development,
infrastructure and
establishing a
stronger presence in
selected regrons.

Experian’s databases are the foundation of s
business. The data centre in McKinney, Texas
monmtors the pulse of Experian’s North
American information solutions.

Experian is able 1o compete effectively with the
competition 1n any one of its business areas.
However, Its ability to offer more products and
solutions in more countries around the world is a
real competitive advaniage, Expenian can ofter its
clients a one-stop shop for many of therr
information and solutions needs. This is
increasingly important as many of its existing
clients expand into emerging markets and wish to
wie the same tools as they do in their estabbished
markets,

Corporate objectives and strategy

Experian’s vision is 1o use its people, data and
technology to become a necessary par of every
major consumer economy around the world. It has
a clear strategy to capitalise on these
opportunittes by:

— building on Its core businesses, by, for example,
selling additional products into the existing
customer base. A good example s where
financial services chents who have historically
bought credit products from Experian then buy
markeung data and analytics;

— selling new value-added solutions. Experian helps
improve chents’ dectsion-making processes
through the provision of software and analytics.
These solutions are often implemented into the
chients’ processing systems and incorporate
Experian’s data. as well as other informazion; and

— growing by complemeniary acquisitions, which
bring new producis, new gala of entry IN10 new
vertical or regional markets, while leveraging the
core assets of Experian. This often enables
Experian to accelerate the cate of growth of
acquired compantes by sharing expertise across
the business.
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Business review: Experian

Experian’s fraud
detection system,
Hunter, is used
extensively in the
financial services,
nsurance,
telecommunications
and public sector to
screen apphcations
and claims for
potential fraud.

Experian: progress in 2006

- Sales up 27% and profit up 29% for continuing
activities at constant exchange rates

—  Fourth consecutive year of double-digit sales and
profit growth

—  Further EBIT margin advance even after increased
investment in new products, markets and
infrastructure

— Fourth consecutive year of excellent cash
generation, with about 100% of EBIT converted
into operating cash flow

In 2006, sales were up 27% at constant exchange
rates and EBIT was up 29%, demonstrating the
benefits of Experian's portfolio of businesses by
product, by region and by market. There was also a
palance between orgamic growth {which
contributed 10% of the 27% sales increase) and
acquisitions (which contributed 17%},

Expenan was highly cash generative in 2006,
converting all of 1ts EBIT to operating cash flow,
Acqursition spenc in the year was about £775m,
well above the average spend in the three previous
vears. Together, acquisitions made in the last three
financial years are performing ahead of plan.

Experian continued to invest organically n its
businesses during the year, in areas such as new
products, establishing a stronger presence in
selected regions and in its infrastructure, For
example, new products. which contributed
significantly to organic growth, include Triple
Advan:age n Consumer Direct and Hunter 1l the
anti-fraud system which recently won the Queens
Award for Innovation, Experian also recently
faunched Vaniage Score in the US, a new credit
score jointly developed by it and the two other US
national credit reporting companies, which dellvers
for clients and consumers more consistent and
predictive credit scores. In Asia Pacific, Experian
now employs nearly 200 people - an increase of
more than 50% over a year ago. This enables it 1o
serve better both local and multi-national clienis
looking 1o expand into this fast-growing region.

Experian also continued to evolve its portfolio of
businesses by further acquisitions and some
closures. Experian made twe large acguisitions
during the year, both in the interactive business.
LowerMyBills.com, a leading US online generator of
mortgage leads, was acquired for $330m plus
earn-out in May 2005 and PriceCrabbercom, a
leading US provider of online comparison shopping
services, was purchased for $485m in December
2005. Both will benefit from the rapid growth in
Internet usage by consumers and clients, as well
as from the synergies available 1o them from being

Experian has developed China's first consumer
classificahion sysiem, dividing the population into
34 distinct consumer types.




part of Experian in areas such as access 1o data,
analytical tools and chents, Experian also invested
via acquisition in other areas such as database
marketing solutions (ClartyBlue), purchasing more
US credit affiliate bureaux, enabling lending o
small businesses (Baker Hill) and in the retall and
property sectors (Footfall). In addition, Expenian
has recently announced its withdrawal from two
markets which have become increasingly
unatiracuve - incentive marketing websites in the
US (via MetaReward) and large scale account
processing in the UK.

in 2006, Expenan continued to win contracts
across the business, Some of these are from long-
established major ¢lients where Experian i
extending the services it sells. One example 15 the

recently announced multi-year, multi-million pound

contract with HSBC, which will use Expenan’s
decision analytics to support lending decisions
arcund the world. In the US, Limited Brands, a top

ten specialty retailer, extended its relationship with

Experian, awarding it a multi-year, multi-million
dollar contract for an integrated customer and
prospect database across all sales channets. Qther
wins are in recently acquired compames such as
ClarityBlue's three year, multi-million pound
contract to support customer acquisiton at BSkyB.
Finally, Expenan 15 gaining clients in new regions,
such as Japan (JCB and Nicos) and Thailand

(Bank of Siam).

CUS Annual Report 2006 19

Experian has acquired
Footfall, the European
leader in customer
counting technology,
as part of its global
strategy (o acquire
complementary
businesses that
provide new producls,
new data or entry into
new markels.

Experian
Sales ERIT

2006 2005 2006 2005
12 months 10 31 Marth £m im &m fm
Experian North America 1,000 712 265.3 189.0
Experian international 722 620 151.3 [26.6
Total continuing activities 1,722 1,332 416.6 315.6
% growth at constant FX 27% 18% 29% 16%
Discontinued activities 3 30 0.1 1.4
Total reported 1,725 1,362 416.7 317.0
EBIT margin - excluding FARES 22.2% 21.1%
24.2% 23.7%

EBIT margin - including FARES

Notey {+glevant to all Experian taples)

€BIT margin 13 Y0° continuing actvities onby. For SARES. the 20%owned real estate Information assoclate.

txpenah rencits 11y thare of FARES profts bul not sales FARES 13 an integral pan ¢! Expenany businels
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Business review: Experian

Experian's Interactive
business was
strengthened during
the year by two major
acquisttions:
LowerMyBilis.com, a
leading U5 online
generator of mortgoge
leads, and
PriceCrabber.com, a
leading US provider of
online comparison
shopping services.

Experian North America:
progress in 2006

Operational review

Sales from continuing activities increased by 36% in
dollars. Corporate acquisitions generated 23% of
this grawth, with 13% organic growth (H1: 18%; H2:
9%). In the current financial year, the contribution
from acquisitions made to date is expected to
increase sales growth by mid-single digits.

Credit information and Solutions together grew
sales by 14% excluding corporate acquisitions, The
US consumer credit market was very strang during
the year. For example, credit card solicitations
were at an all ume high in calendar year 2005,
with 6 billion offers mailed - up 16% on 2004. This
strong market, which is expected 10 moderate in
the current year, benefited Experian’s core credit
operauons, Expenan also saw good grawth in
value-added products such as triggers and pre-
screen, The FACT Act recovery charge, which
anniversaried from 1 January 2006, contributed 3%
1o sales growth in Credit in the year.

There was double-digit organic growth in business
credit, reflecting sirength in the volume of
business credit reports as well as growth in
decision analytics in this market.

Marketing Information and Solutions together grew
sales by 6% excluding acquisitions. There was
renewed weakness across the direct marketing
industry in the second half. This impacted
Information sales at Experian, especially in the
catatogue and reseller sectors. Marketng Solutions
continued 1o trade well, especially in datanase
solutions and email marketing. The success of
CheetahMail, which sent nearly 11 billion email
messages during the vear, is a good example of
how Experian repositions its portfolio of
businesses to capitalise on high growth marke!s.

Experian Interactive contributed about 35% of sales
in Experian North America tn 2008, up from 22% in
2005, Sales in total more than doubled to §617m,
with significant contributions from businesses
acquired during the year. Excluding acquisitions,
sales increased by 22%. Consumer Direcl saw
further stirong growth of over 30%, driven by more
new members, the success of new products such
as Triple Advantage and increased revenue per
member Sales at MetaReward fell during the
second half of the year. As previcusly announced,
It has closed its incentive marketing websites,
which operate in an increasingly unattractive
market for both consumers and thus clients. These
websites had sales of $70m and EBIT of §5m n
the year 10 31 March 2006.



CUS Annuai Report 2006 21

Financial review
Experian North America

In dollars, sales from continuing activities were

$1,789m, up 36% compared 1o last year. EBIT from 12 manths 18 31 Mavch ““: 29:’: ‘ccn’:’:::“,‘

direct businesses was $412m (2005: $286m), -

giving an improvement 1n EBIT margin of over one Sales

percentage point 10 23.0%. This improvement - Continuing activities 1,000 712 36%

reflects operational ieverage from 1 3% organic « Discontinued activities 2 12 na

sales growth and a favourable mix from strong . Teotal reparted 1,002 724 34%

Credit sales. These factors were stronger n the EBIT

first half of the year than the second halli FACTA- . Direct Business 230.3 154.5 44%

related set-up costs which were in¢urred in the

previous year were recovered during 2006. - FARES 35.0 345 (2%)

Experian North America also invested several - Continuing activities 265.3 189.0 36%

million dollars in the latzer part of the year tn Discontinued activities : (0.1} na

further improving its information infrastructure. -_Tota) reported 265.3 188.9 36%
, . EBIT margin

FARESl. the 20%-owned reai estate information . extluding FARES 23.0% 30, 7%

associate, saw largely unchanged profits year-on- . inciuding FARES 26.5% 26.5%

year at $63m (2005: $64m), reflecting the decline
in the US mortgage refinancing marke? offset by
continuing cost control,

The £/5 exchange rate moved from an average of
$1.85 in the year to March 2005 to $1.79.1n 2006.
This increased reported sales by £33m in the year
and EBIT by £9m,

Experian continued to win major contracts
during the year. Bank of America chose
Experran’s Strategy Management for moking
sophisticated enterprise-wide decisions,
identifying and selecting the most ideal
customers, and managing customer relationships
more effectively.
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Business review:

Experian

Experian is helping the
public sector to
improve the services

it delivers. In the UX,
Experian already
works with over 200
local authorities, as
well as the police and
health service.

Experian International:
_progress in 2006

Operational review

Sales grew by 16% at constant exchange rates, of
which 9% came from acquisitions and 7% was
organic. The full year impact of acquisitions made
to date is expected to increase sales growth by
mid-single digits in 2007. Despite a slowdown in
the growth of UK consumer lending, Experian’s
sales in the UK, which account for about 60% of its
International revenues, still grew by 6% excluding
acquisitions, This reflects the breadth of its
portfolio by product ang veniical market, Organic
growth outside the UK was 8%.

Credit Information and Solutions increased sales by
8% excluding acquisttions, Although there was a
decline 1n demand for products supporting new
consumer credit applications in the UK, this was
countered by strong sales growth in business-to-
business sales, as well as significant growth from a
small base in the government, telecomms and
direct-to-consumer markets. Qutside the UK, ltaly,
Asia Pacific, South Africa and Eastern Europe

Experian International

2006 2005 Crowth at

12 months to 33 March £m Em constant FX
Sales
- Continuing activities 722 620 16%
- Discontinued activities 1 18 na
- Total reported 723 638 13%
EBIT
- Continuing activitias 151.3 126.6 19%

Discontinued activities A 1.5 na
- Total reported 151.4 128.1 | 8%
EBIT margin 241.0% 20.4%

(8T macgia it lor continuing act:vilies ofy

demonstrated double-digit growth in credit,
espenially in value-added decision solutions.

As already announced, with the market in deciine,
Experian will have withdrawn from large scale
credit card and loan account processing in the UK
by Autumn 2009. In the year to 31 March 2006,
sales in UK account processing fell to about £44m
generating EBIT of £20m. With the planned
contraction of the business, profit will decline
further over the next few years, with EBIT in the
year to 31 March 2007 expected to be no more
than haif the 2006 level. The costs of withdrawal,
all of which are cash, will be about £15m, These
will be charged against EBIT in the year to 31
March 2007,

Marketing Information and Solutions grew sales by
5% excluding acquisitions.

As expected, given the UK market background,
there was some slowdown in marketing spend by

___financial services clients. This was_compensated

for by strong growth in CheetahMail, by public
sector wins in QAS and by double-digit growth in
Business Strategies in the UK and elsewhere.

Qutsourcing sales grew by 4% in euros excluding
acquisitions. Experian continued 1o win new
contracts in both the more mature cheque
processing area (now serving all five major French
banks) as well as other back office functions,
including a four year, multi-mlllion euro contract
with Prud‘homales, building and running the
etectoral roll for French work council electiens,

Financial review

Sales for continuing activities at Experian
International increased by 16% at constant
exchange rates. EBIT from continuing activites at
£151.3m increased by 19% at constant rates,
resulting in a 60 basis point improvemen: in the
margin. This reflects operational leverage
throughout the business, desprte re-investment in
new products and reglons, In particular in the
second half, Experian increased 11s revenue
investment in Asia Pacific.



Experian: risks and
uncertainties

The management team at Experian has identified
the following factors as major potential risks to the
successful performance of its business. Some, such
as data security, are specific risks that require
specific, identified actions 1o miugate their effect.
Others, such as the impact of compettion, are
areas addressed through strategic planning and
operational management processes,

Data security

Unauthorised or fraudulent access to consumer
credit data directly from Experian systems or
employees or from third parties is a risk, as is the
loss or potential misuse of consumer data. To
address this, Experian has very rigorous
information security policies and procedures which
are embedded within the operations. Compliance
reviews are continuous and internal audits are

— conducied-regularly.-To-address thesisk of ———.

unauthorised access by third parties, Expenan also
screens new third parties carefully and internal
audit performs targeted audits. The loss and/or
potential misuse of consumer data 1s addressed
through continuec investment un IT security and
greater use of data encryption around the world.

Competition in the credit reporting industry

Experian‘s US business primarily competes with two
national consumer credit reporting compames and
one national business credit reporting company,
which offer credit reporting products that are
similar to those of Expenan. Experian believes that
the principal competitive factors affecting 12 are
price, product quality, customer service and
technelogical tnnovatien,

Client consolidation

There 1s a risk that if cliems consolidate there
could be a resuluing price compression which
would negatively affect Expenan.

Lawsuits

In the US, class actton lawsuits continue 10 be &
significant feature of business hfe. For Experian,
the need 10 defend its position may require
increasing iegal expense and attention of
management.

“legisiation could limit demand for, or increase the
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information systems

Information systems are fundamental to Experian
which therefore protects s data centres against
damage from fire, power loss, telecommunications
failure, naturat disaster, hardware or software
malfunction, computer viruses or other purposeful
interference, Off-site copies of all information
contained in databases are maintained and
Experian runs back up data centres,

Covernment regulations

Concerns about individual privacy and the
collection, distribution and use of information
about individuals have led to substantial
governmental regulation of the credit reporung
industry and some government regulation of the
direct marketing industry 1ogether with self-
regulation by the direct marketing indusiry through
industry bodies. While Experian does not believe
currently that any existing or proposed legislation
will have a material adverse effect on it, fulure
costs of, certain products. To the best of Experian's
knowledge, It 1s in compliance with data protection
registration requirements in the jurisdictions in
which it operates and its registrations are sufficient
for 1ts current purposes. Experian also actively
moniters s collection and use of personal data to
ensure compliance with existing data protection
legislation. In addition, its legal and government
affairs departments work with executive
management 1o adopt strategies to educate
lawmakers and influence the debate where
appropriate.

Experian was named
the UK's National
Business of the Year
for the second time. It
previously won the
award in 2003,




24 CuS Annual Repor 2006

Business review

David Tyler
Croup Finance Director

GUS: financial review
Sales

" Croupsales from  continuing operations grew by 9%

from £6,663m to £7,262m. At constant exchange
rates, sales from continuing operations were 8%
higher than last year.

Profit

Profit before amortisation of acquisition intangibles,
store tmpairment charges, exceptional items,
financing fair value remeasurements and taxaton

- termed benchmark profit - fell by £81m to £829m.
The reduction n benchmark profit is largely a result
of the profit contribution from discontinued
operations falling by £120m in 2006. Return on
sales from cominuing operations based on
benchmark profit, fell from 10.0% tc 9.7% largely as
a result of lower profits at Argos Retail Group and 2
higher interest charge. EBIT from continuing
businesses grew by 7% to £745m because of the
rise in Experian’s profit in the year, parually offset
by a reduction in ARC' profit.

Taxation

The Group’s effective rate of tax for the year was
25.6%. based on benchmark profit. This compares
1o 26.3% last year.

Shareholder return and dividends

Basic earnings per share were 60.2p in the year to
31 March 2006 compared to 59.6p last year.
Benchmark earnings per share increased shghtly to
62.3p from 62.0p last year. The Board has proposed
a final divicend of 21.9p per share. The dividend for
the year as a whole of 31.5p is covered 1.98 times
{from benchmark earnings. Shareholders who have
not bought or sold CUS shares in the last year and
retained the Burberry shares they receivecd at the
tme of the demerger will receive the same dwidend
in total as last year.

Share price and total shareholder return

The share price of CUS ranged from a low of 827p
to a high of 1128p during the financial year,

On 31 March 2006, the mid market price was 1055p,
giving a market capitahsauon of £9.1bn at that date,

Total shareholder return (the increase in the value
of a share Including reinvested dividends) has been
21% p.a. over the five years to 31 March 2006. This
compares favourably with the total shareholder
return for the average FTSE 100 company which
was 1% p.a. over the same period.

Shareholders’ funds

Shareholders' funds amount to £3,131m, an
increase of £76m in the year. This is equivalent to
356p per share compared with 300p last year.

Cash flow and net debt

The Group’s free cash flow before acquisitions and
divestments, dividends, share buybacks and specia)
pension contributlons was £500m, compared with
£374m In 2005. Capital expenditure in 2006 was
£365m, £21m higher than last year. Capital
expenditure was_equivalent to 142% of the

depreciation charge in 2006. Free cash flow was
used to fund acquisitions of £813m, dividends of
£284m and special pension contriputions of £100m,
After proceads from disposals of businesses of
£360m, net cash outflow for the year was £343m.

Net debt on the CUS balance sheet at 31 March
2006 increased by £547m 1o £1,.974m, up from
£1,427m at 31 March 2005,

Acquisitions

Acquisitions amaunted to £819m, most of which
were made by Experian. The largest acquisitions
were LowerMyBills.com which was purchased for
$330m (£213m) in May 2005 and PriceGrabber.com
which was acquired for $485m (£277m) in
December 2005. Other acquisttions made by
Experian duning the year included three US based
affiliate credit bureaux, ClassesUSA, Baker Hill and
Vente in North Amenica and ClantyBlue and Footfall
in the UK. Separately, Argos acquired 33 former
Index stores and the Index brand for £44m from
Littlewoods Limited,

In May 2005 the Group sold its remaining 50%
interest in Lewis Group for proceeds of R1.675m,
which amounted to {140m. In December 2005 the
Croup divested ils remaining 65% stake in Burberry
through a dividend in specie, which was
accompanied by a consolidation of CUS shares o
keep the share price at a comparable level. GUS
shareholders received 305 Burberry shares anc 860
new GUS shares for every 1000 existing CUS shares
held. in January 2006 the Croup sold Wehkamp, the
leading home shopping brand in the Netherlands,
for €320m {£210m}.

Foliowing these disposals, the results of Lews,
Burberry and Wehkamp have been reclassified
as discontinued.



Post balance sheet avent

In May 2003, the Croup disposed of its home
shopping businesses in the UK, Ireland and Sweden,
together with Reality, its logistics and customer care
busness in the UK, Deferred proceeds from this
sale of £140m were received by CUS in April 2006.

Minority interests

Profit attributable 1o equity minority interests in
2006 of £26m relates mainly to the share of profit
attributable to the minonty shareholders of
Burberry ang Lews Croup, Following the demerger
of Burberry and the disposal of Lewis Croup in
2006, the Croup now has negligible minority interests.

Liquidity and funding

The maturity, currency and interest rate profile of
the Croup’s borrowings are shown in Note 27 1o the
financial statements. The maturity profile 1s spread
over the next eight years, 10 avoid excessive
_concentration of re-financing needs,

At 31 March 2006 undrawn committed borrowing
facilities totalled £530m.

Treasury and risk management

The Croup's Treasury function seeks to recuce
exposures to foreign exchange, interest rate and
other financial risks, to ensure sufficent hquidity is
available 10 meet foreseeable needs and to invest
cash assets safely and profitably. [t does not operate
as a profit centre and transacts only in relation to
underlying business requirements. It operates
policies and procedures which are periodically
reviewed and approved by the Board and are subject
to regular Group Internal Audit reviews.

Currency risk management

The Croup's reporied profit can be significantly
affected by currency movements. Approximately
41% of the Croup’s EBIT generated in the year 10 31
March 2006 was earned in currencies other than
sterling. In order 1o reduce the impact of currency
fluctuations on the value of investments in overseas
counines, the Croup has a policy of borrowing in
US dollars and euros, as well as tn sterling, and of
entering into forward foreign exchange contracts in
its key overseas currencies, During the year ended
31 March 2006 the Group continued to enter into
forward foreign exchange contracts to sell the US
dollar and the euro in order 10 hedge a proportign
of the value of 1ts investment in its overseas
businesses. Additionally, the Croup has a policy of
hedging forewgn currency denominated transactions
by entering into forward farergn exchange contracts.

Interest rate risk management

The Croup's interest rale exposure 15 managed by
the use of fixed and floating rate borrowings and by
the use of interest rate swaps to adjust the balance
of fixed and floating rate liabihues. The Croup also
spreads the durauon of s borrowings to smooth
the impact of interes: rate fluctuations.
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Group cash flow

2006 2c03'

for the yeary endad 3! March im Em

Benchmark profit before interest

for continuing operations 746 695

Depreciation 257 230

Capital expenditure {365} (344)
Change in working captial 3 (3)
Operating cash flow 641 578

Interest {33) (34)
Corporation tax (108) (70
Free cash flow 500 374

Acquisitions and divestments 459 i70)
Dividends (284} (281)
Share buy back - CUS - (200
Special pension contribution (o0 76)
Nat cash outflow {343) (253)

“"For@ign’exchang¥ movements™ ™ . = ' 56

Nat debt flow of discontinued operations {204) (30)
Movement in net debt (547) 227)

*2005 asmben have been restated Uncer IFRS, Ihe net cash fiow of disconlinued operanions
1 1hown separately Lin the peaymmate line of the tabal.

Interest costs

Al £36m, interest costs were £13m higher than last
year, reflecting higher net debt levels largety
resulung from the £819m spent on acquisitions
during the year. The reported net interest line
benefits from the recharge to ARC Financial Services
of interest on its loan book (£18m), from £8m of
income from a £140m loan note which did not form
part of net debs, and from a credit to interest of
£8m relating to the excess of the expected return
on pension assets over the (nterest on pension
habilities (2005:12m).

Credit risk

The Croup's exposure to credit nsk is managed by
dealing only with banks and financial institutions
with strong credit ratings, within limits set for each
organisation. Dealing activity is closely controlled
and counter-pany positions are monitored daily.

Exceptional ltams

The only costs treated as exceptional items are
those associated with the disposal, demerger or
closure of businesses. All other restructuring costs
have been charged against EBIT in the divisions in
which they were incurred,

The excepuional items during the year were a profit
on the disposal of Lewis and Burberry shares, a
lass on the disposal of Wehkamp and various

costs relating 1o the Burberry and Croup

demerger projects.
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Other adjustment items

IFRS requires that, on acquisition, specific intangible
assets are identified and recognised separately from
goodwill and then amortised over their useful
economic tives. These include items such as brand
names and customer lists, to which value 15 first
attributed at the ume of acquisition. As permitted
by IFRS, acquisitions prior to | April 2004 have nat
been restated. As it did with goodwill under UK
CAAP the Croup has excluded amortisation of these
acquisition intangibles from its definition of
Benchmark PBT because such a charge is based on
unceriain judgements about their value and
economic hife,

As a result of clearer IFRS interpretation an
impairment reviews, Argos Retail Croup now

. performs store impairment tests on a store by siore

basis and this has led to a store impairment charge
at Homebase of £13m in 2006 (2005:nibh.

An elemens_gf the Group's_denvatives._is_inehgible

for hedge accounting under IFRS. Cains or losses on
these denvatives arising from market movements are
charged or credited to the income statement. In the
year 10 31 March 2006, this amounted to a charge of
£3m (with no comparable credit or charge as the
Croup had previously elected to defer
implementation of 1AS 32 and 39).

Pensions

Followtng the transition to IFRS the consolidated
balance sheet now reflects retirement benefit
assets/obligations. Note 25 to the financial

Exceptional and other adjustment items

2006 2005

12 menths (0 31 March im Im

Exceptional items

Continuing operations;

Costs incurred retating to the Croup separation (4) -

Loss on sale of businesses - 7
(4} (7}

Discontinued operations:

Profit on disposal of Lewis Group 36 24

Loss on disposal of Wehkamp {19) -

Disposal of shares in Burberry 10 3

Costs ncurred relating to the demerger of Burberry (5) -

Loss on disposal of other discontinued operations - (24)
22 3

Total exceptional items 18 (4

Other adjustment items

Continuing operations:

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 37) nn

Homebase store impairment (13) -

Financing fair value remeasurements (3) -

Total other adjustment items (53) an

Total exceptional and other adjustment items {35) (15)

statements shows the assumptions used (ncluding
mortality assumptions) together with the other
disclosures required in accordance with 1A5 ° 9.

The Group’s two UK defined benefit penston schemes
had modest deficits at 31 March 2005. To improve
the funding of these schemes the Croup again made
voluntary special contributions totalling £100m in
March 2006 {(2005:£76m). This helpec to generate a
net surplus for all retirement benefit schemes on an
14519 basis of £18m at 31 March 2006.

international Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has prepared its financial statements under
International Financial Reporting 5tandards for the
year ended 31 March 2006, with comparative
information for the year ended 31 March 200%
restated. The Croup has taken the opuon to defer the
implementation of IAS 32 and IAS 39 on financial
instruments until the year commenong | Apnl 2005,
without restating comparative amounts.,

The kay impacts of the restatement of 2005 on an
IFRS basis are shown in Note 38 to the financial
staternents. The greatest impact on net assets and
profit a1t CUS has come from changes 1o the
accounting treatment of goodwill amortisatior: and
impairment, other intangibles. financial instruments,
share-based remuneration, pension cos!s, tax and
deferred tax.

Use of non-GAAP measuras

CUS has identified certain measures that it beheves
provide additional useful infermation on the
performance of the Croup. This approach is
comparable with that previously used but as the
measures are not defined under IFRS they may not
be directly comparable with other companies’
adjusted measures. The non-CAAP measures are not
intended to be a substitute for, or supenor tg, any
IFRS measures of performance. The non-CAAP
measures identified by the Group are shown in Note
2 1o the financial statements,

Accounting policies and standards

The principal accounting pohicies used by the Group
are shown m Note 37 to the financial staiements.
Detailed indicative disclosures in respect of IFRS on
the reparted position and results for the vear enced
31 March 2005 were issued in June 2005, and are
available on the Company website at
www.gusplc.com/gus/investors/IFRS. A summary of
the impact of IFRS on certain key reported figures is
set out in Note 38 to the financal statements.

Since the issue of the indicative disclosures in respect
of IFRS wn June 20095, Burberry and Wehkamp have
been reclassified as discontinued operations and
some further adjustments have 2eén made as a
result of clearer IFRS interpreiation becoming
available, These further adjusiments relate to store
impairment testing, guaranteed rental uplifts on
leased premises, taxation and acguisition intangitles.
Further information is provided in Note 38 to the
financiat statements.



GUS: risks and uncertainties

The Board of GUS believes that the following
constitute areas that are key to the success of its
business. Some, such as data security in Experlan,
are specific risks that require specific, identified
actions 10 mitigate their impact. Qthers, such as
the impact of changes in the economic
environment, are areas that are addressed through
strategic planning and operational management
processes. The following summarises what it
believes are the key risks to delivering successfully
aganst CUS' corporate objectives.

Economic environment

Changes to the ecgnomic environment ¢an affect
any of its businesses. For example, an improving
economic chmate increases consumer confidence,
and with it the potential for our retail businesses as
well as demand for consumer credit information.
The reverse could also be true.

Staff retention

The success of 1ts business is dependent, 1o a large
extent, upon the efforts and abilities of key
employees, particularly senior staff members. The
policy of CUS 18 to provide senior staff members
with compensation and benefits which are
competitive with other leading companies, as well
as to prowide them with fulfiling opportunites for
their future careers.

Acts of terrorism

following recent events, GUS has placed greater
emphasis on the potential nsks to it posed by acts
of terronism and cther unpredictable catastrophic
svents. It continues to reassess i(s exposure to
these risks and develop disaster recovery plans,

Acquisition strategy

A key element of its strategy is to pursue strategic
acquisitions of compames that have products,
services and technologies or industry
speciaiisations that extend or complement GUS
businesses. The process of integrating acquired
businesses may involve unforeseen difficulues and
may require a disproportonate amount of the time
and attention of management and our financial and
other resources, We use both in-house expertise as
well as that of professional advisors when
undertaking such acquisitions.

Labour relations

Cood relations with empioyees (s essental to the
efficiency and sustainability of ns operatons, This
extends also to those employees of its supphers
and partners. CUS currently requires all supphers to
agree 1o comply with certain “best practice”
guwdehnes developed by the Croup with respect 10
employees and agents,

Business continuity

Plans to maintain business continuity in the event
of potentially disrupzive events are regularly
updated and tested across the Group.
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GUS: corporate responsibility

CUS recognises that society has expectations of
large companies that are to do with taking proper
responsibility for what they do. Failure to recognise
and react 1o these ‘ethical obligations' can lead to
damaging public cnticism, boycotts or other
sanctions.

Those companies, however, that are quick to
vespond to shifts in social attitudes are often beiter
placed to take advantage of new market
opportunities. A company with & positive social
reputation will also benefit from increased
customer and employee loyalty, leading in turn to
advocacy on its behalf from these imporiant
groups.

CUS approach to Corporate Responsibility Is 1o
identify such risks and opportunities through an
understanding of the social context of the Croup’s
businesses, We realise that a large and complex
group like CUS cannot satisfy every concern of
individual stakeholders, so we priontise our
respanse based on the current and future
significance of the issue to the business. Qur
current priorities are:

— labour, environmental and social practices in the
Croup's supply chain;

— providing 2 working environment that is
conducive to the recruitment and retention of the
widest possible range of talented staff;

— protection of consumer privacy and the proper
nandling and use of custemer information;

— provision of a safe and healthy ptace of work;

~ providing products of the appropriate quality,
including responsible product sourcing and
retailing. product safety and reliability;

— serving customers to their complete satisfaction;

— mproving the Croup's environmental
performance, principally our use of energy, the
impact of our transport flee: and our use of bulk
materials such as paper and packaging: and

— developing strong community relationsheps in
support of our business objectives,

Once we have identified an issue we ensure that
accouniabilities are defined, that we have a clear
policy and that we are managing and measuring
our progress. These issues are set out in our full
Corporate Responsibilizy Report, which is published
online at www.guscr.com,



28 CUS Annual Report 2006

Board of directors

Sir Victor Blank (63)
Chaieman

Sur Victor Blank was educated at Stockpor Crammar
School and %t Carhenne College. Ovford He quatihed
2% & 1olnor wen the law firry Ciftorg-Tumer (nOw
Cl:fford Chancel, becomng a partner In 1969 In 1381,
ne maved LMo investment bank.ng with Charterhouse.
becommg Chaimman and Cheef Executive In 1983, He
was 2 drector of The Roval Bank of Scotiand Crows ple
from ‘985 10 1993 He jooned the Board of CU5 . 1993,

Ser VACtDr retired from nvesiment bankmg in 1997,
having become Deputy Chawman of CUS the previous
year. He bacame Chmrman of G5 n 2000 and was
Chairman of Trncy MImor phe until May 2006.

He becare Deputy Charrizn of Uoyds TS8 In Math
2006, becommp Charman In May 2006,

Sr WACIOr 13 3 memDer of the inanc:al Reporting Counct
and of the CouncH of Oxford LAY He chain two
cnarties, Wel'Beng and UJS Hdiel, a3 wel. as 4 Counal
ol Ureversrty College %chool

Sar ViCIOf v AN Honorary FeEow cf the Roval Coliege of
CoResaans and Cynaecologrsts. an Honorary Felow of St
Cahenney College, Oxford. 2 Felgw of the Roval Socwty of
Arts and Compan:on of the Luttute of Management.

Andy Hormby (39}
Non-Execut-ve Director

Andy graduated from Qxiord University. with an
MA In English, belore Joiarng the Boston Consulting
C1oup where ht spent tnree years working
principally on media ang retall propecty From there
he wen? to Harvard Business 3chool and oSipined an
MEA. On nls reiurn Andy Joined Blue Circie, where
from 1993 to 1994 he was Business Deve.opment
Direc1o* ¢f Blue Cucie Home Producty e moved
from there to ASDA where he he!d a numdar of
senio- general managemen: roles v .m.Adting In
h'm becorung Managing D rector of Ceorge, ASDAY
clothing buiness

In November 1999 Andy joined the boarg of Halifax
a5 Chief Exnecut ve. ral fax Reta:l Foilowing the
merger ¢! Bank of Scotland and Halifax I Seplembpe-
2001. he hecame Ch.ef éxecutive of (ne Retal:
Orvision of HBCS plc and on 1 July 2005 was
appointed Chie’ Operating Offer tor HBOS plc.
From | Augus: 20CE. Andy wili be Croun Cruef
Executive o HEDS plc. .

Andy joined the 8oard of CUS In january 2C04.

Johm Paaca (57)
Croug Chial Executive

John Paace joined the Board of CUS In 1997,
oecoming Croup Chief Executrve In January 2000
InJunt 2002, he wat appointed Chairman of
Burbeery Croup pic. 1n advance of s partla. flotanon
by CUS in piy 2002

John Peace joined CUS in 1970 and neld several
serior IT manapement poticny before co-founding
CCNin 1980 This was the company formed by Cu$
10 markat inlormation senaces (o retalrs and other
lending organisations In 1991, ne was apponied
Chiet Execulive of CON. which was by then one of
Europe largest inlormation services companigs.
During the mid-mineties, CCN was combined with &
number of othe' U3 and European businesses to
form a gloBal INfOrTMAtION SErVICES OFgaNILALION
calved Expenan, whh John Peace a3 113 Chief
Executve worldw.od.

Jonn Peace 15 Chairman of the Board of Covernars of
Nottingham Trent Unrversfly, & member of the
Prasigent’s Committee of the CB1 and i Fellow of the
Roval Sotsety of Arts.

Sir Alan Rudge (68}
Non-Executive Director

Sir Alan Ruoge was Deputy Chee! Executive of BT
until Novernoer 1997 and Crarman of WS Atking
wntll March 200;. Me Joined the Board 0! CUS In
1997 and wntll March 2005 was Presigent of CEATEL
Internat.anal BY anc a non-¢ récutive diteCtor on the
Boare of SESA AC. He 13 carnently Charman of the
ERA founcanon Ltd and Pro Chancelior of Surrey
Univers:y S:r Alan 1§ t7¢ semor indapandgent
direzior of CUS.

Sir Alan nas a PhD in E ecir.ca! Engineering and

1% & Felow of the Roval Socwety and the Roval
Acadeny ol Engineering. He 15 2 past President

of 1ae Inat:tution of Electr.cal Engureers and dast
Charrman cof the Engineering anc Phynical Scrences
Researcn Counclh

David Tyler (53)

Croup Finance Director

David Tyler graduated from Camovidge L:nnversity,
where he read Lconomics. in 1974,

He spent the f:rst 11 years of hiy career work:ng for
Unilever in & vanaty of imancial. commerc:a ang
strategi¢ jobs. In 1956 ne poinec County Natwei:
where he worked In senior haancal control roiey
He then warked lor Chrsties International from
1989 to 1996 as Fraance Director and as Pres.deat
of Christie’s Amaenca.

David Tyler has been Croup Hinance Director of
CUS since February 1997, Aside from hig financia!
role. ne a:50 has responsidility for the eevelapment
of Croup ttrategy. He I3 & non-execative airector of
Surberry Croup pic.

He 1s & Fellow of the Chartered 1astitute of
Management Accounidntl and & Member of the
Assoclaton of Corporate Treasurers

Jun Coambsg 611
Mon-Executhes Director

yohn Coombe was educated a: Haderdathers Atxes
Scnool «n £:stree and City af Landon College ™
qualihied a3 a chartered accoJdntant with Dixon
wilson & Co In 1969, pefore taking wp the poi.tion
of Management Accountant at BOC Li¢. Me moved 10
the Charterhause Croup p<in 1973 and pecame
Croup Treasurer belore oe'ng apocinted Finance
Manager of Charter Coniol.0ated plcin 1984

In 1986, John Coombe joined Ciaxo Ho.dings a3
Croup Fingncisl Controller and, 1n 1592, was
appo:nted Finance Director. He continyed 1n This role
thzougn Claxa’ trangformazional mergen with
Welcore and Smahkhine Beecham, Secomng Craet
Financlal Officer of ClaxoSmuthkKhing plc In 2000 He
retired trom ClaxoSm:hKuane In March 2C05

John Coombe ;o ned the Boara o* CUS In Aprll 2003%
nly other DusiRess appoiniments include member of
the Supenasary Board of Siemens AC, noneneCutive
director of HSBC Holaings plc. Charman of nogg
Robiagen plz ana member of the Code Commiitas of
the Pane. on Taxeovers and Mesgers Untl 2C03. ke
was & member of the UK Accounting $tandards
Board Me 13 4’50 & trustee of the Roval Acacemy of
Arts Trust, whare he chairy the aud't commntee,




Tarry Duddy [50)
Chie’ Executrve, Argos Retall Croup

Terry Juddy began his career 3t Letraset in 1578,
inthially 1n personnel managemens and late? in

Brod et management. we joined The Jixons Stores
Croup w1 1984, where he held various commerial
pos tions. !ncluding Sales Direcior of Currys. Product
Marceting Drector of the Dixony Stores Croup and.
latterty, Managing Direcior of ©C World.

Terry Duddy joine¢ CUS In AugJst 1998 as Che!
Exezutve of the newly acguires Argos. becoming )
director of CUS lter that vear n 2060 he wis
appointed Chiel Exgcutive of the Argos Rewll Croup.

Frank Newmad (64 (USA)
hon-Executave Director

Frank Newman, who jomed 1he Boasd of LU n
2001, 45 Coarrman fmenitus of kaniers Trupt
Corporation. having servec a3 13 Chairman ang
Chiet Executrve Clficer from 1995 to *599 i now
serves a3 Chairman of tne Board of Directory and
CED of $menzhen Development Ban'.

Eefore joining Sankers Trusl, Mr Newmdn waj the
Deouty Secretary of the Un.ted Slates Treasury
Departrent. e 1erved 'n the Treasury Department
from eary *993 until lite 1995 As Ceputy
Secretary, M Nawman was the namder two official
and Ch.ef Operating Office’ of the depaniment
Previoushy, M’ Newman spent 3.6 ved't with
BankAmerica SOrporaton where he was Chuel
fraancia’ 9% cer and vice Chairman ol 1he Roard.
Prior to Joining BanikAmera in 1986 ne wat
Execut.ve Vice President anc Cn.af Financial Officer
of wells Fargo Bani.

Mr hNewman 13 2 Sirecto: ©f Dow Jones & {omaany
and Shenzhen Develosmen: Bank He I3 & member of
92 acvisory Doa‘c of Renault and K ssan He 14 alio
a board member ol tnree pathe-purpose
crganisaliont’ the Catnegie 43l 5o<.ety, Cornell
Unrversity Weill Medical College, and MORC (pub.C
pollcy research).

Don Robert 147)
Chut Execunve Officer, Expenan Croup

Den Ropert graduated from Ovegon State Univeryity
with 2 gegree fn Business Adminiiralion. bie began
his careqr with U.S. Bancorp, 2 muftl-state bank
nolding campany. where he held positions of
nereaging responsiblity over LS years. From there
e joined Credeo, Inc,, the nazion’y largest specidhine
cred.t reporting compdny, 83 Presicent, in 1995,
Credco way acqured by First Ameran Corparaton
and over the next 3lx yeass Don Rober held
pesitiony a1 Executive Vice Pres.dent o Mongage
Ong.nauon Se~vices and President of Firsl Amasicany
Consyumer :nlormation and Services Croup.

I 2001, Con Robert jomnec Experan from Fir:
Amencan. becoming Chie! Executive ONlcer of
Experian North Amencs in December 2007. 1n
tebruary 2005%. he ook responsibiuty for Experan
globally as Chse! Exscutive Oficer of Experian Croup.

Don Rober: Jolned the Board of CUS in Aprll 2003
H:i gther Bullness appointmentd Incluat direcior and
compensation commities Chairman of Firgt
Advantage Corparaton, member af the Cnapman
Unwersky Board of Counselors and past Chairman of
the Consumer Datd Industry Association

Cliver Stocken (64)

Non-Executrve Director

After qualthving with Arthur Andersen, Qinetr §t
became a olrector of AWM Rothichild 8 Sons and
subrequentty Managing Drecior of Barclavs Asta'ls
and of Rartlays Merchant Bank tn London.

At the incephion of B7W Hodings in 1986 be was a
member of tae Board. becomung Chief Opefating
Ofcer In 1990 and Later hinance Dirk(10° In Moy
1991 he became Croup Frnance Director, Barclays PLE.
linghing ths roie in Septembar 1999,

Olrver S:cenen was appo-ntd 0 ine Board of CUS In

Apdl 290C and chats the Remunerd:lon Cominse.

~¢ 15 Deputy Chairman of 31 pic and 3 noN-taeCutve

direcror of Standard Charered pK. Pilungicn ple,
<tend Trust pk and Stanhope pIC

Oliver Stocuen It aiso Charman of 1ne Bosrd of
T-usees of the Natural Hisiory Museym, Councll
Weribar and Treasurer of the Roval Col.ege of An:
Treasarer and Member of the Comm.ttee of the MCC,
and Trutiee of the Hen'ey Rover & Rowing Museum
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Directors’ report

The directors present their repart and the audited financia!
statements for the year ended 31 March 2006.

Principal activities and business review

CUS is a retail and business services group. Its activities comprise
general merchandise retailing through Argos Retail Croup and
information and customer relationship management services
through Experian. A review of the results for the year and an
indication of future developments appear on pages 4 to 27.

Research and development investment has been a high prigrity for
the Group in driving growth, particularly in relauon to product
development at Expenian as indicated in the Business Review on
page 16. Research expenditure totafled £3.3m during the year
(2005: £2m) and the amount ¢harged to the Group income
statement in the year was £3.3m (2005: £2m),

Profit and dividends

The Croup income slatement on page 54 shows a profit for the
financial year of £595m (2005: {645m). The directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of 21.9p per ordinary share to be
paid on 4 August 2006 to shareholders on the register on 7 july
2006. An interim dividend of 9.6p per ordinary share was paid on
3 February 2006 giving a total dividend for the year of 31.5p per
new conschidated GUS ordinary share (2005: 29.5p per old CUS
ordinary share). In addition, a distribution of the Group’s shares m
Burberry by dividend in specie was made 10 shareholders on

13 December 2005 (see page 69).

Directors

The names and brographical details of the directors are shown an
pages 28 and 29. Particulars of directors’ remuneration, service
contracts and their interests (n the shares of the Company are
shown in the Report on directors' remuneration and related matters
on pages 40 to S1. There were no changes in the directors’
interests in shares between the end of the financial year and

24 May 2006 except for the exercise of 4,394 options under the
Company’s SAYE share option scheme by each of Sir Victor Blank,
Terry Duddy, Qliver Stocken and David Tyter details of which are set
out on page 47.

Don Robert and John Coombe joined the Board on 1 April 2005.
Lady Patien retired from the Board on 31 January 2006,

The directors retiring by rotation at this year's Annual General
Meeting are Sir Alan Rudge, Oliver Stocken and David Tyler who,
each being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

During the year, the Company maintained liability insurance and
third party indemnification provisions for its directors and officers.

Corporate governance

The Company's stal¢ement on corporate governance 1s set out on
pages 32 to 39.

Acquisitions and disposals

On 18 April 2005 the Group announced that Argos had agreed to
buy 33 Index stores from Littlewoods Limited and this transaction
completed 1n July 2005, The purchase price was £44m.

On 5 May 2005 the Croup announced that Experian had acquired
LowerMyBills.com, a leading online generator of mortgage and
other loan application leads in the US. The purchase price was
$330m, plus a maximum performance related earn-ous of $50m
Over 1wo years.

On 19 May 2005 the Croup announced that it had successfully
completed the offering of its remaining stake in Lewis Croup,
realising proceeds of £140m.

On 28 Ociober 2005 the Croup ann'ounced the disposal of
wehkamp, its home shopping business in the Netherlands, The
business was sold for €320m and the sale was completed in
January 2008,

On 13 December 2005 the Croup successfully demerged its
remaining 65% stake in Burberry to CUS shareholders. This was
accompanied by a consolidation of GUS shares,

On 14 December 2005 the Group announced Expenan had acquired
PriceCrabber.com, a leading provider of online companson
shopping services in the US. The purchase price was $485 million.

The cash cost of other acquisitions, all of which were made by
Experian, amounted to £359m. These included the acquisition of
ClarityBlue, a leading provider in the UK of bespoke marketing
database solutions for major companies (at a purchase price of
£85m ptus a maximum performance refated earn-out of up to £15m
over three years),

Substantial shareholdings

As at 24 May 2006, the Company had been notified of the
following interests in the nominal value of its 1ssued share caprtal:

Percentege
Nomraal of ngming’
value of value of

1nseed share HiLed e
Lapd. cap1al
t %

The Coldman Sachs Croup Inc. 9,681,333 3.9

Legal & Ceneral Investment

Management Limited 9,317,905 3.7

Barclays plc

8.211.,655 33

$ave for the above, no person has reparted any matenal interest of
3 per cent or more or any non-material interest equal 16 or more
than 10 per cent of the nominal value of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Purchase of own shares

At iast year's Annual Ceneral Meeting, authonty was given for the
Company to purchase, in the market, up to 99 miflion of its own
shares, representing approximately 9.9 per cent of its issued
Ordinary share capital. At an Extraordinary Ceneral Meeting held
on 12 December 2005 a new authority was given for the Company
1o purchase, in the market, up to 85,140,000 of its own shares,
representing approximately 9.89 per cent of the Company’
expected issued Ordinary share capital after the share consolidation
that accompanied the Burberry demerger.

The autharily to make market purchases expires at this vear’s
Annual Ceneral Meeung when shareholoers will be askec to give a
similar authority. Details are contained in the accompanying
circular 1o shareholders.

The Company did not make any purchases of its own shares during
the year under review,

Interests in own shares

Details of the Company's interests in 1ts own shares are set out tn
note 30 to the financial statements on page 87.



Donations

The Group’s support for charitable causes is mainly channelled
through the work of the CUS Charitable Trust. The Trust’s income
from the Company in respect of the year ended 31 March 2006 was
£1.1m (2005: £1 4m), In addition to cash contributions, the
Group's employees are encouraged to give their ime and skills for
the benefit of a variety of chanitable causes.

The Croup made no political donations and incurred no items of
political expendiuure.

Employment of disabled persons

Disabled persons, whether registered or not, have equal
opportunities when applying for vacancies, with due regard to their
aptitudes and abilities. In addiuon to complying with legislative
requirements, procedures ensure that disabled employees are fairly
treated and that their training and career development needs are
carefully managed. For those employees becoming disabled during
the caurse of their employment, the Croup 15 supportive, whether
through retraining or redeployment, so as 1o provide an
opportumity for them to remain with the Group.

Employes involvement

The Group is intent on motivating and keeping staff informed on
matters that concern them in the context of their employment and
involve them through local cansultative procedures. Where there
are recognition agreements with trade unions, the consultation
process is established through naugnal and local trade union
representatives and through joint consultation committees.

Information on matters of concern to employees and about the
financial and economic factors affecting the Group's performance is
also disseminated through management channels, conferences,
meetings, publications and internet sites.

Schemes offering share options or the acquisition of shares are
available for most employees. This encourages their contribution
to the Group's performance,

Creditor paymant
For all trade credntors, it 15 Group policy to:-

— Agree and conflirm the terms of payment at the commencement
of business with that supplier,;

— Pay in accordance with any contract agreed with the supplier or
as required by law; and

— Review continually the payment procedures and liaise with
supphiers as a means of eliminating difficulties and maintaming
a good working relationship.

Trade creditors of the Croup at 31 March 2006 were 31 days {2005:

30 days) based on the ratio of Croup trade creditors at the encd of

the year to the amounts invoiced during the year by trade creditors.

The Company has no trade creditors.
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Annual General Mesting

The 88th Annual Ceneral Meeting of the Company will be held at
the Radisson SAS Portman Hotel, 22 Portman Square, London W1H
78C at 11.30am on Wednesday, 19 July 2006, The Notice of
Meeting is included in a separate circular to shareholders which
accompanies this Annual Report. It is also available on the
Company's webslte: www.gusplc.com.

Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated thew
wiltingness to continue in office and a resolution that they be re-
appointed will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting,

By Order of the Board

Cordon Bentley
Secretary

24 May 2006
Registereg Office:
One Stanhope Gate
London

WIK LAF
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Corporate governance

Combined Code

The Board of CUS 15 responsible for the Croup's system of corparate
governance. The Board is committed to good governance and 1o
maintaining the highest standards of integnity in all the Group’s
activities, This statement describes how the Company has applied
the main and supporting principles set out in Section 1 of the
Combined Code on Corparate Covernance published by the
Financial Reporting Council (the "Code’). CUS complied throughout
the year under review with the Code’s provisions except for cenain
formal requirements In relation to the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee which is explained later in this statement,

The Board

At the date of this report, the Board consists of a Chairman, a
Group Chief Executive and eight other directors (three execulive
derectors and five non-executive directors). The names and
biographical details of the directors are shown on pages 28 and 29
of this report. In January 2006, Lady Patten retired from the Board.

The five non-executive directors are all determined by the Board to
be independent in character and judgment and there are no
relationships or circumstances which could affect, or appear to
affect, a non-executive director's judgment. They are appointed for
three-year renewable terms. Sir Alan Rudge 1s the senior
independent director,

The Chairman and the non-executive directors meet, at least
annually, as a group without the executive directors present, At the
conclusion of such meetings, the Chairman withdraws so that,
under the leadership of the senior independent director, the non-
executive directors have the opporiunity to discuss any appropriate
issues and, at least annually, appraise the Chairman’s performance,
taking account of any views expressed by the executive direclors.

The Chairman was appointed chairman of Lloyds T3B Croup pic in
May 2006 and has a numper of pro bono appointments {see page
28). He retired as chairman and as a director of Trinity Mirror plc in
May 2006. Prior to accepting appointment to the board of Lloyds
TSB Croup plc and nomination as chairman, the Chairman discussed
the proposed appointmen: with the Nomination Commuttee. The
Nomination Committee (chaired by the senior independent director)
and the Board also discussed the praposed appointment without
the Chairman being present and were satishied that he would
continue to be able to devote sufficient time to fulfil his role as
Charrman of CUS and be available as needed to carry out his
responsibilities to GUS.

The Board has six scheduled meetings each year and meets more
frequently as required. It met on len ©Ccasions during the year
under review, One of these meetings tock place at Experian in
Notungham and one meeting at the head office of Argos Retall
Croup (ARG) in Milton Keynes, The business conducted at the
acditional unscheduled meetings included finahisauon of the terms
of the Burberry demerger and CUS share consolidation and the
formal approval of an acquisition by Experian and a divestment by
ARG. It 15 inevitable that there will be occasions when
circumstances arise 1o prevent directors from attending meetings.
In such circumstances, the usual practice 15 for the absent director
to review the Board papers and convey any views on specific 15sues
to the Chairman. The time commitment expected of nan-executive
directors is not restricted to Board and Committee meetings. They
are available for consultation on specific issues faling within their
partucular fields of expertise and additional time 13 $pent visiting
the Croup’s businesses and meeting informally with the Chairman
and executive directoss.

There 1s a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the
Board for gccision. The Board establishes overall Croup strategy,
approves the Group’s operating budget and monitors performance
through the receipt of monthly reporis and management accounts.

The approval of acquisitions and divestments, for the mos: part, is
a matter reserved for the Board save that it delegates 1o the Croup
Chief Executive the responsibility for such activities 1o a specified
level of authority. There are authority levels covering capitai
expenditure which can be exercised by the Group Chief Executive
or by the Chairman and Croup Chief Executive jointly. Beyonc these
levels of authority, projects are referred to the Board for approval.
Other matters reserved for the Board include:

— Approval of interim and annual financial statements.
— Approval of the Groups budget.

—  Treasury policies.

~ Internal controls and nsk management.

— Succession planning,

— Corporate responsibillty.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Croup Chief Executlve 15 clearly established, set out in writing and
agreed by the Board. The Croup Chief Executive is responsible for
day to day management with the chief executives of ARC and
Experian being responsible for the performance of each of these
businesses respectively. The Chairman and the Company Secretary
work closely together 1n planning a forward programme of Board
meetings and establishing their agendas. For scheduled Board
meetings, the agenda usually comprises reports from the Croup
Chief Executive, supporied by reports fram the chief executive of
each of ARG and Experian and the Croup Finance Director. The
January meeting focuses on strategy, the March/Apnil meeting deals
with the approval of operating budgets for the coming financial
year, while the May and November meetings cover the approval of
preliminary and intenim financial statements respectively, Members
of senior management below Board level are often invited to make
presentations to the Board and participate in certain aspects of the
strategy review,

The Chairman ensures that the Board is supplied in a timely manner
with information in a form and of a quality 1o enable it to discharge
Its duties. The practice is to have the agenda and supporting
papers in directors’ hands four clear days ahead of each meeting.
Additional infermation is also provided to directors including
monthly managemen: accounts urrespective of whether or not a
Board meeting is scheduled for that month, Arrangements are made
for non-executive directors 10 visii the Croup's businesses 1o see
their operations at first hand and have the opportunity to discuss
them with local management.

There is in place a procecure under which the directors, in
furtherance of their duties, are able to take independent
professional advice, if necessary, at the Company’s expense, The
Company Secretary 15 responsibte for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and all directors have access 1o his advice
and services.

All directors receive induction on joining the Board. A custorused
induction process is conducted for new directors taking into
accoun: their particular expenence and background. This includes
information on the Group and its activities, meetings with semor
management and site visiis. Addittonal training and updates on
particular issues are arranged for directors as appropnate. During
the year under review, briefings were pravided on the new UK
Listing, Disclosure and Prospectus Rules, changes in UK pensions
legislation and UK Company Law reform legislatton. The Company
Secretary is respensiple for adwising the Board on all corporate
governance matters, a responsibility he discharges in par through
his membership of the Corporate Covernance Commuttee.



A formal evaluation of the performance of the Board and iis
committees was conducted during the year under review. This
process was carried out with the advice and assistance of an
independent consultant using a questionnaire. The questionnaire
was designed 10 enabie directors to comment on the functioning of
the Board and board processes, to assess strengths and weaknesses
and to draw out views that may be helpful not only for the
performance of the CUS Boarg but also its successors following the
proposed demerger, The findings were discussed by the Board and
used 10 consider apponunities for improvement, In addnion, the
Audit and Remuneration Committees conducted internal reviews of
their effectiveness using a questionnaire. The responses to the
questionnaires were reviewed and discussed by each Committee
and, where areas for improvement were identifred, actions have
been agreed. Individual appraisals of directors have been
undertaken by the Chairman, In the case of the Chairman, the
appraisal was carned out by the semor independent director.

All directors are subject to re-election by shareholders at the first
opportunity after their appointment and, thereafter, i1n accordance
with the Company's Articles of Association. This ensures
compliance with the Code by praviding that all directors are
required to submit themselves for re-election at least once every
three years. Sir Alan Rudge and Oliver Stocken reure by rotation
this year. As indicated earlier. the non-execuiive directors are
appointed for specified terms. Mr Stocken was appointed to the
Board on 1 April 2000 and. accordingly, he has now completed two
full three year terms of office. Following the performance
evaluauon and individual appraisal referred to earlier, the Charrman
and the Board believe that Sir Alan Rudge and Oliver Stocken
should be re-elected and confirm that the performance of each
conuinues to be effective and to demonstrate commitment to the
role,

The letters of appointment for non-executive directars, including
the Chairman, are avallable for inspection by any person at the
Company's registered office during normal business hours and at
the Annual Ceneral Meeting (for 15 minutes prior to the meeting
and during the meeling).

Board Committees

The Board has appointed a number of committees including the
following principal committees: Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Corporate
Covernance Commitiee, In January 2006, Oliver Stocken was
appointed Chairman of the Remuneration Committes 1n succession
to tady Patten and John Coombe was appointed Chairman of the
Audit Commitiee 1n succession to Oliver Stacken. In order to
ensure that undue relance is not placed on particular individuals,
all independent non-executive ¢irectors serve on the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
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The atiendance of directors at meetings of the Board and the
principal Board Committees was as follows:

Corporace
board hoard Authl REMyngratsor  NOM nalos  Goveraanie
merbar man1ings  Commtise Commiter Co=mrtee Comm lide
Number of meetings
during year 10 H 4 2 2
Sir victor Blank {note 1) 10 - - 2 2
Mr John Peace {note 1} 10 - - 2 2
Mr John Coombe 10 5 8 2 -
Mr Terry Duddy 9 - - - -
Mr Andy Hornby 9 5 3 2 -
Mr Frank Newman g9 3 4 1 -
Mr Don Robert 8 - - - -
Sir Alan Rudge 9 4 6 2 2
Mr QOliver Stocken 9 5 8 2 -

My Dawid Tyler (note 1) 10 - - - -

Former director who
served during the year

tady Patten {Note 2) 5 4 ] i -

Notes:

1. Sir Victor Blank attended four out of five Audit Commitiee
meetings and all Remuneration Commitiee meetings, John
Peace attended all meetings of the Audit Commitiee and
Remuneration Commitiee. David Tyler attended all mectings of
the Audit Committee.

2. Lady Patten retired from the Board on 31 january 2006.
Nomination Committee

The Board has established a2 Nomination Commutiee which leads the
process for Board appointments and makes recommendations 1o
the Board. The members of the Nomination Commitiee are Sir
Victor Blank (Chairman), the five non-executive directors and john
Peace (Croup Chief Executive). Membership of the Committee
remained constant throughout the year under review save for the
retirement of Lady Patten it January 2006, The Committee 15
chaired by the senior ndependent direclor on any matter
concerning the chairmanship of the Company. The Company
Secretary ls the Secretary to the Committee,

The Nomination Committes has written terms of reference covering
the authority delegated to it by the Board. These include the
following duties: 1o review regularly the composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience required) of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes; to give
full consideration to succession planning for directors and other
senior executives; and to identify and nominate, for the approval
of the Board, candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they
arise. The Nomination Commuittee’s terms of reference are available
on reques: and can be viewed on the Company’s website at
www.gusplc.com.

During the period under review the Nomtnation Committee had
responsiblhity for nominaung candidates for appointmens to the
boards of each of ARG and Experian atter the proposed separation
including candidates for the positions of Chairman, Chief Executive
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Corporate governance continued

and Finance Director of each company. These nominations were
subsequently approved by the CUS Board and announced on 28
March 2006,

Before nominating Oliver Stocken and John Peace as candidates for
appointment as Charrman of ARC and Experian respectively, the
Committee evaluated the balance of skills, knowledge and
expenience required for the roles. The Committee gave particular
weight to the need. so far as practicable, 10 ensure stability and
continuity for each of the businesses during the period of transition
and the importance of ensuring that the successful candidates
complemented the skills and experience of the respective Chief
Executives. In the light of these considerations and the quality of
internal candidates, these positions were not openly advertised and
external search cansultants were not mstruCledA

in the case of ARG, Oliver Stocken offered exceptional skills,
knowledge and experience at Board level of a range of FTSE 100
companies and industries. This is complemented by his expertise
as a former Chairman of the GUS Audit Committee and current
Chairman of the CUS Remuneration Committee. The Committee
was satisfied that Mr Stocken's other board appointments and
commitments would not place constraints on his ability to fulfil
properly the role of Chairman of ARC.

In the case of Experian, the Committee considered that John Peace,
with his unrivalled experience of the growth of Experiany
businesses and markets, was an outstanding candidate. There was
the need for the Chairman 1o have the capacity to address
strategically the sigmificant development potential of Experian and
the ability to develop the new company's corporate character and
its values during a period of transison, The Chairman also needed
to have a close working relationship with Experian’s Chief Executive
and its experienced global management team. The appointment of
Mr Peace does not meet fully the independence criteria set out in
the Code but the Committee was strongly of the opinion that his
appointment was in the best interests of the new company and its
shareholders. The Commitiee also recognised the importance of a
strong and experienced senior independent director. The
Commuttee considered that Sir Alan Rudge has the necessary skills
and experience to complement John Peace and Don Robert in their
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive.

The nominations of Terry Duddy as Chief Executive of ARC and Don
Robert as Chief Executive of Experian were made unanimously by
the Committee following the recommendation of the GUS Chairman
and Graup Chief Executive, Mr Duddy and Mr Robert currently
serve on the Board of GUS, have extensive knowledge and
experence of their respective businesses and have demons:rated
their exceptional skills and leadership in their current roles. In the
case of the nominavions of Richard Ashton as Finance Director of
ARC and Paul Brooks as Finance Director of Experian,
recommendations were made to the Commuittee by the CUS
Chairman and Group Chief Executive, Mr Ashton joined ARG as
Finance Dtrector in October 2001, Mr Brooks joined Experian in
April 1999 and, since 2001, has been Experian’s Clobal Chief
Financial Officer.

In nominating John Coombe and Andy Hornby for appointment to
the Board of ARC and Sir Alan Rudge and Dawvid Tyter to the Board
ot Experian, all a5 non-executive directors, the Commuittee
considered that these individuals offered sigruficant knowledge and
experience and an important element of continuity to ARG and
Experian respectively thal would be invaluable during the penod of
transation. The Nomination Committee was particularly pleased
that David Tyler indicated his wilhingness to be considered for
appointment as a non-executive director of Experian. In his current
role over the Jast mine years he has exercised strong indepenoent
oversight over 2 range of diverse businesses and demonstrated
outstanding financial skills and independence of mind in
contributing to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the five independent non-
sxecutive directars: Ofiver Stocken {Chairman), John Coombe, Andy
Hornby, Frank Newman and Sir Alan Rudge. The Chairman and
Croup Chief Executive are nvited to attend Committee meetings
and each attended all Committee meetings in the year under
review. Lady Patten was also a member of the Commitiee until her
retirement from the Board on 31 January 2006, The applicauon of
corporate governance principles in relation to directors’
remuneration is described in the report on directors’ remuneration
and related matters on pages 40to 51.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises five non-executive directors: John
Coombe (Chairman), Andy Hornby, Frank Newman, Sir Alan Rudge
and Qliver Stocken, Lady Patten was also a member of the
Commutiee until her reticement from the Board on 31 January 2006,
The Committee has at least two members possessing what the
Code describes as recent and relevant financial experience. John
Coombe, a charered accountant, was chief financial officer of
ClaxoSmithKline plc prior to joining the Board and the Audil
Committee. Oliver Stocken, a chartered accountant, was group
finance directar of Barclays PLC between 1993 and 1999 and was
Chairman of the Audit Committee from july 2000 until December
2005. The other members of the Commitiee offer a wide range of
experience from positions at the highest level both in the UK and
the US {the directors’ biographical details appear on pages 28 and
29).The Chairman, Group Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director are noremally expected 1o attend Committee meetings and
each attended all meetings in the year under review except for one
meeting in the case of the Chairman.

The main role and responsibilities of the Committee are set out in
written terms of reference which are reviewed annually. They are
available on request and can be viewed at the Company’s website
at www.gusplc.com. As reported last year, during 2005 the
Committee’s terms of reference were amended 1o formally reflect
that in reporting to the Board, the Committee identifies any matters
in respect of which It considers that action or improvement i$
needed and makes recommendations as to the steps to be taken;
and in monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the audit
process, the Committee takes Into consideration relevant UK
professional and regulatory requirements.

The Committee’s principal oversight responsibilities cover internal
control and risk management, internal audnt, external audit
tincluding auditor independence) and financial reporung.

The Committee normally meets at teast four times a year and met
five imes during the year under review (inclucing a nisk
management presentation during a Board vislt to Experian in
Notungham). The external auditors, the Croup Head of Risk
Assurance and the Heads of Internal Audi® of ARC and Experian
generally attend Audit Committee meetings. ln addition. the
Committee meets the external auditors without management
present.

The Audi: Committee has a structured programme [inked 1o the
Group’s financial calendar. During the year under review, the
Committee undertook the following activities:

— Reviewed the Preliminary Announcement/Annual Report and
Finantia) Statements anc the interim Announcement and
considered reports from the external auditors identifying any
accounung or juggmental issues requining 1ts attention;

— Reviewed the statement in the Annual Report on the system of
Internal control;

— Reviewed and approved audit plans for the external anc internal
auditors;



— Considered quarterly reports from the Group Head of Risk
Assurance and Heads of Internal Audit of ARC and Expenian on
the results of internal audin reviews, significant findings.
management audil plans and timeliness of resolution;

~ Reviewed reports on the Group’s risk management process and
risk profile;

— Reviewed, al each scheduled meeting, a report on any materat
lingation involving Croup companies;

— Reviewed presentations on risk and its identification,
management and control in ARG and Expenan with semor
management from these businesses;

- Rewviewed arrangements by which Group employees may, 1n
confidence, raise concerns abou! possible improprieties in
financial reporting or other matters.

One of the primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee is to
make recommendations to the Board in relation 1o the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors. A number of
factors were taken in1e account by the Commitiee 1n assessing
whether to recommend the external auditors for re-appaimiment.
These included:

~ The quality of reports provided to the Audit Committee and the
Board and the quality of advice given;

— The level of understanding demonstrated of the Group’s
husinesses ang 115 sectors;

— The objectivity of the external auditors’ views on the controls
around the Group and their ability to co-ordinate a global audit
working to tight deadlines.

During the year under review, the Committee assessed the
effectiveness of the external audit process covering all aspects of
the audis service provided by the Company's external auditors. The
Committee also reviewed a report on the external auditars’ own
quality control procedures.

The Committee recognises that auditor independence is an
essential part of the audit framework and the assurance it provides,
Non-audit fees pard to the Company's auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, in respect of the year under review
excaeded the audit fee and included fees relaung to acquisitions,
the Burberry demerger and GUS share consohdation and
preparatory work in connection with the proposed demerger of ARG
and Experian. The Committee has established control processes to
safeguard the objectivity and independence of the external auditors
and to ensure that the independence of the audit work undertaken
by the external auditors Is not compromised.

The Committee has established a policy covering the type of non-
audit work that can be assigned (o the external auditors. The
auditars may only provide such services provided that such advice
does not conflict with their statutory responsibilities and ethical
guidance. These services are:

. Further assurance services - where the external auditors’ deep
knowledge of the Croup’s affairs means that they may be best
placed to carry out such work, This may include, but 15 not
restricted 10, shareholder and other cicculars, regulatory reports
and work in connection with acquisitions and divestments.

— Taxation services - where the external auditors’ knowledge of
the Croup’s a¥airs may provide significant advantages which
other parties would not have. Where this 15 not the case. the
work IS putl out 10 lencer.

— Ceneral - 1n other circums:ances, the external auditors may
provide services, provided that proposed assignments are put
out to tender and pecisions to award work are taken on the
basis of demonstrable competence and cost effectivensss.
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However, certain areas of work are specifically prohibitec
including work refated to accounting records and financial
statements that will ulumately be subject to external audit and
management of, or significant involvement in, internal audi
services.

The Audit Committee Chairman's pre-approval is required before the
Company uses non-audit services that exceed financial hmits set
put in the polity.

The Commuttee receives half-yearly repons providing details of
assignments and related fees carnec out by the exiernal auditors in
addition to their normal work. Fees in respect of such assignments
carned out in the year under review were:

fm
8 Further assurance services 4
® Taxation services 3

Corporate Covernance Committee

To assist in its monitoring of corporate governance 1ssues, the
Board has established a Corporate Covernance Committee with
written terms of reference covering the authority delegated oy the
Board. These include keeping under review all legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments that might affect the
Company's operations and making recommendations to the Board in
relation 0 them. The members of the Corporate Covernance
Committee are Sir Victor Blank, Joha Peace. Sir Alan Rudge and
Cordon Bentley, the Company Secretary. The Committee met on two
occasions during the year under review.

Accountability and Audit

The Board acknowledges that It is responsible for the Croup’s
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such
a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the rnisk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can provide reascnable,
but not absolute, assurance against matenial misstatement or loss.
The Board reviews annually the effectiveness of the key procedures
which have been established to provide internal control and has
done 5o in respect of the year under review.

The Board confirms that there ts an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Croup
including those risks relating 10 social, environmenial and ethical
matters. This process was in place throughout the year under
review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Repor: and
meets the requirements of the guidance entitled “Internal Control:
Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code” 1ssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and wales in 1999.
The Audit Commitiee has kept under review the effectiveness of
this system of internal control and has reported regularly 10 the
Board.

The key procedures, which operated throughout the year, were as
follows:

Risk assessment:

— The Croup set out its objectives clearly as part of its medium
term planning process. These objectives were then incorporated
as part of the budgeting and planning cycle ano supported by
the use of both financial anc non-financial key performance
indicators.

— Semior management from ARC and Expenan made presentations

on risk 1o the Audit Commuitee which reporteo regularly to the
Board on the risks facing the Croup’s businesses.
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— The detailed assessment of strategic risks Is delegated to the
Croup Chief Executive. His review was carried out as pan of the
annual budgeting and the manthly reporting and re-forecasting
cycles.

—  The Audit Committee has delegated responsibility from the
Board for considering operational, financial and comphance
risks on a regular basis and received its annual report on the
controls over these risks. This included risks ansing from social,
environmental and ethical matters.

Control envirecnment and control activities;

— The Group consists of two major trading dwvisions, ARG and
Experian each with its own management and control structures.

—  The Croup has established procedures for delegated authonty
which ensure that decisions that are significant, either because
of the value or the impact on ather parts of the Croup. are
taken at an appropriate level,

— The Croup has impiemented appropriate strategies 10 deal with
each significant risk that has been identified. These sirategies
include internal controls, insurance and specialised treasury
instruments.

—  The Group sets out principles, policies and standards to be
adhered 10 by ARC and Expenan. These include risk
identification, management and reporting standards, ethical
principles and practice, accountng policy, treasury policy and
policy on fraud and whistleblowing. The divisions operate
within this framework under their own policies and procedures
laid down in orgamisation and authority manuals.

iInformation and communication:

- The Croup has a comprehensive system of budgetary control
including monthly performance reviews for each major
business. These reviews are at a detailed level within ARC and
Experian and at a high level for the Board.

— ©On a monthly basis, the achievement of business objectives,
both financial and non-financial, was assessed using a range of
performance indicators. These indicators were regularly
reviewed to ensure that they remain relevant and reliable.

— The Croup had whistieblowing procedures n place for
employees to repon suspected improprieties.

Monitaring:

—~ A range of procedures was used to monitor the effective
application of internal control in the Croup, including
managemen: assurance through confirmation of compliance
with standards. anc independent assurance through internal
audil reviews and review by specialist third parues.

—  The tnternal audit department’s responsibilities incfude reporung
to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of internal control
systems facusing on those areas considered to be of greatest
risk to the Group.

— Follow-up processes were used to ensure there was an
appropriate response to changes and developments in risks and
the ¢control environment.

Relations with institutional shareholders

The Company recognises the importance of communicatuing with its
shareholéers and does this through its Annual and Intenm Reports,
at the Annual Ceneral Meeting and through the processes described
below.

Although maost sharehoider contact is with the Croup Chief
Executive and the Group Finance Director. supported by
management specialising in investor relations, it is the

responsibility of the Board as a whole to ensure that a satsfaciory
dialague with shareholders takes place.

At each of its scheduled Board meetings, the Board reviews a
summary report of all importan: or relevant issues raised by
shareholders during the course of meetings and discussions with
them. Additionally, the Board (and in particular, the non-executive
directors) obtains an independent insight into the views of major
shareholders by annually commissioning research from a third party
adviser across a balanced sample of CUS shareholders. The laiter
typically control some 20 to 30 per cent of the Company's i1ssued
share capital. The findings of the research are presented to the Board
by the third party adviser,

Through these processes, the Board 15 kept abreast of key issues.
There 15 also a direct ine of communication to the Chairman
available to shareholders particularly if there are issues of concern,
whether about performance, sirategy or governance. During the year,
the Chairman wrote 1o the company’s largest shareholders
emphasising the importance the Board attaches to open
communication and confirming his availability to meet with them,
The Chairman alse confirmed the availability of Sir Alan Ruoge, as
senior inoependent director, should shareholders have concerns
which cantact through the normal channels of the Chairman, the
Croup Chief Executive and the Croup Finance Director had failed to
resolve or for which such comtact was inappropriate. Shareholders
were also offered the opportunity to meet the Company's nan-
executive directors.

Shareholders who do not support a particular AGM resolution do not
always seek engagement with the Company to explain their actions
or request further information. The Company is keen to understand
their reasons for the lack of supporn and 10 have a dialogue with
sharehplders on these issues. [ts policy. therefore, inscfar as is
practicable, 15 to seek engagement with shareholders on such 1ssues.,

Directors, including the Chairmen of the Audn and Remuneration
Commitiees, attend the Annual Ceneral Meeting and are available to
answer shareholders’ questions, Voting at the Annual Ceneral
Meeting is by way of a show of hands by members present at the
meeting unless a poll is validly called. Following each vote on a
show of hands, unless a poll is validly called. the level of proxies
lodged on each resolution, the balance for and against the resolution
and the number of abstentions is displayed. The results of voting at
the Annual Ceneral Meeting are also added to the Company's website
as soon as possible after each meeting.

Corperate Responsibility

At CUS we have interpreted Corporate Responsibility {CR) to mean
taking due regard of society’s expectations of large compamies:
expeciations which seem 1o be for steadily higher standards of
conduct and for the Company to take increased responsibility for the
direct and indirect effects of its operations. Our understanding can
be set out as follows:

- The principal duty of the Croup is 10 maximise return to 11s
shareholders but it must do 30 in a manner cansistent with legal
and ethical norms in the societies that it operates within, These
norms lead to a set of explicit and ymplicit ethical obligauons for
the Company.

~ Failure o recognise apprapriate ethical obligations can lead to
sanctions against the Company that will camage its performance
or assets. This is not judged 1o be in the interests of
shareholders.

— Companies that are guick to respond to shifts in social atutudes
are ofien better placed to take advantage of new markets and
opportunities as they anse. A company with a positive socal
reputation will also benefi; from increased customer and
employee loyalty. leading 1n turn to advocacy on its behalf from
these impartant groups.



— An important slement of the management of CR is therefore its
denufication of nsks and opportunities arising from a more
holistic understanding of the social context of the Croup's
businesses than might otherwise have been the case.

— A large and complex group like the CUS Group cannot satisfy
every individual stakehalder on every one of their concerns.
Therefore, CUS seeks to prioritise its response based on the
curren: and likely future significance of the issue to the
business.

We therefore concenirate on ensuring compliance with the exphcit
norms (requlations, laws etc), but also include impircit norms and
the possible sanciions in1o our management of risk, and constantly
scan the horizon for significant changes. This strategy 15 illustrated
in the diagram below:
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CUS has icentified eigh: significant corporate responsibilities as its
priorities: social and environmental topics that significantly affect
our business. These have been compared against the contlusians
of other commentators and stakeholders to ensure consistency with
wider opinion.

To meet these responsibilities, CUS has set out a number of CR
principles - broad statemen:s of intent encapsulating our
philosophy on CR. These are intended to underpin and provide
direction for the group busingsses

Supply chain

— Responsibility: improving labour, environmenta!l and social
practices in the Group’s supply chain.

— Statement of intent: We care about human rights in our own
workplace anc want to be sure that our suppliers and business
partners demonstrate simuar concern, We make these
organisations aware of our requirements and take all reasonable
steps to ensure they are met,

Employment practices

— Responsibility: Providing a working environment that s
conducive to the recruitment and retention of the widest
possible range of :alented staff.

— Responsioility: Provision of a safe and healthy place of work,

— Statement of intent: We are committed o high standards of
employmen? practice and wish to be recognised as a good
employer. We aim to reward people fairly and to provide
equality of opportunity, personal development and training, and
a safe and healthy workplace.
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Customers

— Responsibility: Protection of consumer privacy and the proper
handling and use of customer information,

— Responsibllity: Providing products of the appropriate qualny,
including responsibie product sourcing and retailing, product
safety and reliability.

— Responsibility: Serving customers 10 their complete
satisfaction,

— Statement of intent: We believe we serve the best interests of
our customers by recognising them as individuals. We are
committed to responding to their needs, provicing what they
want, respecting their privacy and making every effort to earn
their trust.

Environment

— Responsibility: improving the Croup’s environmental
performance, principally our use of energy, the impact of our
transport fleet and our use of bulk matenals such as paper and
packaging.

- Statement of intent: In CUS, we do not handle toxic substances
or manage industnal processes. Nevertheless, CUS is one of the
largest companies in the UK and 11 has a responsibility to
conslder its impact upon the environment. We are committed to
continuous improvement in gur environmental performance,
parucularly through minimising waste, increasing energy
efficiency and reducing cur consumption of materials.

Community refations

~ Responsibility: Developing strong community relationships in
support of our business cbjectives.

— Statement of intent: We value our relationships with the
community around us and believe that thriving businesses
depend upon thriving communities. Qur community
programmes are therefore rooted in our business strategy and
are an important management responsibility,

Managing our responsibilities

— Statement of intent; We are determined to stay abreast of
society’s expectations in social responsibility and 1o implement
change enthusiastically, We will listen hare to our stakeholders
and report honestly on our actions and progress.

— Statement of intent: We know that we can learn from other
companies, as well as from the many examples of good practice
within our own organisation. We will benchmark our
performance, both externally and internalty, using quantifiable
performance indicators.

~ Statement of intent: We believe that good corporate citizenship
ultimately resides in the hearts and minds of our people. Qur
aim 15 10 ensure that these wider social responsibilities
influence the way we manage, reward and develop our people
in order to become part of our culture.

As far as possibie, CUS seeks to integrate the understanding and
control of these issues in its mainstream business practice. The
Croup has a number of policies, procedures and verification
systems in place to underpin ity management in this area. These
are aescribed below, following the disclosure guidelines of the
Association of British Insurers (ABI), which refer to socal, ethical
and environmental mazters (SEE) in place of the term CR.

With regard to the Board

— The Board takes regular account of the significance of social,
environmental and ethical matters 16 the businesses of the
Company. The responsibility for such matters lies with the
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Company Secretary who ensures that they feature regularly on
the Board’s agenda. The Corporate Coverpance Committee also
keeps under review the Croup’s policies in relation to CR and
external stakeholders’ views on CR issues. The Company
Secratafy is supparted in this work by 2 CR group which meets
under his chairmanship and which draws on staff with relevant
expertise from across all of the Croup’s businesses. 1t includes
experts in communication, risk management, internal audit,
community affairs, consumer rights and the environment. It is
supported by external advisers.

There is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant nisks faced by the Croup. This process
includes the identification and assessment of the significant
nisks to the Campany’s short and long term value arising from
SEE matters, as well as the opportunities 10 enhance value that
may arise from an appropriate response.

The Board receives adequate information to make this
assessment and, in this context, reference should be made to
the key procedures described earlier in the section on
accountability and audit, Account is taken of SEE matters in any
training programmes deemed appropriate on the appointment
of new directors.

WIith regard to policies, procedures and verification

The Board has identified supply chain issues as an area of
potential nisk that might significantly affect the Company's short
and long term value. CUS has substantial buying power, giving
it some degree of responsibility for the actions of the suppliers
with which it deals. CUS takes seriously i1s own social
responsibility and seeks to guard against the risk to 1its
reputation through a potential association with undesirable
practices. To this end, the Board has approved a set of
Principies that merchandise suppliers and business partners are
asked to endorse. These are set out in more detail in the
separately published CR Report. Third party audit programmes
are now in place in ARG, with merchandise suppliers and
business partners being selected for audit based on risk and
significance to the bustness. The Experian supply base presents,
in general, a much lower risk of social and labour concerns.

The Croup has a range of policies and procedures covering the
other CR issues identified above which are described in the
separately published CR Report.

The Company's policies and procedures for managing risks to
short and long term value ansing from SEE matters are as
described earlier in the sectuion on accountability and audit,

An impartant aspect of the Company's SEE procedures is that
they should be subject to verification. Internal audits covering
CR areas are undertaken on an annual basis, either dwectly
sponsored by the CR Croup or undertaken as pan of the general
audit assurance plan, In the year under review, the audits
included data protection reviews, health and safety compliance,
HR compliance, reviews of supplier sustainability and an audit
covering the waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment {"WEEE")
legislation, as well as a number of audits aimed at providing
assurance over our ability to serve customers to their complete
satisfaction.

External verlfication 15 provided by Acona, a CR consultancy
practice. Partners from Acona advise CUS on matters relaung 10
CR. including taking part in the CR group and CR reporung
activity. Specifically with regard to CR reporting, Acona reviews
data collection systems and examines the data for completeness
and accuracy. It alsa verifies that all claims in the report can be
supported by evidence. The conclusions from Acona's work are
availahle i full in the separately published CR Repori.

Performance highlights

A detaiied review of the Croup’s performance against its principal
CR responslibilities can be found in the CR Report, but imporiant
developments during the year under review included:

— Experian Employee Health {North America): Experian in North
America is seeing the benefits of its HealthMatiers programme
which aims to improve employee health and also to help lower
the company's overall health care costs. 78% of employees took
the health assessment and most have signed up for health
improvement programs. At December 2005, 326 employees
had increased their exercise to at least three times per week, 94
employees had stopped using tobacco and 214 had reduced
their weight to a healthy level,

— Experian's work on financial iteracy (UK): Experian has
continued its drive (o help improve finangial literacy. A new
resource calted "Cetting credit: A beginner’s guide’ has been
developed in conjunction with the Basic Skiils Agency to help
teachers defiver numeracy and financial literacy content. A
teacher’s pack and set of lesson plans are available which follow
a consumer choosimg. applying for and managing credst. The
pack was awarded the Personal Finance Education Group quality
mark in March 20086.

— ARC community programme: Argos launched "Tick to Cive' - a
customer fundraising scheme in support of its chanty partner
Help the Hospices. Argos customers are invited to tick a box on
their product selection shps if they wish to make a donation to
the charity. When the ship is taken to the till, 20p is added to
the final total, which is then donated ta the charity, Ints first
few months this very simple system has already raised £30,000,
and seems likely to collect around £100,000 p.a.

— ARG suppher programme: The coverage of ARC's audit
programme has continued to increase such that 72% of direct
source vendors {by turnover) have been audited, many of them
several umes. ARG has worked with a number of suppliers
during 2005/6 to offer detailed guidance on lts Code of
Practice; the company has produted a comprehensive quide for
suppliers, illustrated with photographs intended to help the
management of supplier companies understand how to
improve. The guide has been translated into Mandarin Chinese
and formed the basis of face to face presentations with 60
suppliers.

Community

GUS% takes an active role in community activities, supporting
charities and working directly with local projects:

— Taking part In these activites is popular with our staff - they
feel that they are contributing to their communities and that the
Company is supporting them in this. They are also able to learn
new skills when working together,

— Developing stronger commumties, either locally or natonally,
has knock-on benefits for the business: It can make customers
feel more predisposed towards GUS, it can create a better
environment for commerce and trade and it can increase
awareness of the Company, attracting a wider pool of high
quality recruits,

—  The resources of the Croup can have a2 profound impact on
charitable and community projects, through both direc giving
and also through the in-kind contribution of the Group
businesses.

As in previous years, the CUS communliiy engagement programme
1n 200576 incluoed 1wo elements working together: the work of
the GUS Chantable Trust and the activities planned and dehivered
through Expenan and ARG. Many of the Croup’s most successful



projects have seen the cash contripution from the Trust being
amplified by the in-kind support from the business, resulting in a
gearing effect that doubles or iniples the impact of the project.

The GUS Charitable Trust

The GUS Charitable Trust ("The Trust™ is the principal channel for
the Group’s gitect financial support to community projects. These
donations are often supplemented by in-kind contributions from the
Croup’s businesses such as the donation of goods, the supply of
staff time or the prowision of facillues.

The Trust, which 1s an independent registered charity, has three
Trustees: Sir Victor Blank (Chairman}, Dawvid Morris and Gordon
Bentley.

It focuses on three areas:-

— Medical research.

— Work with children and the elderly.
— Education.

The Trust is also developing 1ts suppon for environmental
initiatives.

The Trust's income from GUS in respect of the year ended 31 March
2006 was £1.1m. In that year the Trust made awards totalling
£1.0m. Major awards were as follows:

£'000

PRIME - an ME CFS project (BB
Kidscape 92
Pros:ate Cancer Charter for Action 75
Disabled Living Foundation 57
Wavemakers 50
Help the Hospices 50
Business in the Community Breakfast Club S0
ICAN 35
Staywise/Royal Berkshire Fire Authority 30
National Library for the Blind 26
Connection at 5t Martins 25
CHICKS 20
Community Links 20
National Association of Toy Libraries 20
661

Socially Responsible investmant

During the last year, CUS has been included in a number of third-
party oenchmarks of CR activity. These results are not always
consistent, tut - taken together - they give an impression that GUS
1s typtcally found 1n the upper half, or upper quartile of most such
rating systems, Many of these raungs are produced in ¢onnecuon
with 'socially respons:ble investment’ mechanisms, and the Croup
also hsted in a number of ‘cestin class’ indices. the two most
notable of which are the Dow Jones Clobal Sustarability Index
(DJCS1 and FTS£4Coacd.
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Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters

1. Remuneration Committes
1.1 Role
The Remuneration Committee is respansible for:

— determiming the remuneration level and structure for executive directors and approving that of selected executives who repart to the
executive directors;

-~ communicating to shareholders on remuneration policy and the Committee's work on behalf of the Board:;
—~ reviewing and recommending the design of the Company's share schemes,

The remuneration of non-executive directors and the Chairman 1s a matter reserved for the Board as a whole. No director is mvolved in
any distussians as to his or her own remuneration,

The Remuneration Commitiee has written terms of reference which are available on request from the Company Secretary and are also
published on the Companys website (www.gusplc.com).

1.2 Membership and meetings
The Remuneration Committee is a Board committee consisting exclusively of the following independent non-executive directors:

Lady Patten of Wincanton (Chairman until 31 December 2005)
Oliver Stocken (Chairman from 1 January 2006}

john Coombe

Andy Hornby

Frank Newman

Sir Alan Rudge

The Commitiee met on eight occasions during the year, Attendance at these meetings is set out in the corporate governance statement on
page 33. Lady Patten retired from the Board on 31 January 2006.

1.3 Advisors

In making its decisions, the Committee consults with the Chairman, the Croup Chief Executive and the Croup Director of Human Resources
who are invited to attend meetings of the Commuttee as and when appropriate.

The Commitiee also appointed Kepler Associates and Towers Perrin. Kepler advised on the following:
—  executive remuneralion matiers;
— profit calibration for the serting of annual bonus targets; and

_ review and canfirmation of the total shareholder return of GUS plc anc the comparator group companies for the 2002 Performance
Share Plan, the performance cycle of whrch ended on 31 March 2005.

Towers Perrin advised on executive remuneration Issues and provided salary survey data.

Other than the above remuneration advice, no other services were provided to the Company by Kepler Associates and Towers Perrin
respectively.

In addition, the following advisors have been retained on behalf of the Company, and provide information to the Committee on relevant
matters being considered by the Committee:

—  Watson Wyat: - reurcment benefits and pensions advice.
— Linklaters - legal services in respect of executive remuneration, They also provide corparate legal services to CUS plc.

—  PricewatarhouseCoopers - tax services in respect of company share schemes. They also provide audit anc tax services to CUS plc as
disclosed in note B of the financial statements.

—  Abacus - administralive support on various share schemes.
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2. Remuneration policy

The Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy for executive directors in light of the future separation of the Croup. The Committee
has determined that the policy remains appropriate for the coming year. The long-term plans wiil continue to operate as before and
awards will be rofled over, as appropriate. Policy for the years following separation will be a marrer for the relevant remuneration
commttees.

2.1 Pinciples

The reward strategy aims to align executive director and senior management remuneration with shareholders' interests and 1o attract and
retain the best talent for the benefit of the Croup. The key principles are:

1. To provide competitive performance-related compensation which influences performance, and helps attract and retain execulives by
providing the opportunity to earn substantial rewards for outstanding performance.

2. To apply demanding performance conditions to deliver sustained profitable growth In afl our businesses, thereby aligning incentives 1o
sharehalders’ interests.

3. To provide a balanced portfolio of incentives - bonus, options and shares.
4. To pay market-competitive base salary levels but no higher than this.
5. To provide accountability and transparency.

Consistent with the sirategy, salaries are set on the basis of mid-marke: practice amongst UK companies of comparable size.
performance-related incentives are targeted at upper quartile levels for outstanding performance to produce a highly leveraged package
if our growth objectives are attained. The Company 15 committed 10 performance-refated payments at all levels within the organisation.

2.2 Elements of remuneration

The remuneration package is weighted towards the performance-related elements. In fair value terms, the praportion of total pay
{(excluding pensions and benefits) which is vanable is approximately 64 per cent, as illustrated below.

Fair value of executive director remuneration

The Remuneration Committee selects performance measures that align with the Company's strategic goals and that are transparent and
clear to both directors and shareholders. Each element in the reward package is designed to support the achievement of different
Company objectives. as illustrated below;

Elerent Purpose Periormance mealure
(a) Base salary _ Reflects the competitive salary level for the particular role. - Indwidual contribution,
- Takes account of personal contnibution, skill and performance.
(b) Annual bonus - Rewards the achievemen: of annual financial targets. - Proflt before tax 1ogether with efficient
- Provides opportunity to re-invest bonus in GUS shares capital usage.
with matching opportunities.
- Aligns with shareholder interests through delivery in shares.
(¢) Share options - Direct hink to growth objectives through £PS growth hurdle - EPS growth measured over a continuous
and to value creation through share price increase. three-year period,
- Aligns with shareholder interests. - No longer a retest facility.

(d) Performance Share Plan - Aligns with shareholaer interests through delivery of shares. Relative total shareholder return agains:

Rewards out-performance comparec 10 peers, 1ailored comparator group measured over
a three-year peniod, subject to sausfactory
overall financial performance.
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Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters continued

(a) Base salary and benefits

To ascertain the job's market value, external remuneration consultants annually review and provide data about market salary levels and
advise the Remuneralion Committee. Executive directors’ salaries are benchmarked against a mid-market Jevel of main board executive
directors from the comparator companies in the FTSE 100 index, currently defined as those ranked from FTSE1 - 40, Before making a final
decision on Individua! salary awards, the Committee assesses each directors contribution to the business, 1o reflect incividual
performance and experience,

In addition to base salary, executive directors receive certain benefits in kind including a car or car allowance, private health cover and life
assurance.
(b Annual bonus

To reward annual performance, executive directors are eligtble for an annual incentive with a 1arget of 50 per cent of base salary and a
maximum of 100 per cent of salary for substantially exceeding targets.

Directors are given the opportunity to defer receipt of their bonus and invest it in GUS shares under the Co-investment Plan. The number
of shares acquired on behalf of the executive 1s matched on a shiding scale depending on the achievement against target for the relevant
financial year and can be summarised as follows:

Threthoid Targat Maximum
Bonus potential (% of base salary} 0% SO% 100%
Matching ratio 14 1:1 21

*Between threshold and target the maiching ratio rises from 0.25:1 to 1:1 on a strarght line basis.

The release of these shares is deferred for three years including the deferred bonus, For matching shares awarded after 31 March 2004
and in subsequent years, dividends will be accrued, If an executive resigns during the three-year period he/she will forfeit the night to
the matching shares anc associated dividends. Maiching shares awarded afier 31 March 2006 are subject 1o compulisory rollover at the
date of demerger.

Bonuses are currently awarded for achiewing profit growth and meeting efficient capital usage targets. We believe that linking incentives to
profit growth helps to reinforce our growth objectives. Targets are calibrated by Kepler Associates using benchmarks that reflect internal
and external expectations. For 2007, these benchmarks will relate to ARG and Experian specifically as well 23 to CUS ta ensure targets are
appropriate throughout the year. Benchmarks include: broker earnings estimates; earnings estimates for competitors; straight-line profrt
growth consistent with median/upper guartile shareholder returns over the next three to five years; latest projections for the current year;
budget: strategic plan; long-term financial goals, etc.

(c) Share options

The Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS) is linked to share price providing a bullt-in performance driver for option holders and

further aligns them with shareholders' interests, In addition, there is a performance test based on adjusted Earnings Per Share (EPS).

This requires EPS compound annual growth 1o exceed compound annual retail price inflation by +4 per cent per annum over a continuous
three-year period,

For options granted since January 2004 there is no retesting of the EPS performance condition. Unapproved options granted from

May 2005 are subject to compulsory rollover at the date of demerger.

Subject to meeting the performance test, options vest three years afier grant, and remain exercisable for seven years after vesting.

No director may normally receive an option grant with a face vajue of more than one times salary in any one year. In exceptional
crcumstances the Remuneration Committee has discretion to grant up to two times salary,
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(d) Performance Share Plan

The Perfarmance Share Plan underpins the longer-term incentive structure by providing a share-based reward which s earmed only when
the Company out-performs its peers.

CUS’ performance under this plan is assessed in lerms of three-vear total shareholder return in relation to the following group of
peer companies:

Acxiom Kingfisher Reed Elsevier
Boots Marks & Spencer Reuters

DSC formerly Dixons) N. Brown Signet
Equifax Next Tesca

Harte Hanks Pinault Printemps Redoute

None of the awards vest if CUS' 1otal shareholder return (defined as share price movement plus reinvested dividends) is below the mecian
return for the comparator group Once GUS achieves medizn performance, 40 per cent of the award may vest, while 100 per cent of the
award may be earned for an upper quartile return or better. This can be summarised as follows:

Position X of perfcrmance sharms that will vest
1 100
2 100
3 100
4 100
H 85
6 70
7 55
B (median) 40
9to 15 4]

No awards will be released unless the Remuneration Commuttee is also satisfied with the Company's undetlying financial performance over
the relevant period.

The maximum grant normally available to directors is 100 per cent of salary, converted to shares at the price prevailing at the time the
awards are made. In exceptional circumsiances the Remuneration Commlttee has discretion to grant a higher amount, The awards vest,
1o the extent that the performance test is met, after three years. The majority of participants receive a grant of 50 per cent of salary.

During 2004, the Remuneration Commiitee decided to introduce dividend accrual on performance shares to strengthen alignment with
shareholders. Cansequently, performance shares awarded after 31 March 2004 accrue dividends. performance shares awarded from
May 2005 are subject to compulsory rollover at the date of demerger.

{e) Pensions

pensions are offered in line with competitive practice. The retirement age for directors is 60 under arrangements which broadly provide a
pension of two thirds of final salary, life assurance and ifl health and dependants’ pensions. tncentive payments (such as annual bonuses)
are not pensionable.

Arrangements have been in place for a number of years to provide pension benefits to those UK executive directors affected by the tnland
Revenue earnings cap. These are designed to provide pension benefits on salary n excess of the cap thereby placing those directars in
broadly the same position as dlrectors whose pension 15 unaffected by the cap.

The Finance Act 2004, together with the Pensions Act 2004, make major changes to the taxation and regulation of occupational pension
schemes, and to the benefits which occupational pension schemes may provide. GUS has considered the implications of the new
legslation for the provision of pensions to all of its employees and directors and has made a number of changes 10 115 regtstered pension
arrangements to take advantage of the new flexibitity. The Company, with the agreement of the trustees of the schemes, has oecided to
retain 2 notional earmings cap for its existing anc future employees, with the exception of new senmior CUS and Experian executives who
will be pensioned on full basic salary.
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The Company has put security in place for the unfunded pension entitiements of executives affected by the earnings cap, by establishing
Secured Unfunded Retirement Benefits Schemes (SURBS) for each of CUS, Experian and ARC. Further details are provided under the
disclosure of the arrangements for each director.

tf) Service contracts

All executive directors have roliing service contracts which can be terminated by the Company giving twelve months’ notice. In the event
of termination of the directar’s contract, any compensation payment is calcutated 1n accordance with normal legal principles, including the
application of mitigation to the extent appropriate 1n the circumstances of the case.

Further details of senvice contracts are outlined in Section 11.
(g) Impact of IFRS
Appropriate adjustments have been made, where relevant, to performance targets and tests under the Company’s incentive plans to ensure
consistency of treatment notwithstanding the transition from UK CAAP to IFRS reporting. These adjustments have been agreed by the
Remuneration Committee and reviewed by the Company’s auditors.
3. Non-executive directors’ remuneration policy
The GUS policy on non-executive directors’ remuneration is that:

Remuneration should be in line with recognised best practice and sufficient to attract, motivate and retain high calibre non-executives.
—~ Remuneration should be set by reference to the responsibilities undertaken by the non-executives.
— Remuneration should be a combination of cash fees (paid manthly) and GUS shares (bought annually 1n July),

— Non-executive directors are obliged to retain shares awarded until their retirement from the Board. Any tax hability connected to these
arrangements is the responsibility of the individual director,

"— Non-executive directors should not receve share options from the Company.
— Non-executive directors do not receive any benefits in kind, with the exception of the Chairman who has the use of a Company Car.

The fees of non-executive directors are normally reviewed every two years with effect from 1 July. Fees are reviewed in the light of market
practice in FTSE 100 companies and anticipated number of days worked, tasks and responsibilities, Following the 2004 review,
remuneration is as follows:

- o= - - - - - - - Cash L™ “Number of shares
Chairman 267,000 15,000°
Non-executive director base fee 35.000 2.500
Senior non-executive director 10,000 -
Chairman of audit/remuneration committee 10,000 1,500

*18,000 shares with effect from July 2005.

4, Performance graph 1300

The directors have chosen to illustrate the total shareholder
return {'T$R? for CUS plc against the FTSE 100 index for
the last five financial years. In the opinion of the directors,
the FTSE 100 Index is the most appropriate index against
which TSR should be measured, as 1115 a widely used and
undersiood index of leading UK companies.
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The information set out in sections 5 to 9 below has been subject to audit.

S. Directors’ emoluments
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The following table shows an analysis of the emoluments of the individual directors for the year ended 31 March 2006,

Salary Annuat Taaable Total Total
and Fees bonut oenelits 2006 2005
£'000 1'0co o9 £'000 9%
Executive directors
Terry Duddy 710 305 25 1,040 1,364
John Peace (Note 1) 805 346 30 1,181 1,550
Don Robert (Notes | and 2) $1.165 $1,165 $63 $2,393 -
David Tyler (Note 1) 500 216 20 735 959
Non-executive directors
Sir Victor Blank {Note 3) 164 - 33 197 416
John Coombe (Note 4) 60 - - 60 -
Andy Hornby 58 - - S8 55
Frank Newman 58 - - 58 55
Sir Alan Rudge 68 - - 68 65
Oliver Stocken 8t - - 81 77
Lady Patten of Wincanton (Note 5) 74 - - 74 77
3,229 1.517 143 4,889 4,618

The following shares were purchased for the non-executive directors on 21 July 2005. The value reported below is included within the
remuneration reported in the above table:

Number of Vake

shares £

Sir Victor Blank o . 18,000 163.680
John Coombe 2,500 22.734
Andy Hornby 2,500 22,734
Frank Newman 2.500 22.734
Lady Patten of Wincanton 4,000 36,374
Sir Alan Rudge 2,500 22.734
Oliver Stocken 4.000 36,374

Notes

1.

During the year under review, John Peace served as non-executive Chairman and David Tyler as a non-executive director an the
board of Burberry Group pic, a listed company in which CUS retained approximately 65 per cent of the issued share capntal umil
13 December 2005. Dawid Tyler served as a non-executive director until his resignation on 5 August 2005 on the board of

Lewss Croup Limited, a company histed 1n South Africa in which CUS retained approximately 54 per cent of the 1ssued share capnal
unul May 2005, Neither executive received any addnional remuneration for such services. Don Robert served as a4 non-executive
director of First Advantage Corporation for which he received fees of US$43,000.

2. Don Robert was appointed to the Board on | April 2005. Remuneration for Don Robert is reported in US Dollars as he is on the US
payroll. Amounts have been converted to Sterling at the average rate for the year.

3. Sir Victor Blank received his cash remuneration (an additional £267,000) in the form of a company contribution 1o his defined
contribution pension arrangement (see Section 10).

4, John Coombe was appointed 1o the Board on | April 2005.

5. Lady Patten of Wincanton left the Beard on 31 January 2006.
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6. Share options

In May 2005, executive directors received an option gran: with a face value of one times salary under the Company’s executive share
option schemes.

Details of options grantec to executive directors, under the Company's executive share option schemes, are set out in the table below:

Number of Toral
options at Cptions Cotions Share Date numpes of
t Agell 2C0% or gramted axaccised prce on from Bat.ony
date of du-ing during Exercise date of which Expiry 31 March
1ppointment the yRar the year price exrrise exercigable date 2908
Terry Duddy
11.06.01 150,155 - - 612.7p 11.06.04 10.06.11
06.06.02 80,398 - - 653.0p 06.06.05 05.06.12
19.06.03 85,862 - - 675.5p 19.06.06 18.06.13
01.06.04 82,797 - - 809.2p 01.06.07 31.05.14
31.05.05 - 82,702 - 858.5p 31.05.08 30.05.15
481914
John Peace
11.06.01 195.854 - - 612.7p 11.06.04 10.06.11
06.06.02 99,540 - - 653.0p 06.06.0% 05.06.12
19.06.03 103,626 - - 675.5p 19.06.06 18.06.13
01.06.04 93,919 - - 809.2p 01.06.07 31.05.14
31.05.05 - 93,768 - 858.5p 3i.05.08 30.05.15
" 586,707
Don Robert (Note 1}
06.06.02 173,151 - 173,151 653.0p 921.5p 06.06.03 05%.06.08
19.06.03 145,196 - - 675.5p 19.06.04 18.06.09
01.06.04 134,890 - - B809.2p 01.06.05 31.05.10
31.05.0% - 74,334 - B58.5p 31.05.08 30.05.15
354,420
David Tyler
06.06.02 58.192 - - 653.0p 06.06.05 05.06.12
19.06.03 62.176 - - 675.5p 19.06.06 18.06.13
01.06.04 58,082 - - 809.2p 01.06.07 31.05.14
31.05.05 - 58,241 - B58.5p 31.05.08 30.05.15
236,691
Notes

). Opuons granted to Don Robert prior to his date of appoiniment to the Board in Aprli 2005 were granted under the North America
Stock Optton Plan, The 2005 grant was made under the UK Executive Share Option Scheme. Don Robert exercised 173,151 options
during the year when the share price was 921.5p and made a total gain of £464,910.

The exercise prices represent the average of the middie market quotations of a CUS share as derived from the Daily Official List of The
London Stack Exchange for the three immediately preceding dealing days to the date on which options were granted.

The market price of the shares at the end of the financial year was 1055p; the highest and lowest prices during the financial year were
1128p and 827p respectively.

Full details of directors’ shareholdings and options to subscribe are comained in the Company's Register of Directors’ Interests.
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SAYE share optign scheme

Details of awards outstanding to directors under the Company’s SAYE share option scheme are as follows:

Number of Qpuans Number of Date from
options at  exertised during aplloas 2% Exercise which Expiry
1 April 2005 the year 31 Masch 2006 price exerc.sably date
Sir Victor Blank 4,394 - 4,394 384p 01.05.06 31.10.06
Terry Duddy 4,354 - 4,394 3B4p 01.05.06 31.1C.06
John Peace 4,394 - 4,394 384p 01.05.06 31.10.08
Ohver Stocken 4,394 - 4,394 384p 01.05.06 31.10.06
Dawid Tyler 4,394 - 4,394 384p 01.05.06 31.10.06

As previously reported, a number of non-executive directors received, in 2001, invitations to participate in the Company's SAYE share
opuion scheme. This was a “one-off arrangement.

On 2 May 2006, Sir Victor Blank, Terry Duddy, Oliver Stocken and David Tyler each exercised 4,394 options at an option price of 384p
under the 2001 Scheme resulting in a gain of £28,517 each. The GUS share price on the date of exercise was 1033p. Sir Victor Blank and
Cliver Stocken were responsible for paying tax on the gain.

7. Performance Share Plan

In May 2005. executive directors received & share award with a face value of one times salary.

Detalls of awards made to directors under the Performance Share Plan are as follows:

Plan shares Man snares
awzrded relexsed Total
Flyn shares durning the during the Share Share Slan snares
awirded a2 year to yeat to price on price on heks at
31 Marzh 31 March 31 March &Me of date of vesting 31 March
2005 2006 2006 award release date 1006
Terry Duddy
06.06 02 80.398 - 80.398 653.0p 853.1p  June 2005
15.06.03 85.862 - - 675.5p June 2006
01.06.04 82,797 - - 809.2p June 2007
31.05.05 - 82,702 - 858.5p May 2008
251,361
John Peace
06.06.02 99,540 - 99,540 653.0p 853.1p June 2005
19.06.03 103,626 - - 675.5p June 2006
01.06.04 93,919 - - 808.2p June 2007
31.05.0% - 93,768 - 858.5p May 2008
281,313
Don Robert
19.06.03 26,619 - 675.5p June 2006
01.06.04 22,481 - 809.2p June 2007
31.05.05 - 74,334 - 858.5p May 2008
i23.434
David Tyler
06.06.02 58,192 - 58,192 653.0p 853.ip June 200S
19.06.03 62,176 - - 675.5p June 2006
01.06.04 58,082 - - 809.2p June 2007
31.05.05 - 58.241 - 858.5p May 2008

178,499
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B. Co-investment plan

As explainec in note 2.2 (b} on page 42. directors are given the opportunity o defer receipt of their annual bonus and have it invested in
CUS shares {'invested shares’). For the year ending 31 March 2005, John Peace, Terry Duddy and David Tyler received a bonus of 100 per
cent of base salary and chose 10 invest the whole of their ‘net’ bonus. Don Robert received 2 bonus of 100 per cent of base salary and
chose ta invest the whole of his bonus. The invested shares so purchased on their behalf are included in the table below and also in the
table of directors' interests appearing on page S1. The related matching shares under these arrangements are also shown in the table
below. They are not released until the expiry of a three-year period and the right to the matching shares is forfeited if a director resigns
before then,

Invested and Share prca
invested MWatcning Shares on date
shares Marching raleased durng year of Vet ng

thote 3) shired to 31 uarch 2036 release date
Terry Duddy (see Notes | & 2}
17.06.02 187,273 882.5p June 2005
20.06.03 40,132 158,193 June 2006
11.06.04 37.961 209,008 June 2007
13.06.05 38,888 153,285 June 2008
John Peace (see Note 1}
17.06.02 244270 882.5p June 2005
20.06.03 49,689 195,858 June 2006
11.06.04 42,178 166,256 June 2007
13.06.05 44,111 173,875 June 2008
Don Robert
20.06.03 36,257 56,191 June 2006
11.06.04 78,512 157.024 June 2007
13.06.05 83,109 166,219 June 2008
David Tyler (see Note 1)
17.06.02 142,490 882.5p June 2005
20.06.03 29,049 114,501 June 2006
11.06.04 25,307 99,754 June 2007
13.06.05 27.279 107,528 June 2008

Notes

1. tnvested shares for Terry Duddy, John Peace and David Tyler are purchased with the bonus net of tax. The matching share awards are
made on a gross basis and are taxed at the point of vesting.

2. As previously disclosed, the Remuneration Committee agreed to grant in June 2004 an extra number of matching shares to
Terry Duddy 1o the value of £500,000 as a one-off award. The additional shares are included in the total number disciosed above.

3. As a result of the demerger of Burberry, UK based Co-Investment Participants were entitled to receive the special dividend of Burberry
shares in respect of their invested Shares. Participants were able to dispose of their Burberry shares, without affecting their Maiching
Shares. The above figures reflect the adjustment 10 the number of Invested Shares following the demerger and share conschdation.

9, GUS plc ESOP Trust

As at 31 March 2006, the executive directars are, together with other employees of the CUS group, discretionary beneficianes under the CUS
plc ESOP Trust and, as such, each director 15 deemed to be interested in 10,463,212 ordinary shares in CUS held by the trustee of the Trust.

10. Retirament banefits

In lieu of Sir Victor Blank's cash remuneration of £267,000, an equivalent amount was paid in the form of a pension contribution into a
defined contribution Executive Pension Plan during 2006.

Terry Duddy is a member of the Argos Pension Scheme which will provide him on retirement at age 60 with a pension of up to two thirds
of the pension earnings ¢ap, suject to Inland Revenue hmits. The figures shown below are pased on his capped pensionable earnings.

in addiuon, his contract provides for the choice of a funded or unfunded scheme 10 provide benefits in excess of the pension earnings
cap. Mr Duddy elected to have paid 10 hum a cash sum for investment at his pwn discretion, The amount s0 paid in the year unger review
was £278.024. From April 2606. Mr Duddy has elected 10 join the ARG Secured Unfunded Returement Benefits Scheme (see section 2.2 (e}
and will receive pension benefits on full basic salary. The cash sum ceased at 31 March 2006.
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John Peace is a member of the CUS Pension Scheme. His benefits within the Scheme are not restricted by the pension earnings <ap. and
therefore the following pension figures reflect his tax-approved Scheme benefits. Mr Peace has elecied to remain a member of the CUS
Pension Scheme in 2007.

Dawid Tyler 15 a member of the CUS Pension Scheme. His benefits within the Scheme are restricted by the pension earnings cap. however,
fus contract allows far an unfunded scheme to provide for benefits in excess of the cap (although pan of this promise will be provided for
by a funded arrangement which was ¢losed to future contributions on | April 2002). The pension figures below reflect both his approved
and unapproved entitlements. From April 2006, Mr Tyler has elected 1o join the CUS Secured Unfunded Retirement Benefits Scheme in
respect of his unfunded entitlement.

Don Robert 1s provided with benefits under a US defined beneflt arrangement - a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) - which
aims to provide benefits which broadly match the pension arrangements for UK awrectors. He also participates in a defined contributlion
arrangemen: in the US - a2 401k - and the employer contributions during the year were $8,985. The figures below are in respect of his
SERP enniilement.

A number of former directars recewve pensions fram GUS plc under ex-gratia arrangements. Pensions paid in the year totalled £429,596
(2005: £434,197).

The 1able set ou: below provides the disclosure of directors’ pensian entitlements in respect of benefits from tax-exempt schemes and
unfunded arrangements.

Addrtional
Arcrued Acgrued Changt In pension
ptniion at pansion at Transfer Trangler iransier earned to Teansler value
31 March 31 march valut at value at vilue 31 March 2006 ©f the In{redse
2006 2005 31 March 31 March fless Directors  (net of inflaticn) [ e1s Direcrory
per annum per AnAUM 2006 2005 contribulions) el annum ¢ontnout:ons)
ol [F4] mn 4 51 16 h
1660 {800 rode {500 £000 [§hH 1002
Terry Duddy 13 11 150 112 22 2 5
John Peace 467 415 7.655 6.080 1.575 41 672
David Tyler 142 115 1.87] 1,365 490 24 300
1 000 $ ‘000 $ 000 § 300 1000 3 Co0 1000
Don Robert 204 165 31,257 2.575 682 34 549

Notes

Columns (1) and (2) represent the deferred pension to which the directors would have been entitled had they left the Croup at 31 March 2006
and 2005, respectively.

Column (3} 15 the transfer value of the deferred pension in column (1) calculated as at 31 March 2006 based on factors supplied by the
actuary of the relevant Group pension scheme in accordance with agtuarial guicance note CN1 1.

Column (4} is the equivalent transfer value, but calculated as a: 31 March 2005 on the assumption that the director left service at that date,
Column (5) 1s the change in the transfer value of accrued pension during the year net of contributions by the director.

Column (6} is the increase in pension buil up during the year, recogmsing (i) the accrual rate for the additional service based on the

pensionable safary in force at the year end, and (ii} where appropriate the effect of pay changes in ‘real’ (infation adjusted) terms on the
pension already earned at the stan of the year.

Column (7) represents the transfer value of the deferred pension in column (6}
The disclosures n columns (1) to {5) are as required by the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002.

The disclosures in columns (6) and {7} are as required by the UK Listing Autharity's Listing Rules. The requirements of the Listing Rules
differ from those of the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations. The Listing Rules require the additional pension earned over the year
to be calculated as the difference between the pension accrued at the end of the financial year and the pension accrued at the stan of the
financial year less the increase in the pension earned over the year solely due to inflation. The change in transfer value required by the
Diractors’ Remuneration Report Regulations will be stgnificantly influenced by the assumptions underlying the calculation at the beginning
and the end of the financial year.
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Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters continued

11. Directors’ service contracts
Terry Ouddy

Terry Duddy has a service contract, dated 27 July 1999, which provides for 12 months' natice on the part of the Company and
six months by the executive. The contract ends automatically when Mr Duddy reaches the nermal retirement age of 60.

Under the terms of the contract, the Company reserves the opuion, in its absolute discretion, to terminate the executive's employment by
paying in heu of notice. The payment in Lieu shall be calculated by reference to basic salary taking into account any pension contributions
and benefits in kind for the duration of the notice period but without taking into account any bonus of incentive payment of any kind.

John Peace

John Peace has a service contract, dated 31 March 2000, which provides for twelve months' notice on the part of the Company and six
months by the executive, The contract ends automatically when Mr Peace reaches the normal retirement age of 60.

The Company may, in its absolute discretion, make a payment in lieu of the whole or part of the notice period of salary, benefits and any
bonus due for that period. The bonus will be calculated by reference to that paid In the previous financial year. The Company will use us
best endeavours to procure that the executive is treated under the terms of the LTIP and share option arrangements such that he is vested
10 the maximum extent possible in LTIP and share options granted to him and that he is granted augmented benefits in the pension
scheme as iIf he had remained in service for the notice period.

#f the Company terminates the executive’s employment contract in breach of 115 terms the Company will pay and the executive agrees to
accept as liguidated damages, n full and final settlement of all claims arising from such termination, a payment and arrangements in
respect of pension and share options computed as indicated above.

Don Robert

Don Robert has a service contract, dated 25 May 2004, which provides for 12 months' notice on the pan of the Company and six months
by the Executive,

The contract provides for the following payments to be made if the contract terminates tn the event of the Executive's death in addition to
payments due but unpaid before death: a pro rata annual boaus for the bonus year to the termination date based on the Company's
performance in that bonus year (such bonus to be paid on the normal bonus payment date); a lump sum equal 1o 12 months' base salary
1o be paid no later than S0 days after the date of death. Any deferred compensation obligations will be governed in accordance with the
relevant plan rules. If the employment is terminated due 10 the Executive's disability the Company will pay 1n addition to payments due
but unpaid before termination; a pro rata bonus as described above. Any deferred compensation obligations will be governed in
accordance with the relevant plan ruies.

The employment may be terminated by the Company for cause in which event it is only obliged to pay the Executive for his base salary
earned but unpaid to the termination date. Any deferred compensation obligations wlli be governed tn accordance with the relevan: plan
rules. Where the Company terminates the employment without cause the Company will pay the Executive in addition to payments due but
unpaid at termination the following severance amounts: his monthly salary at the times when he would normally have received payment
for 12 months from the termination date; 12 months' participatton in welfare benefit plans in which he participated during his
employment; and an annual bonus based on a 100% achievement of objectives payable in equal monthly instalments for 12 months'.
Stock options ancd deferred compensauion plans will be treated in accordance with the plan rules. The same amounts are payabie by the
Company if the executive terminates the cantract following material breach by the Company.

The Executive may terminate his employment for Cood Reason following a change of control of the Company. Cood Reason means duting
the six month period following a change of control a material and substantial adverse reduction or change in the executive’s position or if
he is reassigned to an office location more than 50 mikes from Orange County, California. In this situation the Company must pay him the
same amount as If he had been terminated by the Company without cause.

Dawvid Tyler
David Tyler has a service contract, dated 3 February 1997, which provides for 12 months' notice an the part of both the executive and the
Company. The contract will end automatically at normal retirement age of 60.

Under the terms of the contract, the Company reserves the option, in its absolute discretion, [o terminate the Executive's employmen: by
making a payment in heu of nouce. The payment in lieu shall be calculated py reference to basic salary taking 1nie account any pension
contributions and benefits 1n kind for the duration of the notice pertod but without taking into account any bonus or incentive payment of
any kind.



CUS Annual Repor: 2006 51

Chairman and non-executive direciors

The Chairman and the non-executive directors do not have service contracts and thewr appointment may be terminated at any time without
compensation. Non-executive directors are appainted for specific terms of three years and the appointment reviewed at the end of each
three-year term,

12. Combinad Code

The constitution and operation of the Remuneration Commitiee are in compliance with the principles of good governance and the
Combined Code on Corporate Covernance published by the Financial Reporung Council.

13. Shareholding guidsline

11 is one of 1he tenets of GUS' reward sirategy that shareholders' and directors’ interests be aligned. To reinforce this, the Remuneration
Committee expects that, over a period of five years or 5o, executive directors will build a personal holéing in CUS shares. This holding
should be 200,000 shares 1n the case of the Group Chief Executive and 120,000 shares in the case of other executive directors.

To underpin this commitment, the Committee expects that, while the guideline holding remains unfulfilled, executive directors witl not
dispose of any shares vesting to them under any of the CUS incentive plans (save for any disposals necessary 1o meet tax liabilities arising
from them).

14. Directors’ interests

The beneficial interests of the directors, together with non-beneficial interests, in the Ordinary shares of the Company are shown below in
sections (i) and (i), Share aptions granted 1o directors, awards under the Performance Share Plan and the conuingent interests in matching
shares under the Co-investment Plan are shown on pages 46 to 48. The directors have no interests in the debentures of the Company or in

any shares or debentures of the Company's subsidiaries,

LUs plc
31 March 2006 31 March 2005
{Notas | and 2) or on date of
sppaintmant
(i) Beneficial holdings

Sir Victor Blank 208,980 225,000
John Coambe 12,469 3,000
Terry Duddy 282.926 151,524
Andy Hornby 6,811 5.420
Frank Newman 8.600 7.500
John Peace 434,127 294,154
Don Robert 197.878 114,769
Sir Alan Rudge 11,085 11.450
Oliver Stocken 30,627 31,500
David Tyler 269,589 182.893

(1) Non-beneficial holdings
Sir Victor Blank 2,580 3,000

Notes

1. The Directors’ interests as at 31 March 2006 reflect the adjusiment to the number of CUS shares following the share consohidation as a
result of the Burberry demerger.

2. On 2 May 2006, Sir Victor Blank, Terry Duddy, David Tyler and Oliver Stocken each exercised 4,394 options under the Companys 2001
SAYE share option scheme, at an option price of 384p, and kept the resultant shares.

0On behalf of the Board

Oliver Stocken
Chairman - Remuneration Commuittee
23 May 2006
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The fellowing statement, which should be read in conjunction with
the report of the auditors set out on page 53, is made with a view
to distinguishing for shareholders the respective responsibilities of
the directors and of the auditors in relation to the Annual Repon
and financial statements.

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annuat Repon and
the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union, and for preparing the Company financial
staiements and the Report on directors’ remuneration and related
matters in accordance with apphcable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Cenerally Accepted
Accounting Pracuice).

The directors are responsible for preparing financial statements for
each financial year which give a true and fair view, in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of affairs
of the Group and the income statement of the Croup and a true and
fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Cenerally Accepted
Accounting Practice of the state of affairs of the Company for that
periad.

The directors consider that in preparing the financial statements on
pages 54 to 113, appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied, supporied by reasonable and prudent
judgments and estumates, that the Group financial statements
comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and. with
regard to the Company’ financiat statements, that all accounting
standards which they consider applicable have been followed.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting
records are kept which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any
time, the financial position of the Company and the Croup and
which enable them to ensure that the Croup financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the I1AS
Regulation and the Company financial statements and the Report
on directors' remuneration and related matiers comply with the
Companies Act 1985. They are also respensible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and the Group and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irreqularities.

The Company has a website which contains up to date information
on Group acuvities and published financial results. The
maintenance and integrity of this website 15 the responsibllity of
the directors. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Relevant Audit Information

As at 23 May 2006, so far as each director is aware, there is no
relevant audit tnformauon of which the auditors are unaware and
each director has taken all steps that he ought to have taken as a
director 1n order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
informauon and to establish that the auditors are aware of that
information.

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have formed a judgment at
the time of approving the financial statements that there 1s a
reasonable expectaton that the Croup and the Company have
adeguate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements,
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Report of the auditors: Group financial statements

Independent auditors’ report to the members of GUS plc

We have audited the group financral statements of CUS plc for the year ended 31 March 2006 which comprise the Croup income
statement, the Croup balance sheet, the Croup cash flow statement, the Croup statement of recognised income and expense and the
related notes. These group financial statements have peen prepared under the accounting policies set out theren.

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of CUS plc for the year ended and on the informauan
in the Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters that is described as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of diractors and auditors

The cirectors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the group financial statements in accordance with apphicable law and
International Financiat Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the Statement of directors’
responsibilities,

Our responsibility is 10 audit the group financial statements in at cordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Audiung (UK and treland). This report, including the opinian, has been prepared for and only for the company's
members as a body sn accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this
opinion, acCept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person ta whom this report is shown or into whaose hands
it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the group financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulalion. We reporn to you
whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ report 15 consistent with the Group financial statements. The information
given in the Direciors’ report includes that specific information presented in the Business review that 1s cross referred from the Business
review section of the Directors’ report. We also report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audnt, or if information specified by law regarding director’s remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate governance statement reflects the company'’s compliance with the mine provisions of the 2003 FRC
Combned Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, and we report if it does not. We are not
required 10 consioer whether the board’s statements an internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the group's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures,

We read other information contained n the Annual Report and consider whether it is cansistent with the audited group financial
statements. The other information compnises only the Croup financial highlights, the Directors’ report, the Charman’s statement, the
Business review, the Board of directors, the unaudited part of the Report on directors' remuneration and related matters and the Corporate
governance statement. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the group financal statements. Qur responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Irelznd) issued by the Auditing Practuices Board. An
audit includes examinatign, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the group financial statements. 1t aliso
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the group Tinancial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as 10 obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary n order 10
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or errar. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the preseniatien
of information in the group financial statements.

Opinion
In our opihan:

— the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Union, of the state of the
group's affairs as at 31 March 2006 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

— the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
1AS Regulation: and

-~ the information given in the Directors' report is consistent with the Croup financial statements,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester

23 May 2006
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Croup income statement

for the year ended 31 March 2006

2008 200%
MNaotes im im
Continuing operations:
Sales 3 7.262 6.663
Cost of sales (4,103) (3.879)
Gross profit 3,159 2.784
Net operating expenses 6 (2,505) (2,150)
Operating profit 654 634
Interest income 98 | 102
Interest expense {(137) (130)
Financing fair value remeasurements (;)J -
Net financing costs 9 (42) (28)
Share of post tax profits of associates 37 42
Profit before tax 3 649 648
Croup tax expense
- UK (152) (163)
- Overseas 3 (i3)
10 (165} (i76)
Profit after tax for the financlal year from continuing operations 484 q72
Discontinued operations:
pProfit for the financial year from discontinued operations 12 m 173
Profit for the financial year 595 645
Profit attributable to:
Equity shareholders in the parent company 569 596
Minority interests 26 49
Profit for the financial year 595 645
Earnings per share 14
- Basic 60.2p 59.6p
~ Diluted 59.2p 58.8p
Earnings per share from continuing operations
- Basic 51.2p 47.2p
- Diluted 50.4p 46.7p
Non-GAAP measures
2006 2003
Reconciliation of profit before tax to Benchmark PBT hotes m tm
Profit before tax 3 649 648
exclude: amortisation of acquisition intangibles 8 17 11
exclude: exceptional items relating 1o continuing operations 8 4 7
exclude: store impairment charges . B 13 -
exclude; financing fair value remeasurements 8 3 -
exclude: tax expense on continuing operatigns’ share of profit of associates 3 1 1
tnclude: EBIT of discontinued operations 12 119 239
include: net interest of discontinued operations 12 3 4
Benchmark PET 3 829 910
Dividend per share (including proposed final dividend) 13 3t.5p 29.5p
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at 31 March 2006
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2008 2005
Hotes im im
Assets
Non-current assets
Coodwill 15 3,068 2.485
Other intangible assets 1 5312 313
Propenty, plant and equipment 17 959 1,041
Investment 1n associates 18 129 110
Deferred 1ax assets 28 314 342
Reurement benefit assets 25 8 -
Trade and other receivables 20 51 454
Other financial assets 26 a 8
5,162 £,753
Current assets
Inventories 19 883 1.0i7
Trade and other receivables 20 1,051 1,134
Current tax assets 119 74
Other financial assets 26 6 31
Cash and cash equivalents 21 221 347
2,280 2,603
Total assets 7,442 7.356
Liabilities
Non-current liabllities
Trade and other payables 22 (83) {111)
Loans and borrowings 24 (2,067) (1.676}
Deferred tax liabilities 28 (201) {164}
Retirement benefit abligations 25 - {(112)
Other financial labilities 26 (8) -
(2,359) (2,063)
Currant liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 {1,391) {1,512}
Loans and borrowings 24 (174) (129)
Provisions 23 (89) (88)
Other financial labihties 26 21) -
Current tax liabilities (276) (253
{1,951} (1.982)
Total liabilities (4,310) (4.045)
Nel assets 3,132 330
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 29 256 254
Share premium 29 97 69
Other reserves 30 (240) (246)
Retained earnings 30 3,018 2,978
Total shareholders' eguity 30 3,131 3,055
Minority interests m equity 30 1 256
Total equity 3,132 3,311

The financial statements on pages 54 1o 101 were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 May 2006 and were signed on its behalf by:

John Peace Croup Chief Executive

David Tyler Group Finance Director
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Croup statement of recognised income and expense

for the year ended 31 March 2006

2006 2008
MDrey Em im

Net income/(expanse) recognised directly in equity
Cash flow hedges {2) -
Net invesiment hedge (9) -
Fair value gains in the year 2 4]
Actuarial gains/(lasses) in respect of defined benefit pension schemes ? {5)
Currency translation differences 14 3
Recycled cumulative exchange loss in respect of divestments 3 3
Tax credit in respect of items taken direcily to equity 5 7
Net income recognised directly in equity 20 14
Profit for the financial year 595 645
Nat income recognised for the year 615 659
Cumulative adjustment for the implementation of IAS 39 39 12 -
Total income recognised in the year 627 659
Net income recognised for the year attributable to:
Equity sharehotders in the parent company 586 610
Minority interests 29 49
Net income recognised for the year 615 659
Cumulative adjustmant for the implementation of IAS 39 attributable to:
Equity shareholders in the parent company . 10
Minority interests 2
Total | ¥4
Non-GAAP measures

2006 200%
Group statement of net debt Notet im im
Cash and cash equivalents (net of overdrafts) 36 80 259
Avaitable for sale assets - curremt 26 - 31
Derivatives hedging loans and borrowings a6 -
Deb: due within one year 24 (29) 39
Finance leases 24 (s) 8)
Debt due after more than one year 24 (2,066) (1.674)
Nat debt at end of year (1,974) (1,427%
Continuing operations {1,974} (1.631)
Discontinued operations - 204
Net debt at end of year (1,974) {1,427)

Net debt at 31 March 2006 is stated afier deducting £46m in respect of the fair value of derivatives related 10 the Croup’s borrowings.



Croup cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 March 2006
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2008 2605

NOte) im im
Conuinuing operations:
Cash flows from aperating activitias
Cash generated from operations 36(a) 894 796
Iinterest paid 36(b) (63) 60)
Interest received 30 26
Dividends received from associates 27 26
Tax paid (108) (\70)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 780 618
Continuing operatians:
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {261} (258)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 6 18
Purchase of intangible assets {(112) (109)
Sale of intangible assets 2 H
Purchase of non-current invesiments (28) (5)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 36(c) {819) (176)
Disposal of subsidiaries 36(d) 360 106
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B52) (419)
Cantinuing operations:
Cash flows from financing activities
Purchase of treasury and ESOP shares (36) (222)
Issue of Ordinary shares 29 35
Sale of own shares 20 1]
New borrowings 36(e) 37% 473
Repayment of borrowings 36(e) (35) (355)
Capital element of finance lease rental payments {3 {5}
Equity dividends paid {284) {281)
Net cash flows used in financing activities 66 (339)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents - continuing operations 6) (140
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents - discontinued operations (173) (30
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (179) (7o
Movement in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations
Cash and tash equivalents at 1 April ~ continuing operations 84 224
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (6} {1400
Exchange and other movements 2 -
Cash and cash equivailents at the end of the financial year - continuing operations 36(f) BO 84
Non-GAAP measures

2006 2095

Reconciliation of net decrease in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt m im
Net cebt at 1 April - as reported (1,427) (1.200)
Cash and cash equivalents at | April - discontinued operations {(173) 1203)
Osther financial assets at | Aprll - distontinued operatons 31 (31}
Net debt a: | April - continuing operations (1.631) (1,434}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (6) (140}
Increase in debt (337 [IRE}]
Exchange and other movements - 56
Net debt at the end of the financial year - continuing operations (1,974) (1,63%)
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Notes to the Group financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2006

1. Corporate information

CUS pic (the ‘Campany?, which 1s the ultimate parent company of the GUS Croup, is a pubiic limited company mcorporated and
domicited 1n England and listed on the London Stock Exchange, CUS 15 a retail and business services group.

The consolidated financial statements for the Group were approved by the Board on 23 May 2006.

2. Basis of preparation

The Group financial s1atements are presented in Pounds Sterling, rounded to the nearest million. They are prepared on the historical cost
basis modified for the revaluation of certain financial instruments,

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out in note 37. These policies have been
consistently applied to both vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated Croup financial statements are prepared in accorcance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS") as
adopted for use in the European Union. These are those standards. subsequent amendments and related interpretations issued and
adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board ('IASE’) that have been endorsed by the European Union at the year end. They
also comply with those parts of the Companies Act 1885 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The Group previously reported
under UK Cenerally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK CAAP),

Transition to \FRS

These hnancial s;atements show the results for the years ended 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2005, The results for the year ended

31 March 2005 have heen extracted from the Croup's financial statements for that year and have been adjusted for the effects of changes in
accounting policies on transition to FRS. These adjustments are set out in detall on the Croup’s website {at i W
and are summarised in note 38,

The Croup has applied IFRS 1 ‘First-time adoption of Intesnational Financial Reporting Standards’, and has elected to use the following
exemplions;

- IFRS 3 has nat been applied retrospectively to business combinations that occurred before 1 Apnl 2004,

- The Croup has used the fair value of certain of its properties as deemed cost on transition to IFRS;

— Cumulative translation diferences for foreign operations have been deemed to be nil at | April 2004, Any gainor loss on a
subsequent disposal of a foreign operation will exclude translation differences that arose before 1 April 2004,

The Croup early adopted the December 2004 amendment to 1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’

Adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39

As permitted by IFRS | ‘First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’, the Croup elected to defer implementation of
|AS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation’ and IAS 39 ‘financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ until the
year commencing | April 2005, The adjustment required as at 1 Aprll 2005 is set out in note 39 below. The main adjusiments that
would make the comparative information comply with [AS 32 and I1AS 39 relate to:

_ Derivative instruments. Under UK CAAP, many derivative instruments are nat accounted for at fair vaiue, but are generally treated as
off-balance shee:;

- Hedge accounting. Hedge designation under UK CAAP used to be less restrictive than 1AS 39, thereby allowing designation of hedge
relationships in cases where IAS 39 does not permit hedge accounting.

Recent accounting developments

IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ and amendments to 1A5 | 'Preseniation of Financial Statements - Capital Disclosures’ were
issued 1n August 2005 and are effective for accounting pernods beginning on or after | january 2007. These amendments revise and
enhance previous disclosures required by 1AS 32 and 1AS 30 "Disclosures n the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Financial
Institutions'. These changss are not expected to have a maternal effect on the results and net assets of the Croup.

O1her standards, amendments and interpretations not expected (o have a significant effect on the Croup include: IFRS 6 "Exploration for
and evaluation of mineral resources’, amendment to I1AS 39 "Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup transactions’, amendment
10 IFRS 1. amendment to IAS 39 and IFRS 4 'Insurance contracis’, IFRIC 5 'Rights to interests arising from decommissioning, restoration
and environmental rehabilitation funds' and IFRIC 7 "Applying the restatement approach’ under IAS 29 'Hyperinflationary accounting’.

Standards. amendments and interpretations still under review as to their ¢fiect on the Group include: Amendment 1o 1AS 21 The effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates: net investiment in 2 foreign operation’, IFRIC 4 "Determining whether an arrangement contains a
lease’, IFRIC € *Liabilites ansing from participating 1n a specific marke: - waste electrical and electronic equipment’, IFRIC 8 "Scope of
IFRS 2* and IFRIC @ ‘Re-assessment of embedoed derivatives'.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred 1o the Croup. They cease to be consolidated from the
date that the Croup no longer has control.

Inter-company transacuons, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated on consolidation.
Unrealised losses ire also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
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2. Basis of preparation (cantinued)

Accounting policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Croup for the purposes of the Croup's consolidation.
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings for the
financial year ended 31 March 2006 excep: for those of Homebase. In respect of Homebase, the Croup has consistently included financial
statements for the 12 months to the end of February, which continues to pe done to facilitate comparability 1o avoid distortions relating
to the timing of Easter and the related promotions and trading patterns,

A list of the significant investments in subsidiaries, including the name, country of incorporation, and proportion of ownership interest is
given In note 15 to the Parent Company's financial statements.

Associates

Associates are entitles over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally achieved by a sharehalding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. The equity method Is used 10 account for investments in associates and invesiments are imtially
recogrised at cost.

The Croup's share of net assets of its associates and loans made to associates are mncluded in the Croup balance sheet. The Croup's share
of 1ty associales' post-acquisition after tax profits or losses 15 recognised in the Croup income statement, and its share of post-acguisition
movements In equity is recognised n the Group's equity. The cumulative post-acquision movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. The carrying amount of an investment in an associate 1§ tested for impairment by comparing i1s recoverable
amount 1o its carrying amount whenever there is an indication that the investment may be impaired.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
revenues, expenses, assets and habiiities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The resulting accounting estimates, which are based
on management's best judgment at the date of the financial statements, will, by definition, setdom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets and havilinies
within the next financial year are discussed below,

Taxes

The Group is subject 10 1axes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide pravision for
\ncome taxes as there are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 15 uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises hiabllities based on esumates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final 1ax
outcome of these matters 15 different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the results for the year
and the respective income tax and deferred tax provisions n the year in which such determination is made.

Pension benefits

The present value of the defined benefit obhigations depends on a number of faclors that are determined on an actuanal basis using a
number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the defined benefit obligations and net pension costs include the
expected long-term rate of return on the relevant plan assets and the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions may rmpact the
amounts disclosed in the Croup’s balance sheet and income statement.

The expected return on plan assets is calculated by reference to the plan investments at the year-end and is a weighted average of the
expected returns on each main asset type (based on market yields available on these asset types at the year-end).

The Croup determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This Js the interest rate used to deterrmine the present value
of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to seitle the defined benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate

discount rate, the Croup considers the market yields of high-quality corparate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
penefits will be paid, and that have terms 10 maturity consistent with the estimated average term of the related pension hability.

Other key assumptions for defined benefit obligations and pension costs are based in part on market conditions at the relevant year-ends
and additional information is disclosed in note 25.

Fair value of derivatives or other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter denvauves) is determined by using
valuation technigues. The Croup uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly pased on market
conditions exrsting at each balance sheet date,

Coodwill
Coodwill 15 allocated to cash-generating units {CCUs’ and monitared for internal managemen! purposes by each business segment.

The Croup tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of each business segment 1§
aetermined based on value-in-use calculauons.

These calculations require the use of estimates for cash fiow projections based on financia! budgets approved by management, looking
forward up to five vears. Cash flows are extrapolated using estimated growsh rates peyond a five year period. The growth rates used do
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the businesses in which the segment operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are:

- Budgeted gross margin;

- weighted average real growth rate of 2.25% used 10 extrapolate cash flows beyond the budge: penod;
- Post-tax discount rate of 7% apphed to the cash flow projections.
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2. Basis of preparation {continued)

Management determne budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its expectations for the market development. The
weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the farecasts Included in industry reports, The discount rates used are post-tax
and roflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments. The Croup’s pre-tax weighted average cost of capital s 10%.

Critical judgments

Management has made certain judgments in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies that have a significant effect on the
amounts recogmised in the financial statements. This inciudes the classification of transactions between the income statement and
balance sheet. The accounting policy descriptions set out where judgment needs exercising. the most significant is detailed below:

Intangible assets

Certam costs incurred in the developmensal phase of an internal progect are capitahised if a number of criteria are met. Management has
mage certam judgments and assumptions when assessing whether a project meets these critefia, and on measunng the costs and the
esconomic life attributed to such projects.

On acquisition, specific ntangible assets are identified and recognised separately from goodwill and then amortised over their estimated
useful lives. These include such items as brand names and customer lists, 1o which vatue i1s first attributed at the ume of acquisition, The
capnalisation of these assets and the related amortisation charges are based oh uncertain judgments about the value and econamic life
of such 1tems,

Use of Non-CAAP measures

CUS has identified certain measures that It befieves provide additional useful information on the performance of the Croup. This
approach is comparable with that previously used but as the measures are not defined under IFRS they may not be directly comparable
with other companies’ adjusted measures. The Non-CAAP measures are not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, any IFRS
measures of performance.

The following are the key Noa-CAAP measures dentified by the Croup:

Benchmark Profit Before Tax (Benchmark PET)

Benchmark PBT is cefined as profit before amortisation of acquisition intangibles, store iImpairment charges, sxceptional items, financing
fair value remeasurements and taxation, It includes the Croup's share of associates’ pre-tax profit and the pre-tax profits or losses of
discontinued operations up to the date of disposal or closure.

Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT?)
EBIT is cefined as profit before amortisation of acquisition intangibles, store impairment charges, exceptional items, net financing costs

and taxation and includes the Group's share of pre-tax profits of associates.

Benchmark Earnings Per Share (Benchmark EPS) .
genchmark EPS represents Benchmark PBT less attributable taxation and minority interests divided by the weighted average number of
shares in issue, and 15 disclosed to indicate the underlying profitability of the Croup.

Exceptionat mems

The separate reporting of exceptional items that are non-recurring costs gives an indication of the underlying performance of the Croup.
The only costs treated as exceptional items are those associated with the disposal, demerger or closure of businesses. All other
restructuring tosts are charged against EBIT in the divisions in which they are incurred.

Net debt
Net debt is calcuiated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents. Total debt includes loans and borrowings {and the fair value of dervatives

hedging toans and barrowings), overcrafts and obligations under finance leases.

3. Segmentai information

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged (n providing products of services within a
particutar economic environment and 1s subject to risks and returns that are differen? from those of segments operating in other
economic environments.

Primary reporting format - business segments

Al 31 March 2006, the Croup is organised on a worldwide basis into two core divisions:

(1) Argos Retail Croup, the UK's leading multi-brand, multi-channel retailer, comprising three business segments -
Argos, Homebase and ARC Financial Services; and

(2) Experian, a leading glosal business solutions company.

Disconunued operations compnise the businesses Burberry, Lewis and wehkamp which were all individual segments. Additional
information on discontinued operations 18 shown in note 12,

Inter-segment transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms ang conditions that would aiso be available 1o unrelated
third parties. There is no matenal impact from inter-segment transactions on the CGroup's results,
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3, Segmental information {continued)

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including goodwill, inventories, dervatives
designated as hedges of future commercial transactions, and receivables. They exclude tax assets, cash, investments and derivatives
designated as hedges of borrowings.

Segment habilties comprise operating Liabilities Oncluding derivatives designated as hedges of future commercial transactions), They
exclude items such as tax, borrowings and related hedging derlvatives.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, excluding additions resulting from
acawsimons through business combinations.

Year ended 31 March 2006 Continu:ng Operationy
Timancal AL Centrai Total Oncontinyed Total

Argos  Homebawt Services Tozal txperan HKUvitis contimuieg  operatrons Growp
a) income statement im Em Im im im im im im im
Sales
Total sales 3,893 1,562 93 5,548 1,725 - 7.273 653 7,926
Inter-segment sales! - - - - (an - (1) - an
Sales o external customers 3.893 1,562 93 5,548 1,714 - 7,262 653 7,915
Profit
Operating praofit 29 39 6 336 342 (24) 654 141 795
Croup share of associates’ profit before tax - - - - 33 - 38 - 38
Segmental result 291 39 6 336 380 (24) 692 141 833
Net interest - - - - - (39) (39) 3 {36)
Financing fair value remeasuremen:s - - - - - 3) (3 - (3)
Tax expense on share of profit of associates - - - - [4)) - (L} - m
Profit before tax 29 39 ] 336 379 {66) 649 144 793
Croup tax expense (16%) (33) (198)
Profit for the financiaf year 484 i 595
Reconciliation from EBIT to Profit Before Tax
EBIT 291 52 6 349 417 {20) 746 119 865
Net interest - - - - - {(19) (39) 3 (36)
Benchmark PBT 29, 52 € 349 417 {59) 707 122 829
Exceptional items (note 8} - - - - - (4) (4) 22 18
Amortisation of acquisitron intangibles - - - - (37} - (37} - (37}
Store impairment charges - 13) - (13) - - {13) - (13}
Financing fair value remeasurements - - - - - 3) (3) - (3)
Tax expense on share of profit of associates - - - - n - m - )
Profit before tax 291 39 6 336 379 (66) 649 144 793

| The +omedase iepuks are [or the yeal ended 28 February 2006.
2 Inter-sagment 3akes repeient sales oelween Experian and Financial Senvices.

The Benchmark PBT for Financial Services is afier deducuing funding costs {see note 9),

Discontinued operations comprise the businesses Burberry, Lewis and Wehkamp which were all indwvidual segments. Additional
information on these segments is shown 1h note 12,

Continu.ng Operations

Financlal ARC Central Yota! (hiconunued Total
Argos  Homebase Servizas Total Experun At coutlawing  operations Croup
b) Balance sheet im im £m Em tm tm m Em im
Total segment assets 2.326 1,351 408 4,085 2,470 - 6,555 - 6,555
Less: goodwill (1,153) (726) - (1,879) (1,189) - (3,068) - {3,068)
Less: segment liabilities (575) (320) (59  (954) (526) - (1,480) - (1,480)
Segmant net assets {excluding goodwill) 598 308 349 1,252 755 - 2,007 - 2,007
Coodwill 3,068
KNet debt (1.974)
Tax (44)
Transaction consideration 75

Croup net assets 3,132
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3, Segmental information (continued)

Continung Qperationt
Fmancial ARC Central Total Discontinued Toual

Argos  Homebase Servies Towd Laperun Miviles continubng  operations Group
c) Other im Em im {m £m {m m im m
Benchmark PBT s stated after charging:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (nate 17) 67 53 - 120 39 - 159 16 175
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 16) 14 2 1 17 i - 128 2 130
Benchmark PBT includes:
$hare of profit of associates - - - - 38 - 38 - 38
Segment net assets includes:
Investment in assaciates - - - - 129 - 129 - 129
Capital expenditure 155 g8 1 254 119 - 373 21 394
Year ended 31 March 2005 Continulng Operationy

Fanancial ARG Central Total Drconlinged Towl

Argos  Momebase Services Total Expesan acuvniies comtinuing  operations Croup
a) Incoma statement im im Im im im im tm im im
Sales
Total sales 3.652 1,580 8l §,313 1,362 - 6,675 1,124 7,799
Inter-segment sales’ - - - - (12) - (12) - (12}
Sales to external customers 3.652 1.580 81 5,313 1,350 - 65,663 1,124 7. 787
Profit
Oparating profit 304 96 - 400 256 (22) 634 242 876
Croup share of associates’ profit before tax - - - - 43 - 43 - 43
Segmental result 304 36 - 400 299 (22) 677 242 219
Net interest - - - - - 28 28) 4 249)
Tax expense on share of profit of associates - - - - ) - M - m
Profit hefare tax 304 96 - 400 298 {50) 648 246 894
Group 1ax expense (176} {73) {249)
Profit for the financial year 472 173 645
Reconciliation from EBIT to Profit Before Tax
EBIT 304 96 - 400 37 (22} 895 239 934
Net interest - - - - - (28) {28) 4 (24)
Benchmark PBT 304 96 - 400 37 {50) 667 243 9av0
Excepuional items (note B) - - - - (7) - (7) 3 (4)
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles - - - - on - an - an
Tax expense on share of profit of associates - - - - {1) - {1) - 1)
Profit before tax 304 96 - 400 298 (50} 648 246 894

1 The HcmeDase results are for the year ended 28 February 2005

7 intersegment sales represend $ales between Lxperan and flnancial Services,

The Benchmark PBT for Financial Services 15 after deducting funding costs (see note 3}

Discontinued operations compnise the businesses Burberry, Lewis and Wehkamp which were all individual segments. Additional

wnformation on these segments is shown in note 12, The Craup financial information at 31 March 2005 has been adjustec from that

previously pubhshed as a result of ciearer IFRS interpretation becoming available. Note 38 explains these adjustments.
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Continuing Coerationt

Financial ARG Central Teua! Duscontinued Toual
Argas  Homebuse Service Total Expesian acvitiey  Contlnuing  0Derdtong Croup
b) Balance sheet im {m im im im £m m Em tm
Total segment assets 2,217 1,293 435 3,945 1,492 - 5,437 984 6,421
Less: goodwill (1.108) (726) - {1,834) (537) - (2,371} (114) (2,485)
Less: segment liabulities {493) (365) {61) (919) {631) - ,550) (230) (1,780)
Segment net assets {excluding goodwill) 616 202 374 1,192 324 - 1,516 640 2,156
Coodwill 2,485
Net debt {1,427)
Tax m
Transaction consideration 98
Group net assets 3,311
Conlinuing Operations
Fnancll ARC Central Total Distonhinged Total
Argos  Homtbase Servicet Totyd Experun actnnligs  continging  openations Group
¢) Other tm tm im tm im im in im m
Benchmark PBT is stated after charging:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (noie 17) 59 44 - 103 37 - 140 30 170
Amorusation of intangible assets (note 16) 12 2 18 8t - 99 2 101
Benchmark PBT tncludes; .
Share of profit of associates - - - - q - 41 2 43
Segment net assets includes:
Investment in associales - - - - 103 - 103 7 110
Capital expenditure 134 108 - 242 125 - 367 50 417
Secondary reporting format - geographical segments
The Croup operates in the United Kingdom, Continental Europe, North America and the Rest of the World.
2008 2003
a) Sales by destination - continuing operations tm im
United Kingdom 5,919 5,675
Continental Eurcpe 283 249
North America 1,006 722
Rest of World 54 17
Total 7.262 6.663
2006 2005
h) Total segment assets m im
United Kingdom 4,838 4,641
Continental Evurope 142 639
North America 1,565 884
Rest of world 10 257
Total 6,555 £.424
2006 2505
c) Capital expenditure tm Lr
United Kingdom 279 283
Continenial Europe 19 16
North America 74 70
Rest of worid 1 -
Total 373 367
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2006 2005
4. Analysis of sales by category tm m
Sales of goods 5,455 5.203
Provision of services 1,748 1,405
Interast income 59 55
Total sales to external customers from continuing operations 7,262 6.663
5. Foreign currency
The principal exchange rates used were as follows:
Average Clovwng

2006 2005 2006 2005
us dollar 1.7% 1.85 1.74 1.88
Euro 1.46 1.47 1.44 1.45

Assets and liabilities of gverseas undertakings are iransiated into stesling at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and
the Income statement is translated into sterling at average rates of exchange.

6. Net operating expeanses

2008 200%
(a) by function im {m
Net operating expenses cOmMprise:
Distribution costs 1,693 1.472
Administrative expenses 812 678
2,505 2,150
2006 200%
{b) by nature Hoted Im {m
Profit before tax is stated after charging/{crediting}:
Net pperating lease rental expense 336 293
Cost of goods sold 3,354 3,204
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 159 140
Amortisatian of intangible assets 128 99
Employee benefit costs 7 1,350 1,156
Research expenditure 3 2
Ex¢hange differences ] 1
Store impairment charges 8 i3 -
Argos OFT fine - 16
Homebase regrganisalion Costs - 18
Audit fees - statutory audit 2 2
Auditors' remuneration for non-audit services - further assurance services 4 1
- lax agvIsory services 3 2

Depreciation and amortisation as shown abgve are for continuing operations. Amortisation of intangible assets 15 charged to
admimisiralive expenses except for the amortisation ui databases wnich is cnalgcu 1o LOst of saies.

The guidelines covering the use of the Company's auditors for non-audit services are set out in the Corporate Covernance Report on
page 35.
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The aggregate employee costs for the continuing operations of the Croup were as follows:

2006 200%
Motas im im
Wages and salaries 1,138 974
Social security costs 124 15
Share-based payments 31 29 24
Pension costs - defined benefit plans 25 39 29
Pension costs - defined contribution plans 25 20 14
Total continuing operations 1.350 1,156

The average number of employees (including executive directors) in the conunuing operations of the Group during the year was:

2006 2005
Full time Full timg
Full tima Part time squivalent Full t me Part ume equrva-ent
Argos Retail Group

Argos 9,365 23,067 18,694 8.541 22,093 17,045
Homebase 6,442 12,342 11,463 6,353 11,488 11,061
Financial Services 168 19 190 104 20 116
15,978 35,448 30,347 14,998 33,601 28,222
Experian 11,502 597 11,799 11,738 BS8 12,174
Censral activities 74 - 74 70 - 70
Total continuing operations 27,551 36,045 42,220 26,806 34,459 40,466

Remuneration of key management personnal

Key managemen! personnel is represented by the Board of Directors, shown on pages 28 and 29, and certain senigr management at ARG

and Experian.

2006 2003

Key management compensation [ tm
Salaries and short-term employee benefits T 1
Reurement oenefits 3 2
Other long-term benefits 1 -
Share-based payments 9

24 20
Further deiails of the remuneration of Directors are given in the auditable part of the Report on directors’ remuneration and related
matters on pages 45 10 48, Informauon on transacuions with related parties is set out (n note 35,

2006 2008

8, Exceptional and other adjustment items ™ im
Exceptional items
Continuing operatians:
Costs incyprrad re|ating 10 the planpag Croup demarger fa) -
Loss on sale of businesses - (4]

(4) [¥4]
Discontinued operations (note +2):
Profit on disposal of Lewis Croup 36 24
Loss on disposal of Wehkamp {19) -
Profit on disposal of shares in Burberry 10 3
Costs incurred relating to the demerger of Burberry (5) -
Loss on disposal of other discontinued operations - (24)

22 3
Total exceptional items 18 (4)
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2006 1008
8. Exceptional and other adjustment items (continued) m im
Othear adjustment items

Camtinying operations:

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 3n (an
Stpre impairment charges (13) -
Financing fair value remeasurements (note 9) {3) -
Total other adjustment items {53) {an
Total exceptional and other adjustment items (35) 9

Exceptional items

The profit on the disposal of Lewis Croup relates ta the placing of GUS' rematring 50% stake in May 2005. The profitin the prioc year

relates to the Initial Public Offering of Lewis Croup in September 2004. The loss on dispos.

business in January 2006.

al of wehkamp refates to the sale of the

The income in respect of Burberry shares in both years included that arising from the exercise or lapse of awards under executive share
schemes, together with that arising on the sale of certam shares a1 the me of the demerger in December 2005, The costs incurred

relating to the demerger of Burberry are treated as an exceptional item. The lass on sale of contin

principally tn respect of the sales by Experian of two small non-core operations,

uing businesses in the prior year was

Other exceptional items were costs in relation 1o the Croup demerger of £4m. The prior year loss on disposal of other discontinued

operations is explaned m acte 2.
Other adjustment items

IFRS requires that, on acquisition, specific intangible assets are identified and recognised separately from goodwill and then amorused
over their useful economic lives, These include items such as brand names and customer lists, to which value is first attributed at the
time of acquisiiton. As permitted by IFRS, acquisinens prior 1o ) April 2004 have not been restated. As it did with goodwill under UK

CAAP the Group has excluded amorusation of these acquisition intangibles from ity defimtion of Benchmark PBT.

Ag a result of clearer IFRS imterpretation an Impairment reviews, Argos Retail Croup now perform store impairment tests on a 5tore by

store basis and this has led to an Impairment charge at Homebase of £13m in 2006 (2005: nll).

An element of the Group’s derivatives is meffective for hedge accounting under IFRS, Cains or losses on these derivatives ansing from

market movements are credied or charged to financing fair value remeasurements in the Croup income statement.

2006 2005
9. Net financing costs Notes m im
Interest income:

Bank deposits 7 8
Loan notes 8 g
interest on derivatves 25 31
Expected return on pension scheme assets 25 58 55
interest income 98 102
Interast expense:

Bank loans and overdrafts 32 13
Eurgbonds, notes and perpetual securities 69 79
Finance icases - 1
Commitment ang fac)ity utihsation fees 1 1
Inierest expense on pension scheme Labilinies 25 51 54
Cross interest expense 153 148
Less: interest charged to cost of sales {(16) (8
Interest expense 137 138
Net interest expense 39 28
Financing fair value remeasurements:

Fair value gains on non hedging denvatives {(13) -
Ineffective portion of fair value hedges of borrowings S -
Ineffective portion of net investment hedges (3) -
Net foreign exchange transaction gains 14 -
Financing fair value remeasurements 3 -
Net financing costs 42 28

interest charged 1o cost of sales relates 10 Finanoial Services activities.

There are no comparative numbers relaung te financing fair value remeasurements since the CUS Group did not adopt I1AS 32 and 1A5 39

untyl the year commencing | April 2005 (see note 39).
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10. Tax expense

2006 200%
(a) Analysis of charge recognised in the Group income statement tm tm
Current tax:
UK Corporation tax on income for the year 94 124
Double tax relief (4] [4}]
Adjustments in respect of prior years {2) 4
2] 127
Qwverseas tax:
Owverseas tax on income for the year 17 13
Adjustments in respect of prior yvears (4} -
Total current tax charge for the year 104 140
Deferred tax:
Onginauan and reversal of temporary differences 70 n
Adjustments in respect of prior yvears {9) 5
Total deferred tax charge for the year (] 36
Total tax expense in Croup income statement 165 176

(b) Tax reconciliation
The effective tax rate for the vear of 25.4% {2005: 27.2%), after adjusting for the net income from associates, 15 lower than the standard
rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom (30%), The differences are explained below:

Profit before tax 649 648

Plus: tax on share of profits of associates and joint ventures 1 1

Adjusted profit before tax 650 649

Adjusted profit before 1ax multiplicd by the standard rate of Corporation tax in the UK of 30% (2005: 30%) 195 195

Effects of:

Adjustments 1o 1ax charge in respect of prior periods (5 9

income not taxable {6) (6)
Expenses not deductible 319 22

Utilrsation of previously unrecognised tax losses (1) [4)]
Tax on share of profits of associates m ()
Differences in tax rates (28) {30}
Other adjustments (20} {14}
Disposal of businesses ~ continuing operations 2 2

Total tax expense in Croup income siatement 165 176

{c)] The effective rate of tax on Benchmark PBT
The effective rate of tax based on Benchmark PBT of £829m (2005: £910m) is 25.6% (2005: 26.3%).

(d) Tax on items charged 10 equity
in addiugn to the amoun! charged to the Croup income statement 1ax amounting 1o £5m (2005: £7m) has been credited directly to

equity. relating mainly to share schemes and foreign exchange.

{e) Factors that may affect future tax charges

In the foreseeable future, the Croup's tax charge will continue to be influence¢ by the profile of profits earned in the different couninies
in which the Croup’s businesses operate.
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11. Acquisitions, demerger of Burberry and disposals

(a) Acquisitions for the year ended 31 March 2006

On S May 2005 the Croup acquired | 00% of the issued share capital of LowerMyBills.com, a leading online generator of mortgage and
other loan apphcation leads in the US. On 14 December 2005 the Croup acquired 100% of the issued share capital of PriceCrabber.com, a
leading provider of online comparison shopping senvices in the US.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group made several other acquisitions, none of which are considered individually matetial to
the Croup. Most of these were made by Experian, including three US-based affiliate credit bureaux, ClassesUSA, Baker Hill and Vente in
North Amenica, and ClantyBlue and FootFall in the UK. Also in the UK, Argos acquired 33 former Index stores and the Index brand from
Littlewoods Limited.

In aggregate, 1t is estimated that these acquired businesses contributed revenues of £261m and profit after tax of £16m to the Croup for
the periods from their respective acquisiion dates to 31 March 2006. If these acquisitions had been completed on | April 2005, Group
revenues from the acquired businesses for the year have been estimated at £398m. Due to the acquired entities using different
accounting policies prior 1@ acquisition, previously reporting to different period ends and, 1n cerlain cases, prepanng financial
information on a cash basis prnior 1o acquisition, it has been impracticable to estumate the impact an Croup profit had they been owned
fram | Apnl 2005.

Dezails of the net assets acquired and the provisional goodwill are as follows:

PricaCratbet.com

LowerMylili.com Cther acquisiions Tousl

book valye  Falr value  Book velue  Fair value  Book vawe  Falr value Baok vaiuve Falr value

Im fm tm im im Im (4. im
Intangible assets - 44 - 81 1 95 1 220
Propeny, plant and equipment ! | 1 1 6 6 ] 8
Deferred tax assets B - - - 10 - 18 -
Inventories - - - - 1 2 1 2
Trade anc other recejvables 10 10 4 4 27 24 41 38
Cash net of overdrafts 4q 4 1 1 (5} 5 - -
Other financial assets i 1 i 1 [ 6 8 -]
Trade and other payables {(14) (4 4) (4) (28) (34) (46) (52)
Deferred tax liabilines - (o - - - (2) - 22)
10 36 3 84 18 82 n 202
GCoodwill i77 193 309 67%
213 277 39 881
Sansfied by:
Cash 181 276 355 812
Acquisition expenses 3] 1 4 1
Deferred consideration 26 - 32 58
213 277 391 881

In the Croup cashflow statement £4m of

operatons.

The fair values set out above contain ceriain provisional amounts which will be

acquisitions made by Burberry have been shown within the cash flows of discontinued

finahsed no later than ane year after the date of

acquisiion. Coodwill represents the synergies, assembled workforce and future growth potential of the businesses acqurred.
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{b) Demerger of Burherry Group plc

Al an Extraordinary Ceneral Meeting on 13 December 2005, the shareholders of CUS plc approved the demerger of the CGroup's
remaining interest 65% in Burberry Croup plc. On demerger, the Company declared a dwidend in specie, which was satisfied by the

Croup’s shares i Burberry Croup plc. The dividend in specie represents the Croup'’s share of the net assets of Burberry Croup pic.

The Croup’s share of the net assets of Burberry Croup plc at the date of demerger was as follows:

im
Intangible assets 134
Property. plant and equipment 162
Deferred tax assets 16
Inventories 134
Trade and other recervables 110
Qther finanaial assets 4
Cash and cash equivalents 97
Trade and other payables (176}
Current tax payable (19}
Deferred tax liabilties {18)
Equity minority interests (157)
Croup's share of net assets of Burberry Croup plc an demerger 287

The costs associated with the Burberry demerger of £5m were charged against discontinued operations in the Group income statement.

{¢) Disposal of subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2006

Details of the subsidiaries disposed of during the financial year are given in note 12. The net assets dispased of and the consideration

received are as follows:

Lewls Croup  wehkamp Total
m im im
Intangible assets - 2 2
Property, plant and equipment 12 X 26
Deferred tax assets - 6 6
Inventories 14 19 a3
Trade and other recevables t68 378 546
Other assets 35 4 39
Cash and cash equivalents 14 - 14
Trade and other payables 20 (172} (192)
Retirement benefit obligations 4) 21 25)
Other financial liabilities (15) - (15)
Current tax liabilities 02) - a2)
Equity minority interests 91) - 0N
Net assets disposed o 230 an
Net proceeds received 142 220 362
Costs 2) % (1
Recycled cumulative exchange loss 3) - (3)
Profit/(loss} on disposal 36 {19 17
Cash flow from disposals
Proceeds received 142 220 162
Costs pad (2) (5) (%4]
Net cash inflow 140 215 355

In the Croup cash flow statement, £5m of proceeds in respect of the sale of Burberry shares (net of demerger casts) are incluged in the

cash flows on disposal of subsidianes.
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12. Discontinued operations

2006 2005
(a) The results for discontinued operations were as follows: Em Em
Sales:
Burberry 472 715
Wehkamp 161 222
Lewis Group 20 187
653 1,124
EBIT:
Surberry 94 161
wehkamp 20 23
Lewis Croup 5 58
Total EBIT 119 239
Excepuanal item - profit on tnitial Public Offening of Lewis Group - 24
Net interest income 3 4
Profit before tax of discontinued operations 122 267
Tax charge in respect of pre-tax profil (33) (73)
Profit after tax of discontinued operations a9 194
Cains/(losses) on disposal of discontunued operations:
GCain on Burberry shares 10 3
Costs incurred relating to the demerger of Burberry {5) -
Loss on disposal of Wehkamp (19 -
Profit on disposal of Lewis Group 36 -
Disposal of haome shopping and Reality businesses - 24)
GCains/(losses) on disposal 22 2N
Tax charge in respect of gains/(losses) on disposal - -
Profit/{loss) after tax on disposal 22 (21
11 173

Profit far the financial year from discontinued operations

On 19 May 2005, the Group announced the sale of its remaining 50% tterest in Lewis Group Limited, angd on 13 December 2005

divested its remaining 65% interest in Burberry Group pic. On 19 January 2006, the Group sold Wehkamp, the leading home shopping
brand ih the Netherlands. As a result, these operations have been reclassified as ¢isconunued.

The disposal of the home shopping and Reality businesses took place in May 2003, and provision for the loss on disposal was made n
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2003, with a further charge relating to professional fees and other costs associated

with the transaction being made the following year. Following agreement of the completion statements and the settiement of certain

warranty claims. a further charge was mace in the year ended 3! March 2005 reflecting full and final settlement of all claims that have
arisen from the disposal of these businesses. The related interest bearing loan of £140m was repaid in full in April 2006 by March LK

Limited, being the element of deferred consideration in respect of this disposal.

2006 2095
(b} The cash flows attributable to discontinued operations comprise: {m tm
From operating actvites 43) 55
From investing activities (122) (74)
from financaing acuvities (8) (1
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in discontinued operations (173) (30}
2006 2006 2005 2008
pance pENCe
13, Dividend per shars im per share tm
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders during the year
Interim 9.6 82 9.0 90
Final 20.5 202 19.0 191
Ordinary dividends paid on equity shares 301 284 28.0 281
Dividend in specie relating 1o the demerger of Burberry Croup plc (note 11} - 287 - -
Proposed final dividend for the year endad 31 March 21.9 187 20.5 203

The proposed final dividend is not included as a liability in these financial statements and will be paid on 4 August 2006 1o shareholders
¢n the Register at the close of business on 7 July 2006. The CUS plc ESQP Trust has waived 1ts entutlement to divioends in the amount of

£3.8m (2005; £2.9m), except for the Burberry dividend in specie.
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The calculation of basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividing the earnings attrizuzable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue during 1he year {excluding own shares held in Treasury and in the ESOP

Trust, which are treated as cancelled).

The calculation of diluted earmings per share reflects the potential dilutive effect of employee share incentive schemes. The earmings

figures used in the calculations are unchanged for diluted earnings per share.

During the year the CGroup demerged its remaining interest in Burberry. This was followed by a share consoclidatlon which reduced the
number of shares in issue 10 B49m. As a result of the share consolidation the earnings per share numbers shown below are comparable

in 2005 and 2006.

2006 2005
Baslic earnings per share: pence penre
Continuing operations 51.2 47.2
Discontinued operations 9.0 12.4
Continuing and discontinued operations 60.2 59.6
Add back of exceplional and other adjustment izems, net of tax 2.1 1.6
Adjustment between ¢ffective and actual rates of taxation® - 0.8
Benchmark earnings per share 62.3 62.0
Diluted earnings per share:
Continuing operations 50.4 46.7
Discontinued operations 8.8 12.1
Continuing and discontinued operations 59.2 58.8
Benchmark diluted earnings per share 61.3 61.2
2006 2095
Earnings: £m Im
Continuing operations 484 472
Discontinued operations 8s 124
Cantinuing and discontinued operations 569 596
Add back of exceptional and other adjustment items, net of tax 21 16
Adjustment between effective and actual rates of taxation® - 3
Baenchmark earnings 590 620
2006 2008
L m
weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue durtng the year 946.7 1,000.1
Dilutive effect of share incentive awards 15.0 12.6
Diluted weighted average number of Ordinary shases inissue during the year 961.7 V.012.7
* The tax charge used 1n'the calCulauion Of the effective tax cate 1§ tased on Benchmark PET.
APt Homebate Fapernan Otnet Tatal
15. Goodwill Notes {m im £m tm tm
At ! April 2005 1,108 726 537 114 2,485
Differences on exchange - - 33 - 33
Additions through business combinations R 45 - 629 S 679
Disposals - - - 119) {119)
Transfer 1o acquisitian intangrbles - - {10} - (10}
Al 21 March 2006 1.153 726 1.189 - 3,068
At | Apnl 2004 1,108 726 391 110 2.335
Differences on exchange - - (5} 4 )
Additions - - 159 - 159
Transfer to acquisition intangibles - - (8) - (8)
At 31 March 200S 1.108 726 537 1+4 2,485
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Databaes I4carnal use Internally Acquisltion Total
software generated intang1blet
software
16. Other intangible assats Notes {m £m im tm im
Cost
At 1 April 2005 274 196 77 69 616
Differences on exchange 16 5 2 ) 29
Additions through business combinations 1 1 - - 219 220
Other additions 53 39 19 ~ M
Transfer between assets - - - 22 22
Disposal of subsidianes - (15) - (12 27
Disposals (8) 2N 3) ~ (32)
At 31 March 2006 336 204 95 304 919
Amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 April 2005 154 98 40 1 303
Differences on exchange 7 2 - 2 1
Transfer between assets - - - 2 2
Charge for the year 49 32 12 37 130
Disposal of subsidiaries - (7 - (3) {10}
Disposals n (21 () - (29)
At 31 March 2006 203 104 51 49 407
Net Book Value at 31 March 2005 120 98 37 58 313
MNet Book Value at 31 March 2006 133 100 44 25§ 532
Databases Intenal uie Internally Acquisition Tawal
software generated intangibies
software software
im (1] im im im
Cost
At 1 April 2004 257 155 B6 - 493
Differences on exchange 4) () - - 5
Additions through business combinations 4 tH f 62 66
Other additions 48 486 13 - 107
Transfer between assets (1) - - 6
Disposal of subsidiarias - - (7) n
Disposals {30} (3) {16) - (49)
At 31 March 2005 274 196 77 69 616
Amaortisation and impairment losses
At 1 April 2004 139 70 44 - 253
Differences on exchange 3) - - - 3
Transfer between assets n - 1 - -
Charge for the year 46 30 X} 1] 101
Disposal of subsidiaries - - (5) - 5
Disposals 27} 2) {14) - (43)
At 31 March 2005 154 98 40 n 303
Net Book Value at 31 March 2004 118 85 42 - 245
Net Book Value at 31 March 2005 120 as 37 58 313
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Freenold Leasehold propertiny Fant & Asyets Total
progeriie) Long Short equipment in course ¢f
leasehold easenold constiuciion
17. Property, plant and equipment im tm im im im m
Cost
At 1 April 2005 299 2 413 1.309 33 2,056
Differences on exchange 8 - 8 i3 - 29
Additions through business combinations - - - 8 - 8
Additons 3 3 Sl 185 13 283
Transfer between assets - 3 9) 6 (12) (12)
Disposal of subsiwdiaries (108} - (66) {165) (3) (342)
Disposals () - 4) (117} - (123}
At 31 March 2006 228 ] 393 1,239 31 1.899
Depreciation
At b April 2005 58 - 185 772 - 1,015
Differences on exchange 1 - 1 8 - 10
Transfer between assets - 2 (4) - - (2)
Charge for year 7 - 19 149 - 175
impairments - - 1 12 - 13
Disposal of subsidiaries (31} - (16} {108) - (155)
Disposals (1} - 2) 113) - {(116)
At 31 March 2006 34 2 184 720 - 940
Net Book Value ai 31 March 2005 241 228 537 33 1,041
Net 8ook Value at 31 March 2006 194 6 209 519 1n 959
Freehald Lratehold propermies Plant & Assers Total
properies Long Shont equipment In course of
leasehald Hajenald Lonslruction
im fm im im Im £m
Cost
At 1 April 2004 237 5 384 1.33 54 2.0mn
Differences on exchange 4B} - (2) ] - (2)
Additions through business combinations 8 - 1 2 - n
Additions 21 - 36 225 28 310
Transfer between assets 48 - 1 - (49; -
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - [CH] - {4)
Disposals {14) (3) 7) {246) - (270)
At 31 March 2005 299 2 413 1,309 33 2,056
Depreciation
At | April 2004 52 2 174 870 - 1,098
Charge for the year 8 - 18 144 - 170
Disposal of subsidianes - - - (3) - {3)
Disposals P4] (2) (7) (239) - (250)
At 31 March 2005 58 - 185 772 - 1,615
Net Book Value at 31 March 2004 185 3 210 461 54 913
Nat Book Value at 31 March 2005 241 2 228 537 33 1,041

The Croup has used the fair value of certain of its properties as deemed cost on transition 10 IFRS. The deemed cost as at 1 April 2004

includes £37m of properues carmed at depreciated 1996 valuation.

The Group ieases plant and equipment under a numbper of finance lease agreements. At the end of each of the leases the Croup has the
oplion 1o purchase the equipment at a beneficial price, The ner book value of assets held under finance leases ancd capnalised n plant

and equipmen® 1s £4m {2005 £7m).
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2006 2e08
18. Investments in associales tm tm
Cost
At 1 April 110 93
Differences on exchange 9 (1}
Movement an acquisition of balance of shareholding - (3
Additions ? 5
Impairment of trade or other receivables (4) -
Share of profit after tax 37 42
Dividends received {28) {26)
Disposals 2) -
At 31 March 129 no

Investments (0 associates at 31 March 2006 include goodwill of £107m (2005: £100m). The Croup's share of cumulative retained profits
of associated undenakings at 31 March 2006 is £57m (2005: £43m}.

The Croup's principal interest in associated undertakings is a 20% holding of First American Real Estate Selutions LLC ['FARES?, a US
partnership, which is held by Experian. There are no other material interests in associated undertakings.

At 31 March 2006, the Croup’s share of the assets of FARES amounted to £215m (2005: £185m), and Its share of liabilities amounted to
£85m (2005: £84m), The Group's share of revenue for the year ended 31 March 2006 is £142m {2005: £142mj), and nts share of prafit
after tax is £37m (2005. £40m).

2008 2005
19, Inventories im im
Raw materials - 14
Waork in progress 1 ?
Frmished goods 882 896
883 1,017

|aventories are stated net of impairment provisions of £113m {2005: £147m).
Current Nom Current Han-
2006 Cutranl 200% cu'rent
2008 200
20. Trade and other receivables im im im tm

Trade reccivables:

Hire purchase receivables - - 138 32
Instalment receirvables 355 33 419 232
Other trade receivanles 368 4 394 36
Tota! trade receivables 723 37 951 300
VAT recoverable 10 - 14 1
Deferred consideration receivable 140 - - 140
Amounts owed by associates b1 - - -
QOther prepayments and accrued income 177 14 169 13
1,051 51 1,134 454

The effective interest rate during the year ended 31 March 2006 for instaiment receivables is 7.7%.

The deferred consideration in respect of the disposal of the home shopping and Reality businesses of £140m was received in full by
CUS plc in April 2006 from March UK Lid.

The Croup has elected to apply the provisions of 1AS 32 anc I1AS 39 with effect from 1 April 2005, The comparative financial information
is prepared 1n accordance with UK CAAP to the extent that it relates to recognition and measurement of financial instruments. The nature
of the main adjustments that would make the information comply with 1AS 32 and |AS 39 are set out in note 39.

An analysis of the maturity profile for non-current items s contained in note 27.

2006 2008
21. Cash and cash equivalents n tm
Cash at bank and in hand 134 153
Short-term bank oeposits 87 194

221 347

The efiective interest rate guring the year ended 31 March 2006 for cash and cash equivalents is 2.7%.
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Current Nom- Current Non-

2006 current 2005 current

2006 2905

22. Trade and other payables n m [ im
Trade creditors 465 - 502 -
VAT and other taxes payable n - 69 -
Social security costs 43 - 47 -
Accruats 664 37 706 51
QOther creditors 147 46 188 60
1,391 83 1,512 11

The Croup has elected 1o apply the provisions of 145 32 and 1AS 39 with effect from 1 April 2005. The comparative financial information
is prepared in accordance with UK CAAP 10 the extent that it relates to recognition and measurement of financial instruments, The nature
of the man adjustments that would make the information comply with IAS 32 and 145 39 are set out in note 39.

An analysis of the matunty profile for non-current items is contained in note 27.

Onerout Inyurdnce OFT Other
leases provsions fing proviniont Total
23. Provisions im tm im Em &m
At 1 April 2005 30 30 16 12 1.3
Amount credited/(debited)} in the year 11 5 - 3 13
Ueilised (5) 6) - 2) (13)
Impact of discount rate movement 1 - - - 1
At 31 March 2006 37 29 16 7 89
Onerous Ingurance oFT QOther
lezses provisions hIine Prov.1I0ng Total
im im Im im £m
At Y April 2004 10 41 - 29 100
Amount credited/(debited} in the year 2 {3} 16 (6) 9
Whilised {3} (8) - an 22)
Impact of discount rate movement 1 - - - 1
Al 21 March 2005 30 30 16 12 1.1

The onerous lease provision covers potential liabilities for onergus leases at stores which have either clased or where a decision ¢ close
has been announced. It also covers stores which are still trading but have been impaired. The onerous lease provisions for closed stores
are based on the present value of expected future cash outflows using a discount rate of 4.79% (2005: 4.20%).

Insurance provisions comprise the estimated costs of claims incurred but not settlec at the balance sheet date, cluding the cos: of

claims incurred but not yet reported. The cost of claims includes expenses 1o be incurred in settling claims,

Fair values of provisions do not differ matenially from the recognised book values.
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Currant Nom- Current Nan-

2004 Current 2303 Current

2006 2008

24. Loans and borrowings m im im Em
€568m 4.125% Euronotes 2007 - 395 - 375
£350m 6.375% Eurobonds 2009 - 356 - 348
£350m 5.625% furonotes 2013 - 342 - 348
4,0% Perpetual Securities - Sterling - 76 - 73
4,9% Perpetual Securities - Sterling - 146 - 150
Bank loans - Sterling 29 n 35 380
Bank !oans - US dollar - 380 - -
Bank loans - Euro - - - -
Overdrafts - Euro . 141 - 73 -
Overdrafts - South African Rand - - 15 -
170 2,066 123 1,674

Present value of abligations unaer finance leases 4 1 6 2
174 2,067 129 1.676

The Croup has elected 1o apply the provisions of IAS 32 and 1AS 3% with effect from 1 April 2005. The comparative financial information
is prepared in accordance with UK CAAP 1o the extent that it relatas to recognition and measurement of financial instruments. The nature
of the main adjustments that would make the information comply with 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 are set out in note 39.

For 2006 the cffective interest rate of Euronotes, Eurabonds and Perpetual Securities is the nominal rate indicated above. The effecuve
interest rate of bank lpans and overdrafts is 4.9% and 3% respectively.

All the borrowings of the Croup shown above are unsecured. Lease habilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets
revert to the lessor in the event of gefault.

An apalysis of the maturity profile for non-current items is contained in note 27.

The minimum lease payments payable under finance leases are as follows:

2006 2005
im im
Not later than one year 4 6
Later than one year and not later than five years 1 3
Total mimmum lease payments 5 9
Future finance charges on finance leases - n
Present value of finance leases (as shown above) 5 8
The present value of the finance leases conslsts of;
Not later than one year 4 b
Later than one year and no: later than five years 1 2
Total present value 5 8

-

At 31 March 2006 the Group had undrawn committed borrowing facilities available of £530m (2005: £420m) of which £100m (2005: nil}
expires within ane year of the balance shee: date, and £430m (2005: £420m) expires more than two years after the balance sheet date.
These facilines are in place to enable the Croup to finance its working capital requirements and for general corporate purposes.
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25. Retirement benefit assets/obligations

a) Definad Benefit Schames

The Croup operates pension plans in a number of countries around the world and provides post-retirement healthcare insurance benefits
to certain former employees.

The Croup has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of
pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service ang
compensation. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan that defines the amount of contributions that are paid by the Group into an
independently admimistered fund.

Penslon arrangements for UK employees are operated principally through two defined benefi: schemes (the CUS Pension Scheme and the
Argos Pension Scheme) and one defined contribution scheme (the CUS Money Purchase Pension Plan). In other countries, benefits are
determined in accordance with local practice and regulations and funding Is provided accordingly, The CUS and Argos defined benefit
schemes have rules which specify the benefits to be paid and are financed accordingly with assets being held in independently administered
funds. A full actuanal funding valuation of these schemes s carried out every three years with interim reviews in the intervening years, The
latest full actuarial funding valuation of the schemes was carried out as at 31 March 2004 by independent. qualified actuaries, Watson Wyatt
Limited, using the projected unit method. Under the projected unit method of valuation the current service cost, when expressed as a
percentage of payroll, will increase as members approach retirement due to the ageing active membership of the schemes,

The Group has early adopted the December 2004 amendments to IAS 19.

(iy The amounts recognised in the Croup balance sheet are determined as follows:

UK Overseas Tartal

2008 2008 2006 2008 2006 2005

£m Em Im im im im

Market value of schemes’ assets 1,121 B19 19 144 1,160 563

Present value of funded schemes’ liabilities (1,063} {892) (39) (150} (1,102) (1.042)

Surplus/ideficit) in the funded schemes S8 (73) - 6) S8 (79)

Present value of unfunded pension arrangements (24) [ak:} (4) {2) {28) 21}

Liabdity for post-retirement healthcare (11} ()] (1) 3 (2 (1)
Retirement benefit asset/(liability) recognised in the Group

balance sheet 23 aon (5) () 18 (112)

During the year the Group put in place arrangements to secure unfunded pension benefit arrangements already in place for certain
directors and senior managers by graniing charges to an independent trustee over independently managed portfolios of marketable
securities owned by the Croup. The amount of assets charged in this way will be adjusted annually to keep the ratio of assets charged
to the discounted value of the accrued benefits secured in this way as close as possible to the corresponding ratio in the Group's
registered pension schemes, The total value of the assets charged in this way at 31 March 2006 was £16m. Further details of the
unfunded pension arrangements for directors appear in the Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters on pages 48 and 49.

{ii} The amounts recognised 1n the Croup income statement are as follows:

UK Overinas Total

2008 2005 2006 2905 2006 2698

im Im im im £m im

Current service cost 36 32 3 4 19 36

Interest on schemaes’ liabilities (note 9} 49 45 2 8 51 54

Expected return on schemes' assets (note 9) (56) (47) (2) (8) {58) [55)
Settiement gain in respect of unfunded liabiinties of

home shopping and Reality businesses - {4) - - - 4)

Total charge 1o Group income statement 29 27 3 4 32 31

{iii) The movements during the year in the net asset/(liability) recognised in the Croup balance sheet are as follows:

UK Overiens Total

2006 2005 27006 2005 2006 2008

im im im {m £m fm

ALY April (101} (ss) Qan 23) {(112) {178)

Liabilizies disposed with the sale of overseas businesses - - 25 - 25 -
Total amounts recogrused in the Croup tncome statement

- as disclosed above (29 27 (3) (4} (32) (31
Actuariat gain/(loss} recognised in the Group statement of

recogrised income and expense 25 (19) (18) H 7 (18

Contributions paid by the Croup 128 100 2 15 130 115

At 31 March 23 (1on (5) (an 18 (112)




78 Cus Anrual Repart 2006

Notes to the Group financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2006

25. Retirement benefit assets/obligations (continued)

{iv) The expense 13 recognised in the following Iine items in the Croup income staiement:

2006 2005

im Em
Administrative costs 39 32
Net financing costs () m
Total charge to Group Income statement iz n
{(v) The amount recognised in the Croup statement of recognised income and expense is as follows:

2006 2005

im im
Loss on Labilities (128} {18)
Gain on assets 135 -
Total gain/tloss) included in Group statement of recognised income and expense in year 7 (18}
Cumulative actuarial loss included in Group statement of recognised income and expense (11) g
(vi} Changes in the present vatue of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2006 2005

im {m
Opening defined benefit obligation 1,075 989
Pension hability disposed with the sale of overseas businesses (134) -
Current service cos! 39 36
Interest cost 3 54
Currency loss 3 -
Settlement or curtailment (2) (4)
Contributions paid by employees 9 1
Actuarial loss on liabilities 128 18
Benefits pald {27) 29)
Closing defined benefit abligation 1,142 1.075

The total defined benefit obligation of L1,142m (2005: £1,075m) includes £1,102m (2005: £1,042m) in respect of the Croup’s funded

arrangements and £40m (2005: £33m} in respect of the Group’s unfunded arrangements.

{vil} Changes in the market value of the plan assets are as foliows:

2006 2005
m im
Opening market value of plan assets 963 811
Pension assets disposed with the sale of overseas businesses (109) -
Expected return 58 55
Currency gain 3 -
Settlement or curtaiiment (2) -
Actuanal gain on assets 135 -
Contributions paid by the Croup 130 1158
Contributions paid by employees 9 1M
Benefits paid 27 29)
Clostng market value of plan assets 1,160 963
The actual return on plan assets was £193m (2005: £55m).
Contnibutions include a special contribution of £100m paid into the Argos Pension $cheme in March 2006 and special contributions paid

into the Argos Pension Scheme (£50m) and the CUS Pension Scheme (£26m)n March 2005. The estimated amount of contributtens
expected to be paid to the UK anc Overseas schemes during the next financial year is £26m by the Croup and £11m oy employees.
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Retirement benefit assets/obligations (continued)

{viii) The valuations used for 1AS 19 have been based on the most recent actuarial funding valuations and have been updated by Watson
Wyatt Limited to iake account of the requirements of 1AS 19 in order to assess the liabilities of the scheme at 31 March 2006. The
principal actuarial assumptions used to calculate the present value of the defined benefl: oblrgation are as follows:

UK schemes
2006 2005
* %
Rate of inflation 2.9 2.9
Rate of increase for salaries 4.7 4.7
Rate of increase for pensions in payment and deferred pensions 2.9 2.9
Rate of increase for medical costs 6.5 6.5
Discount rate 4.9 5.4
Overseas schemes
usA Usa South Netnedands
Africa
2006 2005 2005 2¢0%
% % % %
Rate of inflation 2.7 2.5 6.0 2.0
Rate of increase for salaries n/a n/a 7.0 2.5
Rate of ncrease for pensions in payment and deferred pensions - - 6.0 2.0
rate of increase for medical costs : 11.5 1.5 n/a n/a
Discount rate 5.1 5.0 9.0 4.8

The main financial assumption is the real discount rate, i.e. the excess of the discount rate over the rate of inflation. If this assumption
increased/decreased by 0.1%, the UK defined benefit obligation would decrease/increase by approximately £23m and the annual UK
current service cost would decrease/increase by approximately £im. The discount rate 15 based on market yields on high quality
corporate bonds of eguivalent currency and term 16 the defined benefit obligations.

The 1AS 19 valuation assumes that mortality will be in line with standard tables for males and females. An allowance is also made for
anticipated future improvements in life expectancy, by assuming that the probability of death occurning at each age will decrease by
0.25% each year. Overall, the average expectation of ife on retirement in normal health 14 assumed to be:

- 1B.9 years at age 65 for a male currently aged 65
- 22.0 years at age 65 for a female currently aged 65
- 19.6 years at age 65 for a male currently aged 50
- 22.9 years at age 65 for a female currently aged 50

(ix) The assets of the Group's defined benefit schemes and the expected rates of return are summarised as follows:

uK Oversaat UK Overseds

Expacted Expactad Expected Expecied
ong-iatm longterm long-tenm Wang-ierm
rata of rate of e ef <ate of
Falr value raturn Falr valua returm Fair value return Fair valee return
2006 2008 2006 2006 200% 2005 2005 200%
im sNpa Em Hps im %Xoa Em Npd

Market value of schemes’ assets:
Equities 776 7.9 - n/a 561 8.0 57 7.9
Fixed interest securities 332 4.5 - n/a 247 5.0 39 4.4
Property - n/a - n/a - - 9 7.5
Other 13 3.7 as 5.0 11 3.7 40 5.2
1.121 6.8 39 5.0 819 7.0 +45 6.2

{b) Defined Contribution Schemes
The pension cost represents contributions payable by the Croup to the fund and amounted to £20m (2005: {14m).
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26. Other financial assets and liabilities

Carrent Non-
2006 currant
2006
Other financial assets £m tm
Derivativa financial instruments:
Cash flow hedge - foreign exchange contracts 2 -
Fair value hedge of borrowings - interest rate swaps - 22
Fair value hedge of borrowngs - ¢ross currency swap - 27
Non-hedging derivatives - equity swaps 2 2
Non-hedging derivatives - interest rate swaps 2 19
6 70
Avallable for sale assets:
Listed - 21
Yotal other financial assets 6 91
Curreal Now-
2006 currunt
. 2006
Other financial liabilities im im
perivative financial instrumanis:
Fair value hedge of borrowings - interest rate swaps -
Net investment hedge - foreign exchange contracts 13 -
Non-hedging derivauves - foreign exchange contracts 6 -
Non-hedging derivatives - interest rate swaps 2 1
Total other financial fiabilities 21 8

The fair value of foreign currency contracis 15 based on a comparison of the contractual and year end exchange rates. The fair values of
other derwvative financial instruments are estimated by discounting the future cash flows 10 net present values using appropriate market
rates prevailing at the year end.

The cash flow hedges are intended to hedge the foreign currency exposure of future purchases of inventory. The hedged cash flows are
expected 10 occur up to one year tnto the future and will be transferred 10 the Group income statement or inventory Carrying value as
applicable.

Available for sale assets at 31 March 2005 comprise £24m of histed and £7m of unlisted investments held by the Lewis Croup Limied
and £Bm of shares of Burberry Croup pic held by that company. Of the total of £39m. £31m was classified as current and £8m was
classified as non-current,

UK GAAP Comparatives

The Croup has elected 10 apply the provisions of 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 with effect from 1 April 2005. The comparative financial information
is prepared in accordance with UK CAAP 1o the extent that it relates to the recognition and measurement of financial instruments. The
nature of the main adjustments that woul¢ make the information comply with 145 32 and IAS 39 are set outl In note 39.

An analysis of unrecognised gains and losses on hedging at 31 March 2005 as prepared under UK GAAP is shown below:

unrecogriied  Unrecognisad Toral

gainy W0iEe  unrecagn:yed

gaint/ilosyes)

Year ended 31 March 2005 im im im
On hedges at 1 April 2004 21 - 21

Ansing before 1 Apnl 2004 and recognised during the year ended 31 March 2005 (AR} - (11}
Arising during the year and not included in current year income 12 (2} 10
At 31 March 2005 22 (2} 20
Expected 10 be recognised in 2006 14 (2} 12

Expected 10 be recognised thereafter 8 - [
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(a) Financial instrument disclosure for the year ended 31 March 2006
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Set ou: below is 2 companison of carrying values and fair values of the Croup's financial instruments: 2006 2256
Car Far
walue vatue
Em v
Trade and other recesvables 1,102 1,102
Other ftnancial assets 97 97
Cash and cash equivalents 221 221
Financial assets 1,420 1,420
Loans an¢ Borrowings
€568m 4.125% Euronotes 2007 39S 396
£350m 6.375% Eurcbonds 2009 356 357
£350m 5.,625% Euronotes 2013 242 344
4.0% Perpetual Securihies 76 74
4.9% Perpetuil Securities 146 150
Bank loans 780 780
Overdrafis 141 141
2,236 2,242
Other financial liabilities 29 29
Trade and other payables 1,474 1,474
Financial habilities 31,739 3,745
Additional information on financial assets
The maturnty profiles of financial assets are as follows:
Less than 1-2 2-) 3.4 45 Crver §
I year years Years vears years years Toual
im im im Im im Em im
Trade and other receivables 1,051 24 11 3 - 13 1,102
Other financial assets [ 33 B 24 5 21 97
Cash and cash equivalents 221 - - - - - 221
1,278 57 19 27 5 34 1,420
Analysed by currency: Total
tm
At 31 March 2006
Sterling 928
US dallar 226
Euro 240
Other 26
Total 1,420
Analysed by interest rate profile: Total
Im
At 31 March 2006 )
Floating 229
Fixed 302
Non-interest bearing 889
Total 1,420
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27. Financial instruments (continued)

Additional infarmation on financial liabilities
The contractual repricing dates of habilites exposed 1o interest rate risk are as follows:

Lest than -2 -3 3.A 4.1 Cver S
1 year years years (21139 yean Years Touwsl
im im {m im im (1 im
Loans and Borrowings
€568m 4.12%% Euronotes 2007 - 395 - - - - 395
£350m 6.375% Eurobonds 2009 - - - 356 - - 356
£350m 5.625% Euronotes 20} 3 - - - - - 342 342
4.0% Perpetual Securities - 76 - - - - 76
4.9% Perpetual Securities - 146 - - - - 146
Bank loans 780 - - - - - 780
Overdrafts 141 - - - - - 141
Effect of interest rate swaps 474 (437 284 (138) 167 (350} -
Other financial habilities 21 1 - - - 7 29
Trade and other creditors payable 1.391 34 19 2 4 24 1,474
2,807 218 303 220 7 23 3,739
Analysed by currency: Tetal
£m
At 31 March 2006
Sterhing 2,392
uUs dollar 704
Euro 619
Other 24
Tota! 3,739
Analysed by interest rate profile:
Mo anterest
floating Flred bearing Toul
Im Im im m
At 31 March 2006
Loans and borrowings 921 1.315 - 2,236
Effect of interest rate swaps 474 (474) - -
Other 7 70 1.426 1,503
Total 1,402 911 1,426 3,739
Analysed by matunty profile:
Less than V-2 23 }-4 4.5 Over §
| year YERrE years years yearn years Yotal
im im im Im im im im
At 31 March 2006
Loans and Borrowings 170 997 371 356 - 342 2,236
Other financial abilities 21 1 - - - ? 29
Trade and other creditors payable 1,391 34 19 2 4 24 1.474
Total 1.582 1,032 390 3sse 4 373 3,739

(b} Financial instrument disclosure for the year ended 31 March 2005

The Group has elected 10 apply the provisions of 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 with effect from 1 April 2005, The comparauve financial information
shown below 1s prepared in accordance with UX GAAP. The nature of the main adjustments that would make the information comply with

1AS 32 and IAS 39 are set out in note 39,
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27. Financial instruments (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
Set oul below 15 a comparison of carrying values and fair values of the Croup's financial instruments:

2005 2604
Carrying value Falr walue
im im
Trade and other receivables due after one year 455 455
Other financial assets - investments 3 34
Cash and cash equivalents 347 347
Financial assets B33 836
Loans and borrowings (1.797) (1.820)
Obligations under finance leases 18} 8)
Trade and other creditors payable after one year 74) {74)
Financral liabiliues (1.879) (1,902}
Derivative finangial instruments held 1o manage the interest and currency profile:
Interest rate swaps - 13
Currency swaps and forward foreign currency exposure 2 9
£quity swaps held 10 hedge National Insurance liabilities on employee share incentive schemes 3 3
Maturity of financial liabilities
The maturity prafile of the Croup's financial liabilities, including finance lease abligations, is as follows: 7009
Em
In one year or less 129
In one [0 twD years 3935
In two 10 five years 1.000
In more than five years 355
Tortal 1,679

Additional information on financial assets
The interest rate risk profile of the Group's financial assets by currency, after taking account of interest rate swaps, is as follows:
Finanal assezs

on which
Ao Interest
Financual Total Fixed rate lindacia’ atsets 4 eavned
Floating raze Fixed rate aspety weighted
financial financial on which Welghted bverape pernod Weighted
asiels F1E24¢] no Interest average for which average pericd
15 earned Intesest rate rate It hxed  unul matunty
im im im im 1] yedr yesrs
At 31 March 2005
Sterling [EL] 69 36 249 11 2 2
US dollar - - 2 2 - - 2
Euro 160 - 12 172 - - 2
South African rand - 32 - 32 27 2 -
Total 304 101 50 455

Additional information on financial liabilities
The interest rate risk profile of the Croup's financial liabrlities by currency, after taking account of interest rale and currency swaps,

15 as follows: Floancial
napiliney
on wh {h
na Interesl
Financal Total Frued <ate financial habllities 13 pa'd
Zloating rate fined rate habilities weighted
financial financial on whih weghted average per.od Weghied
labilitgs labiities nO 1aLerkdl average for which averape pencd
Iy pald interest rate rate 13 fixed  untL matunty
im Im im im 3 yean vears

At 31 March 2005

Sterling ' 3 306 32 341 5 2 3
us$ dollar 616 330 13 959 3 2 3
Euro 4518 70 18 506 2 1 3
South African rand 108 1 - 109 - - -
Other 47} - 11 (36) - - 2
Total 1,098 707 74 1,879

The floating rate habilities accrue interest at rates generally determined by local regulation and market conditions, The negative habilities
as 31 March 2005 arose from forward foreign currency sales undertaken to hedge net invesiments overseas.
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2008 2005
28. Deferred tax &m im
The movements on the net geferred tax account are as follows:

Net deferred tax assets at 1 April 178 229
Differences on exchange - {2)
Income statement charge (note 10) (2005: includes £6m relating o discontinued operations) 6t {42)
Acqunsition of subsidiaries 22) (n4)
Disposal of subsidiaries 4) -
Tax charged 10 equity (see Group statement of recagnised income and expense} 5 7
Transfers 14 -
Other movements 3 -
Net deferred tax assets at 31 March 13 178

The moverment in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year. without taking nto consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Accelerated Intangibkes  Shate optlon Asset Tan Crher Total

Seprecution and award provislons 103343 temparary

1chames differences
(a) Defarred tax assats £m im tm tm tm tm m
At 1 April 2005 3 107 13 64 19 136 342
Differences on exchange - (2} - - 2 4 4
Income statement charge (note 10) - 4) 2 (17) (2) (10} (31)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - (18] - - - - (7}
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - sy - - (15)
Transfers - - - 14 - - 14
Tax charged to equity - - 8 2 - (B} 2
Other movements - - 1 4 - - 5
At 31 March 2006 3 o4 24 52 19 122 314
Property Accelerated intanghbles  Share oplion Asset Tax O=nar Total

valuatwons deprecialion and award provisions losses temporary

schemed diferences
{b) Defarred tax liabilities im tm tm im im im {m m
AL 1 April 2005 45 19 22 3 - 5 70 164
Differences on exchange 1 - - - - 1 2 4
fncome statement charge (nate {0} 2) 18 [2)] - N {2} 18 30
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 15 - - - - 15
Disposal of subsidianes (s - - (3) - - 7 an
Tax charged to equity - - - - - - {3) {3)
Other movements 1 - - - 1 - - 2
At 31 March 2006 30 37 k1 - - 4 94 200

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards and other temporary differences to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits s probable.

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of £5m {2005: £5mj in respecl of losses that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. In addiuon, the Group did not recognise deferred lax assets of £45m (2005; £45m) in respect of capital losses that can

be carried forward against future taxable gains. These losses are available indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilines of £1,168m {2005 £625m} have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable
on the unremcted earnings of cerlamn subsicharies. Such amounts are permanenlly reinvested.
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29, Share capital and share premium

Numbet Share Share
of capial gremium

thares
Year ended 31 March 2006 Notet m im im
At ) April 2005 1.017.2 254 69
Allotted under share ocption schemes 31 4.8 2 28
Share consolldation (142.8) - -
Balance at 31 March 2006 879.2 256 97
HNumber Share Shere
of capital premium

1haret
Year anded 31 March 2005 Notes m im im
At 1 April 2004 1.014.0 254 35
Allotted under share option schemes 31 6.7 i 34
Shares cancelled on purchase {3.5) 4D -
Balance at 31 March 2005 1,017.2 254 69

Authorised share capital
At 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2005 the autharised share capital of the Company amounted to £313m. At 31 March 2006 this

comprised 1,075.000,000 Ordinary shares of 29 3/43p {200%5: 1,250,000,000 Ordinary shares of 25p). At 31 March 2006, 879,240.912
Ordinary shares of 29 3/43p each had been allotied, called up and fully paid. At 31 March 2005, 1,017,236,451 Ordinary shares of 25p
each had been aflotted, called up and fully patd. The change in the par value of the Company's shares was in connection with the share

consolidation.

Share consolidation

Al an Extraordinary General Meeting on t3 December 2005, the shareholgers of CUS plc approved a consolidation of CUS shares,
replacing 1,02 3m Ordinary shares of 25p each with 880m Ordinary shares of 29 3/43p each. The share consolidation was designed to
keep the CUS share price at approximarely the same |evel, subject to normal market movements, before and after the demerger of the
Group's remaining interest in Burberry Group plc. For every 1,000 Ordinary shares of 25p cach held immediately prior 1o the demerger,
shareholders received 305 Ordinary shares of 0.05p each in Burberry Croup plc and 860 Ordinary shares of 29 3/43p each in GUS plc.
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30. Reconciliation of movements in equity

Total Retained aarnings

Share Share Retained Other  Attrlbutsble fquity Tetal
captal pramium earnings reserves 10 squity minornty aquity
holders intesests
Year ended 31 March 2006 Notes Im tm £m tm m im im
Balance at 1 April 2005 254 69 2,978 (246) 3,055 256 3.311
Cumulative adjustment for the
implemenitation of IAS 39 39 - - - 10 10 2 12
Balance at | April 2005, as restated 254 69 2,978 (23B) 3,065 258 2,323
Profit for the financial year - - 569 - 569 26 595
Net income recognised directly in
equity for the financial year - - 5 12 1 ¥4 3 20
Employees share option schemes:
- value of employee services - - 35 - 35 - 35
- proceeds from shares issued 2 28 - - 30 - 30
Decrease 1in mingrity nterests ansing
due to corporate transactions - - - - - (277) 277)
Purchase of ESOP shares - - - {16) (6) - {16}
Equity dividends paid during the year 13 - - (284) - {284) - {284)
Dividend tn specie relating to the
demerger of Burberry Croup plc 11 - - (287) - (287) - (287)
Dividends paid to minonty sharehotders - - - - - ¥)] (7)
Other movements - - 2 - 2 {2} -
Total equity at 31 March 2006 256 97 3,018 (240) 3,131 1 3132
Total Retained earnings
Share Share Rewalned O:her  Attributable FQuity Total
caaltal premium sarnings reservas to equity minorty equity
holdars interesty

Year ended 31 March 2005 Notes tm im Im Lm m im im
Balance at 1 April 2004 254 35 2.642 (72) 2,859 160 3,019
Profit for the financial year - - 596 - 596 49 645
Net income recognised directly in
equity for the financial year - - 12 2 14 - 14
Employees share option schemes:
- value of employee services - - 35 - 3s - 35
- proceeds from shares issued 1 34 - - 35 - 3is
Increase in Minonity INterests ansing
due 1o corporate transactions - - - - - 62 62
Shares cancelled on purchase mn - (30 - (an - {31}
Purchase of treasury and ESOP shares - - - {176) (176) - (176)
Equity dividends paid during the year 13 - - (281) - (281) - {281)
Dividends paid to minonty shareholders - - - - - [GRD] an
Qther movements - - 4 - 4 {4} -
Total squity at 31 March 2005 254 69 2,978 (246) 3,055 256 3,311

There are no significant statutory, contractual or exchange control restrictions on distributions by Croup undertakings.

Cumulative gocowill of £1,709m (2005: £1,709m) has been charged to reserves in respect of acquisitions before 1 April 1998, including
£1.678m (2005: £1,.678m) in respect of subsidiary undertakings and £31m (2005: £31m) in respect of associated underiakings.
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30. Reconciliation of movements in eguity (continued)

Other reserves is analysed as follows;

Jreagury Hecping  Trans:ation Total
wnd £30F reservy reserve siner
shares resarves
Year ended 3] March 2006 im tm im m
At | Apnil 2005 (248) - 2 (246)
Cumulative adjustment for the implementation of 1AS 19 - 10 - 10
At 1 April 2005, as restated {248) 10 2 (236)
Purchase of ESOP shares (16) - - {16)
Net income recognised directly in equity for the financial vear - (2} 14 12
Balance at 31 March 2006 (264) 8 16 (240)
Treasury Hedging  Translauon Total
and ESOP reserve reterve olher
' Shares reserves
Year ended 31 March 2005 im im im )
At 1 Aprit 2004 (72) - - {72)
Purchase of treasury and ESOP shares (176) - - {176}
Ne: tncome recognised directly in equity for the financial year - - 2 2
Balance at 31 March 2005 (248) - 2 {246)

Treasury and ESQP shares represent the cost of shares in CUS plc purchased by the CUS plc ESOP Trust (‘the Trust’) to satisfy the Croup's
obhigations under its share incentive plans and shares purchased in share buy-backs. During the year the Trust purchased 4,082,187
(2005 2.600,000) shares at a cost of £36m (2005: £22m). In the year ended 31 March 2005 a further 22,140,000 shares were purchased
at a cost of £200m by way of share buy-backs. Of these 3,500,000 shares with a cost of £30m were cancelled.
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31. Share-based paymant arrangements

(a) Options in respect of the Ordinary shares of the Company

During the year ended 3t March 2006, CUS plc had three share option arrangements for its employees. Details of these share option
arrangements are as follows:

(i) Summary of arrangements
Arrangements The 1998 Approved and The North America Stock  Savings related share

Non-Approved Executive Option Plan option schemes
Share Option Schemes

Nature Crant of options Crant of options 'Save as you earn’ scheme

vesting Conditions:

- Service period 3 years 1,2 and 3 years 3 or S years
- Performance/Qther £PS growth performance n/a Saving obhigation over the
condition® vesting pernod
Expecied outcome of meeting Condition Is satisfied n/a n/a
performance criteria (at grant date)
Maxirmum term 10 years B years 3.5 or 5.5 years
Method of settlement Share distribution Share distripution Share distribution
Expected departures (a1 grant date} 5% | year - 0% 3 years? - 30%
2 years - 15% S years? - 50X
3 years - 20%
Option exercise price calculation? Market price over the 3 dealing  Market price over the 20% discount to market price
days preceding the grant 3 dealing days preceding over the 3 dealing days
the grant preceding the grant

* The performance condition for the Exequtive Share Option SKheme reguires Jverige Bencnmark €75 growth o ¢xceed the average Qrowth In the gentrai ndex cf retall pnoes by af ledst
AN p.3. Over 4 ) vear penod. Tna pertsd 0° assesiment commence) 23 the beginning of the financial year of grant. This 13 not a marsel baseo performance conothan s defined by IFRS 2.

* The $tated vilues 1oy axpected departures include pariicipants that do not mest the saving réquirement of tha 1cheme.
' Yhiee day aversges are caxwlated by takng middie mareet quotations of a CUS plc share from 1he Lonoon Stock Exchange.

Options were exercised throughout the year. The weighted average share price during the year was £9.32 (2005: £8.71).
(il) Information relating to option valuation tachnigques

The Company uses the Black Scholes model to determine an appropriate value of the option grants. Inputs into the model are calculated
as follows:

Expected volatility - Calculated as an average over the expected life with an assumption made for volatility in each year of the
expected life. Volatlity in the first year is assumed 1o be the same as imphed volatility on grant date, Volatility for year 4 anc beyond is
assumed to remain at the long run (10 year observed) historic volatility. Linear interpolation is assumed for years 2 and 3.

Expected dividend yield - Yields are based on the current consensus analyst forecast figures at the time of grant. The nputs utilised
are an average of the forecast over the nexi three financial years.

Risk-free interest rate - Rates are obtained from the UK government Debt Management Office website which detaits hastorical prices
and yields for gt strips.

Expected option life to exercise - The Executive Share Option Scheme has an expected life of four years, the North American Stock
Opzion Plan has an expected life of 3.75 years and the Sharesave Schemes have expected lives of either three or five years.

Share price on grant date - The closing price on the day the options are granted,

Option exercise price - Exeroise price as stated in the term of each award.
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The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputs into the Black-Scholes models are as follows:

Arrangemants

The 1998 Approved and

Non-Approved Executive

The North Amenca Stock

Savings relazes shase

Share Opuion Schamas QOption Man opron schemnes

Wielghtad Weighted Waighted Weighted Weightad weighted

average average avaruge average average average

2006 2008 2006 2005 2006 2005

Fair value ({) 1.60 1.71 1.52 1.65 2.46 2.42

Share price on grant date (£} 8,53 8.26 8.48 8.25 B.96 B.48

Exercise price ({) 8.61 B.12 £.59 810 6.87 6.48

Expected volatility 27.8% 27.0% 27.4% 27.0% 25.5% 25.6%

Expected dividend yield 4.0% 3.8% 4.0% 31.8% 3.8% 3.9%

Risk free interest rate 4.3% 5.2% 4.3% 5.2% 4.1% 5.1%

Expected option life to exercise 4 years 4years 3.75 years  3.75 years 3.56 years  3.45 years
Options granted during 2006 had a weighted average fair value of £1.82 (2005: £1.94).

(iil) Reconciliation of movement in the number of share options

Numbar Walghtad humber wWrighted

of aptions average of aptions avesage

azarcise exerciye

price price

H t

2006 2006 1003 2005

Qutstanding at beginning of year 27,741,725 6.34 29,682,249 5.71

New grants 8,335,298 8.12 8,285,234 7.5%

Forfeitures! (1,469,207 6.53 {1,940,133} 5.96

Exercised options (5,881,782) 6.09 (8,237,057) 5.40

Expired options (525,869) 6.60 (48.567) 5.49

Quisianding a1 end of year 28,200,165 6.90 27,741,725 6.34

Exercisable at end of year 5,928,451 6.41 4,925,280 6.03

" For the Sharesave scaemes. thus Includes nan-eavers who have falled the savings requirement.

(iv) Share options outstanding at the end of the year

Share options outstanding at the end of the year had the following exercise prices and rematning contractual lives:
’ As at 31 March 2008

At 31 31 Mareh 2005

Wweightad Weightad sverage Weightad Weigmed averdpe
Range of Nuembar avarage ramaioing lives Range of Number average remaining Inves
aarcise of exercise exercise of exercine
pricas optlans price Expeciad Coatractual prices optony price Expected Contractual
i [ YaRrS Years { i years years
0-6 5,171,594 4.56 0.7 1.4 0-6 7,508,503 4.69 1.4 2.6
6-7 12,437,703 6.61 1.2 4.8 6-7 14,890.809 6.53 1.6 5.7
7-8 100,535 7.57 1.6 6.6 7-8 116,387 757 2.6 7.7
8-9 10,490,333 8.39 3.9 6.0 §3-9 5.217.655 B.11 31 6.1
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31, Share-based payment arrangements (continued)

(b) Share awards In respect of the Ordinary shares of the Company

(i) Summary of arrangements

Arrangemeants

Co-Investment Plan - Matching Shares

Performance Share Plan

Mature of arrangement

Vesting Conditions:
- Service penod
- Performance

Expected outcome of meeting performance
crizeria (a1 grant datel

Maximum term
Method of settlement

Expected departures (at gran: date)

GCrant of shares!

4 years

Benchmark profit perfarmance of
Croup/Division assessed against
specified targets

Participants meet target performance

6 years
Share distribution
7%

Grant of shares

3 years

Distnbution percentage determined
by ranking Total shareholder return’
relative tD a COomparator group

Currently 60%?

3 years
Share distribution
5%

* The Matching Shares are 3 ml consideration oplon and have been classiBed as an award of shargs because the halure of the award Iy *he fame.

1 The Performance Share Pan performance condition 1 consioered 3 'Market-bised’ parfi

volatiities and correlations Measured over the ThTee YEAr OENGY preceding vikaation. On conversicn ta IFRS. the lar value
grant The performance conchlion was Initally valued at 60% on convarsion 1o IFRS accounting standands. This valuation will be apphied 10 all new prants for a three year perod suntil 2007)
In 2007 the Monte Carte simulation will be re-run. The revaluation will be broupht forward I factars anse that suggest an eariiet fe-run I3 warranted.

ormance condition under IFRS 2. 1t has been valuad using & Monte Cano simyiation with Mistorc
of awards was QIculated a5 B0% ol 1 Share price &t date of

The grant date far the Co-Investment plan is the start of the financial year in which performance is assessed. This is before the quantiy

of the share award is determined. The underlying value of the award is known at the grant d

ate, subject to the outcome of the

perfarmance condition, The value of awarded shares refiects the perfarmance outcome at the date of issue to participants.

¢ii) Information relating to share grant valuation tachnigues

The value of awards is determined as the observed market closing rate on the date awarded grants are issued 1o participants.
For the Co-Investment scheme, this occurs after the first year of performance is assessed. The Performance Share Plan’s markel based
performance condition 1s included n the fair value measurement on grant date and is not revised for actual performance.

Under the share awards, participants have an entitlemen? te dividend distributions from the issue date until poin: of vesting.
The observed market rate on the day of valuation 15 considered inclusive of future dividend distnbutions. No modifications are made

for diwvidend distributions or other factors.

There were 2,635,145 shares granted during 2006 (2005: 2,432,536}, with a weighted average award fair value of £7.69 (2005: £7.28).

{c) Summary of the total cost of share-based compensation in respect of Ordinary shares in the Company

2006 2005

im im

Share option awards i3 "
Share grant awards 16 13
Total expense recogrised (all equity settled) 29 24
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. 2006 2005

32. Operating leases im im
Future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows;

Less than one year 3% 302

Between one and five years 1,237 1,142

Mare than five years 2,544 2,569

4,120 4013

The Croup leases various retail outlets, offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have
varying terms, escalatign clauses and renewal rights,

2006 2008

31, Commitments om im
Capital expenditure for whrch contracts have been placed

- Property, plant and eguipment 54 kal

- Intangible assets 1 -

‘ 133 91

34. Contingencies

In the United States. there are a number of pending and threatened litigation claims involving Experian. Expenan vigorously defends
such claims. The directors do not belteve that the outcame of any such pending or threatened litigatton will have a material adverse effect
on the Croup’s financial position. However, as is inherent in |legal proceedings, there 5 a nisk of outcomes unfavourable te the Croup.

35, Related parties

The ultimate parent company of the Croup is CUS plc which is incorporated in the United Kingdom, The pnincipal subsidiary and
associate undertakings at 31 March 2006 are shown in nate 15 1o the financial statements of the ulumate parent company.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties of the GUS Group:

Associates

During the year Experian companies made net sales and recharges, unaer normal commercial terms and coaditions that would be
available to third parties, to First American Real Estate Solutions LLC ('FARES) of £12m (2005: £10m). Amounts receivable from FARES
are shown within note 20. These amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settied In cash. No guarantees have been given or
received in the year. No provisions have been made for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

Subsidiaries |
During the year there were no other material related party transactions. Transactions between the ultimate parent company and its
subsidianes, and between its subsidiaries, have been eliminated on consolidation.

Key management personnel
Remuneration of key management personnel is disclosed in note 7. During the year there were no material transactions or balances
between the Croup and its key management personnel or members of their close family.
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2006 2005
36. Notes to the Group cash flow statemant Netes m £m
(a) Cash generated from operations
Profit ahter tax 484 472
Adjustments far:
Croup tax expense 165 176
Share of post tax profits of associates 37) (42)
Net financing costs 42 28
Operating profit 654 634
Loss on sale of businesses B - 7
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - i
Depreciauon and armaortisation 295 241
Credtt in respect of share incentive schemes 30 37
Cecrease/s(increasej in inventories 5 (182)
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 13 (3)
Decrease in other financial assets 7 -
{Decrease)fincrease in payables (110 1]
Cash generated from operations 894 796
(b} Interest paid
Interest paid on bonds, bank loans and overdrafts (63) (59)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments - ()
Total interest paid {63} {60
{c) Acquisition of subsidiaries
Purchase of subsicary undertakings (819) (199)
Net cash acquired with subsidiary undertakings - 23
Net cash outflow for acquisition of subsidiares {819) (176}
(d) Disposal of subsidiaries
Proceeds of disposal of shares in Burberry [ 4
Proceeds of disposal of Wehkamp 215 -
Proceeds of disposal of shares in Lews 140 105
Sale of other businesses - (2)
Cash inflow from disposal of subsidhanies 360 106
(@) Financing
Debt due within one year:
Repayment of borrowings {35) {334)
New borrowings - 93
Dept due after more than one year:
Repayment of borrowings - (21}
New borrowings 375 380
Net cash flow from debt financing 340 118
() Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash ai bank and in hand (including overnight deposits} 168 153
Term geposits 53 194
Cash ang cash equivalents per Croup balance sheet 221 347
Overdrafts (141) (88)
Cash and cash equivalents per Croup cash flow statemen: 80 259
Analysed as:
Cash and cash equivalents - continwing operations 80 B4
Cash and cash equivalents - discontinued Cperauans - 173

80 259

(g) Major non-cash transactions

The Croup did not enter into any new finance lease arrangements during the year (2005: nih).
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Revenue recognition

Revenue compnises the fair value of the sale of goods and services to external cusiomers, net of value added tax, rebates, discounts and
returns. Revenue 15 recogmsed as follows:

Argos Retail Group {"ARG")

Sales of goods
Revenue 15 recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed 1o the buyer and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue on goods to be delivered is recognised when the customer accepts delivery. A provision for estimated returns is made,
representing the profit on goods sold during the year which will be returned and refunded after the year end. Revenue is reduced by the
value of sales returns provided for during the year.

The Group operates a variety of sales promotion schemes that give rise to goods being sold at a discount 10 standard retail price. These
include redemption of loyaity card points, staff discounts, Friends and Family evenings and the redemption of pramotional vouchers,
Revenue is adjusted to show sales net of all related discounts.

Interest income

within ARG Financial Services ('ARCFS'), interest income on customer storecard accounts and loans is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. Where ARGFS acts as an agent in arranging the sales of a variety of third party provided
financial services products, only the commussion received is included in the income statement and it is classified as revenue,

when a receivable is impaired, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the onginal effective interest rate. Unwinding of the discount continues 1o be recognised as interest income,

Experian

Provision of services
Revenue 1s recognised in respect of the provision and processing of data, subscription to services, software and database customisation
and development and sale of software [icences, maintenance and related consulting services.

Revenue in respect of the provision and processing of daia is recognised in the year in which the service 15 provided. Subscription
revenues, and revenues in respect of services to be provided by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified period of ume, are
recognised on a pro rata basis, Customisation, development and consulting revenues are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the work. Revenue from software licences is recognised upon delivery. Revenue from maintenance agreements 1s recognised
on a pro rata basis over the term of the maintenance period,

Where a single arrangement comprises a number of individual elements which are capable of operating independently af one another, the
total revenues are allocated amongst the individual elements based on an estimate of the fair value of each element, Where the elements
are not capable of operating independently, or reasonable measures of fair value for each element are not available, total revenues are
recognised on a pro rata basis over the contract penod.

Foreign currency transiation

Funcuional and presentation currency
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Sterhing,

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency of the relevant Croup entity at the exchange rate prevaiing on
the date of the transaction, At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and habiliies denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Translation differences on monetary items are taken te financing fair value
remeasurements 1n the Group income statement except when deferred in equity. as qualifying net investment hedges or cash flow
hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary available for sale financial instruments, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss in
equity.

Croup entities

The results and financial position of Croup entities whose functional currencies are not Sterling are translated into Sterling as follows:
- Assets and liabilities are translated a1 the cipsing rate at the date of that balance sheet:

- Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the year; and

- All resulting exchange differences are recogmised as a separate component of equity,

On consoligation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of berrowings and
other currency instruments, primarily foreign exchange contracts, designated as hedges of such invesiments, are taken to equity. Tax
charges and credits attributable 10 those exchange differences are taken directly to equity. When a foreign operation 1s sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the Croup ncome statement as part of the gain or foss on sale. Coodwill and fair vatue
adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabiliies of the foregn entity anc are translated at
the closing rate.
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Share-based payments
IFRS 2 'Share-based payment’, applies 10 equity instruments, such as share options granted since 7 November 2002, but the Croup has
elected 1o adopt full retrospective application of the standard.

The Croup has a number of equity-settled. share-based compensation plans. The fair value of options and shares granted is recognised
as an expense after taking into account the Croup's best estimate of the number of awards expected to vest. The Croup revises the
vesting estimate at each dalance sheet date. Non market performance conditions are included in the vesting estimates. Expenses are
incurred over the vesting period. Fair value is measured at the date of grant using whichever of the Black-Scholes, Monte Carlo model
and closing market price is most apprapriate 10 the award. Markel based performance conditions are includec in the fair value
measurement on grant date and are not revised for actual perfarmance,

Dividend distribution
Dividend distributions are recognised in the Croup's financial statements in the year in which the divadends are approved in general

meeung by the Company' sharehoiders. intenm dividends are recogmised when paid.

Goodwill

Coodwill 15 the excess of the fair value of the consideration payable for an acquisition over the fair value of the Croup's share of
identifiable net assets of a subsidiary and/or associate acquired ai the date of acquisition. Fair values are attributed to the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that existed at the date of acquisition, reflecung their condition at that date, Adjustments are
made where necessary to bring the accounting policies of acquired businesses into alignment with those of the Group.

Coodwill on acguisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets, Coodwlll on acquisitions of associates is included in the carrying
amount of the nvestment. Coodwill is stated at cost less any impairment. Coodwill is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment,
An impairment charge is recognised for any amount by which the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its fair value,

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the related cash-generating units monitored by management, usually at
the business segment ievel. Where the recoverable amoun: of the cash-generating unit 1s less than its carrying amount, in¢luding
goodwill, an impairment loss is recognised in the Croup income statement.

Coodwill is allocated to cash-generating umits (CCUs" and monitored for internal management purposes by business segment. The
aliocation 15 made to those CCUs or groups of CCUs that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwll arose.

Cains and losses an the dispasal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating 10 the entity sold. allocated where
necessary on the basis of relative fair value.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of an acquisition of a business are capizalised separately from goodwill, if those assets are separable and
ther fair value can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately fram the acguisition of a business are capitabsed at cost.
Centain costs incurred in the developmental phase of an internal project are capitalised as intangible assets provided that a number of
criteria are sausfied, These include the technical feasibility of completing the asset so that it is available for use or sale, the availability
of adequate resources to complate the development and to use or sell the asset and how the asset will generate probable future
economic benefit,

The cost of other intangible assets with finite useful economic hves is amortised over that period. The carrying vatues of intangible
assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances tndicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable.
If impaired they are written down to the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Databases
Capitalised databases comprise the fair value of databases acquired as part of a business combination or the data purchase and cata
cap:ure costs of internally developed databases. Databases are held at cost and are amortised on a stratght line basis over 3 to 7 years.

Completed technology
The fair value of completed technology acquired as part of a business combination is capitalised as an intangible asset. Completed
technology 1s held at farr value on acquisition and amorused on a straight line basis over 3 10 B years.

Computer sofiware
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred 16 acquire and bring to use the specific software.
Computer software icences are held at cost and are amortised on 4 straight line basis over 3 10 5 years.

Costs that are ditectly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Croup, and that will
generate economic benefits beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Computer sofiware development costs recognised as
235ets are amortised on a straight hine basis over 3 t0 5 years. Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software
programmes are recogmised as an expense as incurred.

Acquisition intangibles

Trademarks and lhicences
Tragemarks and licences acquired as part of a business combination are carried at cost and are amortised on a straight line basis over
their estimated useful hives up to 20 years pased on their contractual hives,
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Trade names

Legally protected or otherwise separable trade names acguired as part of a business combination are capitalised at fair value on
acquisition and amortised on a straight line basis over 3 to B years based on management's expectations to retain trademarks within the
business.

Customer relationships

Contractual and non-contractual customer relationships acquired as part of 4 business combination are capitalised at fair value on
acguisition and amortised on a straight line basis over 3 to 8 years, based on management’s esumate of the average lives of customer
relationships,

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are held at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value,

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value based
on prices prevalling at the balance sheet date, of each assat evenly over its expected useful life as follows:

- Freehold properties are depreciated over SO years;

- Leasehold premises with lease terms of 50 years or less are depreclated over the remaining period of the lease:

- Plant, vehicles and equipment are depreciated over 2 to 10 years according to the estimated life of the asset;

- Equipment on hire or lease is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset and the period of he lease;
- Land is not depreciated.

Financial instruments

As permitied by IFRS 1, the Group elected to defer implementation of 1AS 32 ‘Finanial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation’ and
1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognitron and Measurement’ until the year commencing 1 April 2005. In accordance with these
standards,

UK CAAP has been applied in the comparative year,

Trade and other recsivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment,

The gross margmn from sales on extended credit terms is recognised at the ume of sale. The finance charges relating to these sales are
credited to the Croup income statement using the effective interest method.

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Croup will not be able 10 collect
all amounts due according to the original 1erms of receivables. The amount of the provision is recognised m the Croup income statement.
The cost of unrecoverable trade receivables is recognised in the Croup income statement immediately.

Borrowings and horrowing costs

Borrowings are recogrised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless they are part of a fair value hedge accounting relationship. Initial differences between proceeds of fixed rate borrowings and the
redemption values are recognised in the Croup income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate
method. Borrowings that are subjec: to a fair value hedge accounting relationship are measured a: amortised cost plus or minus the fair
value attributable to the risk being hedged.

Interest accrueo on borrowings s included in accruals, under trade and other payables.

Incremental borrowing costs which are directly attributable to the issue of debt are capitalised and amortised over the expected life
of the borrowing using the effective interest rate method. All other borrowing costs are expensed n the year in which they are incurred.

Accounting for derivativa financial instruments and hedging activities

The Croup uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
social security chligations in respect of share-based payments. Derivative instruments utilised by the Croup in¢lude interest rate swaps.
currency swaps, forward currency contracts and equity swaps.

Up to 31 March 200%

Amounts payable or receivable in respect of interes? rate swaps are recognised as adjustments to net inlerest over the penigd of the
contratl. Forward currency contradls are accounted for as hegdges, with the instrument's impact on profit deferred until the underlying
transaction is recognised in the Group income statement. Financial instruments hedging the nsk on foreign currency assets are revalued
at the balance sheet date and the resulting gain or loss is offsel against that arising from the translation of the underlying assets into
sterhing and taken to reserves.

From 1 April 2095
Dernvatives are recogrised a: fair value on the date a contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their Tair value.

The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designatecd as a hedging instrument, and if sa,
the nature of the item being hedged. The Croup designates certain derivatives as:

- Fair value hedges - hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or 2 firm commitment; or
- Cash fow hedges - hedges of highly probable forecast transactions; or
- Net investment hedges - hedges of net investments in foreign operations.
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The Croup documents the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items at the hedge inception, as well as its risk
management objective and sirategy for underiaking various hedge transactions. The Croup aisp documents its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivaiives that are used in heoging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. The effectiveness tesung is performed at every reporting date throughout
the life of the hedge to confirm that the hedge remains mighly effective. Movements on the hedging reserve n equity are shown in the
Croup statement of recognised income and expense.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded v the Croup income statement,
offsetung any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the heoged risk. The ineffective portion of
a fair value hedge 1s recognised in financing fair value remeasurements in the Croup income statement.

Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and aualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in
equity. The gan or loss relating 1o the ineffective portion is recognised tmmediately in the Croup income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the Croup mcome statement in the period when the hedged ltem will affect the income
statement. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset of liability, the gains and
losses previously deferred in equity are wransferred from eguity and inciuded in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.
when a hedgmng instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain
or lass existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the
Croup income statement. When 2 forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gam or 1055 that was reported in
equity 15 immedately transferred 10 the Croup income statement,

Net investment hedges

Any gain or l0ss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation is
recogrised in equity; the gain of loss relating 1o the ineffecuve portion is recognised immediately in financing fair value remeasurements
in the Group income statement. Cains anc losses accumulated 1n equity are included in the Croup income statement when the foreign
optration is disposed of,

Non-hedging derivatives
Changes in the fair value of any derivative insttument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in
financing fair value remeasurements in the Group income statement.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when thew nsks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of host contracts, and the host contracts are not carried at fair value with unreahsed gains
or losses reported in the Croup income statement.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded 1n orgamsed aclive financial markets 1s based on quoted market prices at the close of
business on the balance sheet date, Up 1o 31 March 2005 the appropriate quoted market price for financial assets and liabilities is the
current mid-market price. As of 1 Apnif 2005, the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities ys the current offer price and for
financial assets the current bid price,

The fair value of financial instruments for which there is no quoted market price is determined by a variety of methods incarporating
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term debt. Other technigues. such as estimated discounted cash flows. are used to determine fair value for
the remaining financial instruments,

The fair value of intercst rate swaps 15 calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward foresgn
exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market rales at the balance sheet cate. The nominal value less estimated
credit adjustments of short-term trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate o their fair values. The fair value of
financial habilities 1s esumated by discounting the future contractual cash fiows at the current market interest rate that s available 10 the
Group for similar financial instruments.

Financial risk management

The Croup's activities expose 1t to a variety of financial risks: market risk including currency nisk and interest rate risk, credit risk and hauidity
nsk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of fnancial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Croup's financial performance. The Croup uses derivative financial instruments 10 hedge certain risk exposures.

The Croup's Treasury funcuon seeks 1o reduce or eliminate the Croup's exposure 10 foreign exchange, interest rate and other financial nsks. It
also ensures surplus funds are managed and cantrolled in a prudent manner which will protect capial sums invested and ensure adequale
short term liquidity, while maximising returns. [t does not operate as 2 prafit centre and transacts only in relation to underlying business
requirements. It aperates policies and procedures which are penodically reviewed and approved by the Board and are subject 10 regular
Croup Internal Audit reviews.

Market nisk

Foreign exchange risk

The Croup aperates internatonally and 13 exposed to foreign exchange risk, primarity with respect ta the US dollar and the Eurc. Foreign
exchange risk anises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in forewgn operations.
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For segmental reporting purposes. certain subsidiaries designate contracts with third parties and Croup Treasury as cash flow hedges,
External foreign exchange contracts are desipnated at Croup level as hedges of foreign exchange risk on specific assets, labilities or future
transactions on a gross bass.,

The Croup’s risk management policy is to hedge fully its known guantifiable foreign exchange transaction risks {1.e. committed payments
or receipts at the ume they become committed) which will arise as a resuft of foreign currency cash flows. The Croup's policy 15 10 Cover

up to 100% of any other foreign exchange transaction risks expected 1o arise as a result of uncertain, but probable, foreign currency cash
flows up to one year forward.

The Croup has a polity of hedging nighly probable foreign currency denominated transactions. This i3 achieved primanly by enzenng into
forward fareign exchange contracts. A number of these transactions are treated as cash flow heoges under 1AS 39,

The Croup has investments in fareign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure
arising from the net assets of the Croup's foreign operations is managed primanly through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign |
currencies and the use of forward exchange contracts.

Credit risk

In the case of deposits and derivative financial instruments, the Croup is exposed to 2 credit risk, which results from the non-performance
of contraciual agreements on the part of the contract party. This credit risk is minimised by a policy under which the CGroup only enters
into such contracts with banks and financial institutions with strong credit ratings, withun limits set for each organisauon. Dealing activity
15 closely controlled anc counter-party positions are monitored daily. The general credit risk on derivative financiai instruments utilised by
the Croup is therefore not considered to be significant, There is no concentranon of credit risk with respect to trade and other receivables,
as the Croup has a large number of customers, internationally dispersed, with no concentration on particular industries or markets. The
Croup has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before granting credit. The maximum credit
risk of financial assets is represented by the Carrying value net of any applicable provision for smpairment.

Liquidity nisk
The Group maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term committed facilities that are designated to ensure the Group has sufficient available
funds for aperattons and planned expansions,

Interest rate risk

The Croup has a policy of maintaining between 30% and 70% of net debt at rates that are fixed for more than one year, The Croup's interest
rate expasure is managed by the use of fixed and floating rate borrowings and by the use of interest rate swaps to adjust the balance of
fixed and floating rate habilities. The Croup also mixes the duration of its borrowings to smooth the impact of interest rate fluctuatons,

Inventaries

Inventories are siated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Croup uses a weighted average cost base for general retail goads.
Net realisable vatue is the esumated selling price n the ordinary course of business, tess applicable variable selling expenses. Costs of
inventories include the transfer from equity of any gains or fosses on qualifying cash flow hedges relaung to purchases.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not subject to amortisation are tested annually for impairment, Assets that are subject 1o amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognesed for the amount by which the asset's carrying amoun? exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount Is the higher
of an asses fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levets for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash anc cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Croup balance sheet.
For the purposes of the Croup cash flow staterment, cash and cash equivalents are as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets angd liabilives and their carrying
amounts In the consolidated financial statements. However, if the deferred taxation arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability 1n a transaction other than a bustness combination that at the ime of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
peofit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred taxation is calculated using tax rates that have been substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Deferrec taxation assets are recogmised to the extent that it 15 probable that future taxable proh: will be available against which the
temporary differences can be uulised,

Deferred taxation 1s proviged on temporary differences artsing on investments in subsidiaries and assogiates, except where the uirming of
the reversal of the temporary difference 13 controlled by the Croup and 1t 1s probable that the temparary difference will not reverse in the
foreseecable future.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when:
- The Croup has a present |legal or constructive abligation as a result of past events,;

- It is more likely than not that an outfliow of rescurces will be requrred 1o seitle the obhgation; and

~ The amount has been reliably estimated.
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Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where there are a number of simifar obligations, the hkelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obhigations may be small.

)f she effect of the tme value of maney ts materlal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the lability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time 1s recognised as an interest expense,

Where the Croup expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recogrised as 2 separate asse: when the reimbursement is certain.

Leases

Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially al the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capialised at the lease’s inception at the lower af the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the mimmum lease payments. Each fease payment is ailocated between the lizbility and finance charges so as to achitve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the Croup income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. Property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful lIfe of the asset and its lease term.

Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases,

Payments made under operating leases are charged 1o the Croup income statement on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.
incentives from lessors are recognised as a systematic reducuion of the charge over the period of the lease. Cuaranteed rental uplifts
payable are recognised on a straight line basis over the length of the lease.

Employea benefits

a} Pension gbligations

The CUS Defined Benefit Scheme and The Argos Defined Benefit Scheme

The pension asset/liabulity recognised in the Croup balance sheet 13 the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet
date less the falr value of plan assets, wogether with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains of lpsses and past service costs. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annuatly by independent actuaries using the projected unit method,

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yields
available at the asscssment date on high-quahity Corporate bands that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity consistent with the estimated average term of the related pension liability,

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recogrnised in the Group statement
of recognised ncome and expense. As allowed by IFRS 1, the cumulative deficit on defined benefit pension schemes (and similar benefits)
a1 transition date has been recognised in full as an adjustment 1o equity. Post-transition, the Group 15 applying the rules of the 2004
amendement to 1AS 19, recognising actuarial gains and losses immediately in the Croup statement of recognised income and expense.

Past service ¢osts are recognised immediately in income, unless the changes 10 the penston plan are conditional on the employees
remaiming in service for a specified period of time (the vesung period). In this case, the past service Costs are amorused on a straight line
basis over the vesting period.

The pension cost recognised in the infome siatement comprises the cost of benefits accrued plus interest on the aefined benefit obligation
less expected return on the plan assets over the year. Any amounts amortised over the year are also included in the pension Cost

The GUS Defined Cantribution Scheme
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Company in an independently administered fund. The pension cost
recogrused in the Graup micome Statement represents the contributions paid by the Croup to the fund over the year.

b) Other post-employment obligations - Post-rettrement healthcare costs

The Group operates schemes which provide post-retirement healthcare benefits to certain retired employees and their dependent relatives.
The principal schere refates to former employees in the UK and. under this scheme. the Croup has undertaken to meet the cost of post-
retirement healtncare nsurance for ali ehgible former emplayees and their dependents who retired prior to 1 April 1994,

The expected costs of these benefits is calculated using an accounting methodology similar 1o that for defined benefi: pension plans.
Actuanial gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments, and changes in actuanial assumptions, are recognised in the Croup
statement of recognised income and expense. These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified actuanes,
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38, Summary of the impact of IFRS on the comparative period

Detailed indicative disclosures in respect of the effect of IFRS on the reported position and results for the year ended 31 March 2005
were 1ssued an 14 june 2005, and are available on the Company website at www.gusple_cam/gus/invessors/ifrs, A summary of the
impact of IFRS on certain key reported figures is set out below. Since that date. Burberry and Wehkamp have been reclassified as
discontrnued operations (note 12), and some further adjustments have been made as a result of clearer IFRS interpretation becoming
available, The effect of these changes on the IFRS financial statements Is shown below.

Adjustments to comparative information Issued on 14 june 2005

As set out In note §, the results for the year ended 31 March 2005 have been adjusted as a result of clearer guidance now availanle with
regard 1o cash generaung units. It has been the policy of Argos Retail Group to use a geographic clustenng approach when looking at
whether store assets should be impaired, but emerging practice requires impairment reviews to be performed on a store by store basis.
As a result of this change, there is an impairment charge at Homebase of £36m, relating to the balance sheet at 31 March 2004 ¢n
transition to IFRS. There was no impairment charge in the year gnded 31 March 2005. The Homebase store impairment charge has been
determined on a store by store basis by companng the carrying value of property, plant and equipment with the net present value of
their future cash flows, The store impairment charge also triggers the creation of an onerous lease provision of £12m at 31 March 2004.
Additional onerous lease provisions of £2m were provided for in the year ended 31 March 2005.

The results for the year ended 31 March 2005 have also been adjusted as a result of clearer guidance now available on the accounting
trearment of ‘Cuaranteed Rental Uplifis’ payable gn certain leased premises. Such uplifts are now recognised an a steaight line basis over
the length of the lease. The effect has been 10 reduce the retained earnings reserve and net assets by £2m at 31 March 2005

(2004: £1m) and to reduce profit for the year to 31 March 2005 by £1m.

Other adjustments to the 2005 restaiement to IFRS published in June 2005 refate to acquisition intangibles and taxation. {8m of
acquisition intangibles have been reclassified from goodwill and these intangibles have now been fully amartised with £8m charged to
the Croup income statement in 2005, The tax adjustments relate to the recognition of taxation liabilities on earhier acquisrtions with no
material impact on the Croup mncome statement for 2005,

Group income statement
Reported sales are reduced due 1o the different presentation required under IFRS in respect of discontinued operations. This restatement
is set out in the segmental analysis at note 3, IFRS adjustments in respect of other key items within the Croup income statement are as

follows:
Year ended 31 March 2035

Operaung ®raf.| Profit 101
profit belote tax  the hinanclal
year
Motes im tm im
As reported under UX GAAP 680 693 423
IFRS reclassificatians:
Lewis Croup a (55} 79) -
Other discontinued operations a - 27 -
Tax expense of associates - () -1
Minority interests b - - 49 ;
(55} 53) 49
IFRS remeasurements:
Share based payments C n 7 (¥4
Catalogue costs d () (1) ()
Reversal of goocwiil amertisation [ 207 207 207
Amorusation of acquisition intangibles € 4) (4} (4
Interest earned on pension scheme assets f - 2 2
Deferred tax charges q - - {29)!
Other 3 6 8 |
198 203 176
As reported under IFRS on 14 jJune 2005 823 843 648
Further adjustments:
Recfassification of Burberry {note 12) {164) (169} -
Reclassification of Wehkamp (note |2} . (22) (23) -
Adjustment for depreciation on store impairmen: charges 8 8 8
Adjustment for onerous leases (2} (2) (2)
Adjustmen: for turther amortisation of acquisition intangibles 8) [§:)] {B)
Adjustment for guzranteed rental uplifts ) (1} {1}

As reported under IFRS, as restated 634 648 645
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Notes to the Croup financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2006

38. Summary of the impact of IFRS on the comparative period {(continued)

31 March 2005 1 Aprl, 2004

Group balance sheet Hotes im {m
Capital employed as reported under UK CAAP ' 3,070 2,97
Pension liabilities f (226) | (227
Catalogue costs d (15} (14);
Lease intentives h (34) (343'
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles L (4) -1
Reversal of UK CAAP goodwilt amorusation charged after transition e 207 -
Coodwill impairment on transition (3) (3)
Deferred taxation 9 186 210
Dividends i 203 191
Other - (5)
314 118
As reported under |FRS on 14 june 2005 3,384 3,089
Further adjustmants:
Adjustment for store impairment charges. net of depreciation 23 {31)
Adjustment for amortisation of acquisition intangibles 8) -
Adjustment for recognition of taxation liabilities (26} (26}
Adjustment for onerous lease (14) {12)
Adjustment for guaranteed rental uplifts (2} )
As reported under IFRS, as restated 3.3 3,019

Notes:

a
b

L]

-

(=]

>

Undes IFRS, the Croup Income statement down to proflt afier tax excludes the results of discontinued operations.

The concept of a group differs under IFRS and minotity interests are regarded as equity holders of the Group Thus rather than dedugting a minority
Inzerest in arriving at profit for the finarcial year, the profit fot the year s Instead attributed to the different types of equity nholdess.

IFRS requires that the falr value of all share-based payments Is charged to the Croup Income statement over the vesting period. Dependirg or the type of
scheme concerned, the racognition, or timirg. or both, of the ¢charges 1o profit may differ compared with UK CAAP

under UK CAAP, catalogue costs were expensed over tne penod in which tne catalogues generated revenue. These COsts are expensed a3 Incurred unger
IFRS.

Coodwill amortsation crarged under UK CAAP after the transttion date. | April 2004, 15 reversed in tne 1FRS financial starements. Coodwlil: will be subect
to an annyal Impaizment review. IFRS also requires that, on acqulsition, specific intanglible assets are identified and then amortised over tnelr useful
econamic lives. These include ltems suck as brand mames and customar lists, 1o which value is first attriputed at the time of acquisition.

Under 1 RS, the pension charge principally comprises a current service cost, charged to operating profit, and a financing ltem reported withir net rrterest.
under 1A5 19, CUS has adopted the optior that requires the full actuarial value of the surplus or deficlt of pension schemes and other post-retirement
benefits (o be shown an the balance sheet. Any movements in the penslon assels and Labliizies artsing from actuarial galns and losses are recognised
immeduately in full thro.gh the SORIE,

under UK GAAP, tax relief on goodwlll written oH to reserves in respect of pre-1998 US acquisitions was credited each yaar against the tax charge in the
Group Income statement. Under 1FRS, a deferred tan asset Is set up for this future relief a8 the time of the acquistuion; as tne tax rellef Is received, it ls
credited against thiy deferred tax asset. Tnis asget 1s the most significant tax related adjusting item on the transition trom UK CAAP (o IFRS.

Under UK GAAP. property fease incentives were recognised over the period to the first rent review. Under IFRS. inese are recognised over the full term of
the lease.

Under IFRS, a dividend that |s proposed bat not yet authorised i1s not t<luded as a habllity in tne financlal statements.
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39. Transitional adjustments on first time adoption of 1AS 32 and IAS 39

As permitted by IFRS 1 ‘First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’, the Croup ¢lected to defer implementatian of
IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation’ and IAS 38 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ until the
year commencing on | April 2005, with an appropriate adjustment recognised in opening eouity.

The principal impact of 1AS 32 and IAS 39 on the Group’s financial statements relates to the recognition of derivative financial
instruments at fair value. Financial assets and liakilities which arise on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are helc an
the balance sheet at fair value, with the changes in value reflected through the Croup income statemen:, The accounting treatment of
derivatives which qualify for hedge accounting depands on how they are designated, The different accounting treatments are explained
below:

Fair value hedges .

The Croup uses interest rate and cross currency swaps to hedge the exposure 10 interest rates and currency movements of its loans and
borrowings. Under UK CAAP, interest amounts payable or receivable in respect of derivative financial instruments held for hedging
ineresy rate and currency movements on loans and boerrowings were recognised as adjustments to net interest over the perioc of the
derivative contracl. Dervative financial instruments were not recagnised at fair value in the balance sheet.

Under 1AS 39, derivative financial instruments which meet the ‘fair value' hedging requirements are recognised in the balance sheet at fair
value, with corresponding fair value movements recognised in the Group income statement,

Cash flow hedges

The Group hedges the foreign currency exposure on nventory purchases. Under UK CAAP, foreign currency derivatives were held off
balance sheet. Under 1AS 39, derivauve financial instruments which qualify for cash flow hedging are recognised on the balance sheet at
fair value, with corresponding fair value changes deferred in eguity.

Net investment hedges

The gatns or losses on the translation of currency borrowings and foreign exchange contracts used to hedge the Croup's net tnvestments
in foreign entities are recognised in equity. Provided the hedging requirements of IAS 39 are met and the hedging relationship is fully
effeguive, this treatment does not differ from UK CAAPR,

The effect of adopting 1AS 32 and IAS 39 on the balance sheet as at 1 April 2005 is as follows:
31 March 2005 Transkional 1 Apdl 2005

ad)jastment
Im im im
Current assets
Other frnancial assets 31 36 67
31 36 67
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (1,600) (3} {1,603)
Other financial Liabilities - (5) 5)
{1,600} {8) (1.608)
Non-<current liabilities
Loans and borrowings {1.676) (1 {1,687}
Deferred tax habilities (164) (5) {169)
1,840) {16} (1.856)
Othar assets and liabilities 6,720 - 6,720

Total equity 3.3an 12 3,323
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Report of the auditors’ parent company financial statements

Independent auditors’ report 10 the members of GUS plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of CUS plc for the year ended 31 March 2006 which comprise the Parent
company balance sheet and the related notes. These parent campany financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies se1 put therein, We have also audited the information in the Report on directors’ remuneration and felated matters that is
described as having been audited.

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of CUS pic for the year ended 31 March 2006,
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibitities for preparing the Annual Report, the Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters and the parent
company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kmgdom Cenerally
Accepted Accounting Practice) are set gut in the Statement of directars’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the pareat company financial staterments and the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related
matters to be audited in accordance with refevant legal and reguiatory requirements and Internatignal Standards on Auditing (UK and
ireland). This report. inclugding the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as 2 body in accordance with
Secucn 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, In giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our pror consent in writing.

We repOn 10 you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent
company fingncial s:atements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to oe audited have been properly prepared in accorcance
with the Companies Act 1985. We report 10 you whether 1n our opinion the mformation given in the Directors' report 1s consistent with the
parent campany financial statements. The information given in the Directors' report includes that specific information presented in the
Business review that is cross referred from the Business review section of the Directors’ repont. We also report to you if, in qur opinion, the
company has not kept proper accounung records, if we have not recetved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions Is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether 1t is constsient with the audited parent company financial
statements. The other information comprises only the Croup financial highlights, the Directors’ report, the unaudited part of the Direciars’
remunerauion repart, the Chairman's statement, the Corporate governance statement, the Board of directors and the Business review. We
consider the imphications for our repart if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material nconsistencies with the parent
company financial siatements. Our responsibilities do not extend 10 any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

Wwe conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audil incluges examnation, on a test basis, of evidence relevan? 1o the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial
statements and the part of the Report on Directors’ remuneration and related matters to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether
the accounting polities ate appropriate to the company’s Circumstances, consistently appled and adeguately disclosed.

We planned an¢ performed our audit so as 1o obtan ali the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements and the pan of the Report
on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters 1o be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or errof. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent
company financial siatements and the part of the Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters to be audited,

Opinion
In our opimon:

- the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Cenerally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2006;

- the parent company financial statements and the par: of the Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters to be audited
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and

- the information given in the Directors’ report is consistent with the parent company financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester

23 May 2006



CUS Annval Report 2006 103

Parent company balance sheet

at 31 March 2006

2006 2008 200% 2008

(Restated)

(mote 1)
Notey im im im im

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 3 3 3
Investments in group undertakings 4 3,243 3,220
3,246 3,223

Current assets
Debtors - due within one year S m
- due after more than one year B 6,365 156 6,831

Current liabilities

Crecitors - amounts due within one year 6 {6,241} 16,418)
Net current assets 124 413
Total assets less current liabilitles 3,370 3,636
Creditors - amounts due after more than one year 7 (1.851) {1,451}
Retrement benefit obligations 14 {(12) @2
Net assets 1,507 2,164

Capital and reserves

Calied up share capital 10 256 254
Share premium account 10 97 69
Profit and loss account 11 1,154 1.841
Total equity shareholders’ funds 1,507 2,164

The financial statements on pages 103 to 113 were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 May 2006 and were signed on its behall
by:

John Peace Croup Chief Executive

David Tyler Croup Finance Director
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2006

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 1985, and were approved by the
Board on 23 May 2006. They have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention, and in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 and applhcable UX Generally Accepted Accaounting Principles (UK CAAP).

The Company's financial statements are included in the CUS plc consolhidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2006. As
permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company has not presented its own prafit and lass account. The Company has
also taken advantage of the exempuion from preparing a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS i (Revised 1996) 'Cash Flow
Statements’. The Company is also exempt under the terms of FRS B ‘Related Party Disclosures' from disclosing transactions with other
members of the CUS Croup.

The CUS plc consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 comaln financial instrument disclosures which comply
with FRS 25 ‘Financial Instrument: Disclosure and presentation’. Consequently, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in
FRS 25 not to present separate financial instrument disclosures for the Company.

The principal accounting policies, which have been applied on a consistent basis with previous years, unless otherwise stated, are noted
below.

New standards and prior year adjustments
The Company has applied the following standards for the first ime for the year ended 31 March 2006:

a) FRS 17 'Retirement Benefits';

b) FRS 20 'Share-based Payment’,

¢) FRS 21 ‘Events after the Balance Sheet Date’;

d) FRS 23 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’,
¢) FRS 25 ‘Financial Insiruments: Disclosure and Presentation’;
fi FRS 26 ‘Financial instruments: Measurements’;

g} FRS 28 ‘Corresponding Amounts’.

The adoption of these standards represents changes in several accounting policies and the comparative amounts have been restated
accordingly, excepl where the exemption 1o restate comparatives has been taken. The adoption of FRS 17, FRS 20 and FRS 21 has
resulted in a prior year adjustment with comparative figures restated (see below). FRS 23, FRS 25, FRS 26 and FRS 28 do not affect
comparatives and only apply to the current year and a cumulative adjustment of £7m for the implementation of FRS 26 has been
recognised in the opening profit and loss account reserve al 1 April 2005.

The Company has now adopted the full requirement of FRS 17 that requires the full actuarial valuation of the surpius or deficit on
pension schemes to be included on the balance sheet. This has resulted in an increase in shareholders’ funds of £2m at 31 March 2005
and an increase in shareholders’ funds of £7m at 31 March 2006 due to the recognition of actuarial gains and losses on the Company's
pension obligations, net of deferred taxation, There is no material effect on reported profit for either year.

FRS 20 requires that the fair value of all share-based payments be charged 1o profit and loss account over the vesting penod. This has
resulted n a reduction of £2m in the reported profit for the year ended 31 March 2005 and an increase of £2m in the reported proft for
the year ended 31 March 2006 as a result of ncreased staff costs. tn addition, under FRS 20, the issuance by the Company of share
\ncentives to employees of i1 subsidianies 15 now treated as additional capital contributions. Accordingly, the Company's investment in
group undertakings has been increased by £63m at 31 March 2005 and £86m at 31 March 2006 with a corresponding increase in
shareholders’ funds.

FRS 21 requires that dividends proposed, but not ye: authorised, are not recognised in the financial statements. This has given rise 1o (1))
an ncrease of £100m in reported profit for the year ended 31 March 2005 and an increase in reported profit of £2m for the year ended
31 March 2006 as dividend income from subsidiary underiakings is now only recognised when such dividends have been approved and
(i} an increase in shareholders’ funds at 31 March 2005 of £200m due 1o the additional write back of the dividend to the Company’s
shareholders proposed at 31 March 2005,

Analysis of Prior Year Adjusiments

RS |7 FRS 20 FRS 21 Total

im im im im

Adjustments to opening shareholders’ funds at 1 April 2004 9) 44 a8 123

Adjustments to profit and loss accoun: for the year ended 31 March 2005 - (2) bi2 110
Amounts recognisec in the profit and loss account reserve in the year ended

3! March 2005 1 21 - 32

Adjustments to opening shareholders' funds at 1 April 2005 2 63 200 265

Tangible fixed assets

Land 15 not depreciated. Freehold propeniies are depreciated over 50 years by equal annual instalments, Leasehold premises with
unexpired Icase terms of S0 years or less are depreciated by equal annual instalments over the remaining period of the lease. Plant,
vehicles and equipment are depreciated by equal annual Instalments over two to ten years according 1o the estimated life of the asset,
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases
Cross rental income receivable and payable in respect of operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the periods of the
leases.

Investments in Group undertakings
Investments 1n Croup undertakings are stated at cost less provision considered necessary for any impairment,

Impairment of fixed assets
Where there s an indication of impairment, fixed assels are subject to review for impairment in accordance with FRS 11 ‘Impairment of
Fixec Assets and Coodwill. Any impairment is recognised in the year in which 1t occurs,

Cash
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments.

Financial Instruments

Borrowings and borrowimg costs

Borrowings are recognised nitially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless they are part of a fair value hedge accounting relationship. Initial differences between proceeds and the redemption values are
recognised in the profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings that are
subgect to a fair value hedge accounting retationship are measured at amortised cost plus or minus the fair value atiributable 1o the risk
being hedged.

Interest accrued on borrowings is included in accruals, under creditors.

incremental borrowing costs which are directly attributable 1o the issue of debt are capitalised and amortised over the expected life of
the borrowing using the effective interest rate method. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in which they are incurred.

Derwvative financial instruments

The Company uses denvative financial instruments to manage its exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
social security obligations in respect of share-based payments. Dervative instruments utilised by the Company include interest rate
swaps, currency swaps. forward currency contracts and equity swaps.

Up to 31 March 2005

Amounts payable or receivable in respect of interest rate swaps are recognised as adjustments to net interest over the penoc of the
contract. Forward currency contracts are accounted for as hecges, with the instrument's impact on profit deferred until the underlying
transaction is recognised in the income statement. Financial mstruments hedging the risk on foreign currency assets are revalued at the
balance sheet date and the resulting gain or toss is offset against that arising from the translation of the underlying assets nto sterling
and taken to reserves,

From 1 April 2005

Derivatives are initially accounted and measured at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and subsequently
measured at fair value. The accounting treatment of derivatives classified as hedges depends on their designation, which occurs on the
cate that the derivative cantract is committed to. The Company designates derivatives as a hedge of the fair value of an asset or hability
(*fair value hedge’).

For an effective hedge of an expasure 10 changes in the fair vaiue, the hedged item is adjusted for changes in fair value attributable <o
the risk being hedged with the corresponding entry in the rncome statement. Cains or losses from re-measuring the corresponding
hedging instrumen: are recognised in the profit and foss account.

Changes in the fair value derivatives or other hedging instruments transacted as hedges of financial items, but for which hedge
accounting has not been appliec, are recognised in the profit and loss account as they arise,

tn order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Company documents in advance the relationship between the item bewng hedged and the
hedging instirument. The Company also documents and demonstrates an assessment of the relationship between the hedged item and
the hedging instrument, which shows that the hedge will be highly effective on an ongoing basis. The effectiveness testing 15 re-
performed at each perrod and to ensure that the hedge remains mighly effective.

Hedge accounting 1s ciscontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold. terminated, or exercised, or no longer quahfees for
hecge accounting.

Dervatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their nsks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of host contracts, and the host contracts are not carrieg at far value with unrealisec gamns
of losses reported wn the profit and toss account.
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

far the year ended 31 March 2006

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Daferrad taxation

Deferred taxation Is provided 1n respect of uming differences that have otriginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date and is
determined using the tax rates that are expected to apply when the timing differences reverse, Deferred tax assets are recogmised only
to the extent that they are expected 1o be recoverabie,

ESOP Trust and Treasury sharas

The CUS plc Employee Share Qwnership Plan Trust {'the Trust) 1s a separately administered trust. Liabilines of the Trust are guaranteed by
the Company and the assets of the Trust mainly comprise shares in the Company. The assets, habilities and expenses of the Trust are
included in the Company's financial statements as if they were the Company's own.

Own shares held by the Trust, together with treasury shares repurchased by the Company, are shown as a deduction from shareholders’
funds at cost.

Share-based paymants

The Croup has a number of equity-settled share-based compensation plans, The fair value of options and shares granted is recognised as
an expense afer taking into account the Croup’s best estimate of the number of awards expected 10 vest, The Croup revises the vesung
estimate a1 each balance sheet date, Non market peformance conditions are included in the vesting estimates. Expenses are incurred
over the vesuing period. Fair value 1s measured at the date of grant using whichever of the Black-Scholes, Monte Carlo model and closing
market price is most appropriate 10 the award. Market based performance conditions are included in the fair value measurement on grant
date and are not revised for actual performance.

The issuance by the Company of share incentives to employees of its subsidiaries represents additional capital contributions. An addituon
10 the Company's investment in group undertakings s reported with a corresponding increase in shareholders’ funds,

Pension costs

The Company operales the CUS Defined Beneflt Scheme, whose assets are held in an independently administered fund (desalls on
assumptions regarding the scheme are set out in note 25 to the Group fimancial statements). The hability recognised in the balance sheet
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligauon is caiculated annually by independent actuanies using the projected unit method.

The Company also operates the CUS Defined Contribution Scheme, whose assets are alsg held in an independently admimstered fund.
The cost of providing these benefits, comprises the amount of contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the year.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distributions are recognised in the Company’s financial statements tn the year in which the dividends are approved in general
meeting by the Company’s shareholders. Interim dividends are recogmised when paid.

2. Profit and loss account disclosuras

The Company profit on ordinary activities afier taxation was £6m (2005: £130m).

2006 2005
The aggregate employee costs for the Company were as follows: m tm
wages and salaries 7 7
Social securty costs 2 2
Share-based payments 7 10
Penision costs - defined benefit plans 4 p)
Total 20 21

The Company employed an average of 65 (2005: 70) employees, including executive directors, during the year.
Details of the remuneration of Directors are given in the auditable par of the Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters on

pages 45 to 48.

The Company audnt fee was £0.3m (2005: £0.3m). Non-audit services relating to tax advisory services and other advice amountec 10
£2.0m (2005: £1.2m) and £2.4m (2005: £0.1m) respectively,

During the year the Company paid £721m (2005: £281m) of equity dividends to shareholders, including £437m dividend in specie
relating 10 the demerger of Burberry Group plc. The directors propose 2 final dividend of 21.9p per share {totalling £187m) for the year
ended 31 March 2006. This dividend is not included as a liabikity in the current year financial statements as it has not peen approved.
For further details see note 13 1n the CUS Croup financiat statements.
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Freemold Short Plant, TYotal
prope el leatehold vehicigs &
. pragertiey Lquipment
3. Tangible fixed assets {m tm Em im
Cost
At 1 Aprll 2005 and 31 March 2006 1 1 2 4
Depreciatian
At 1 April 2005 and 31 March 2006 - - 1 1
Net Book Value at 31 March 2005 and 31 March 2006 1 1 1 3

There 15 no material drfference between the ne: book value of properties carried a1 valuation and therr historical cost equivalents.

4. Investments in group undertakings im
Cost

At t April 2005 as previously reported 3,162
Prior year adyustment - FRS 20 (note 1) 63
At 1 April 2005 as restated 3,225
Additons p
Transfer from subsidiary undertaking 440
Disposals {440)
At 31 March 2006 3,248

Impairment charges

At 1 April 2005 and 31 March 2006 5
Net Book Value at 31 March 2005 3,220
Net Book value at 31 March 2006 3,243

Addiuons in the year comprised the fair value of the share incentives issued to employees of subsidiary undentakings. During the year
the whole of the Croup's holdings of ordinary and preference shares in Burberry Croup pl¢ was transferred to the Company from a
subsidiary undertaking at the book value of i440m. Disposals comprise £437m in respect of the shares 1n Burberry Group plc distnbuted
to the Company's shareholders by way of dividend in specie and £3m in respect of Burberry shares sold externally after the demerger.

The Company’s principal subsidiary undertakings are listed in note 15.

Due within Dwe after Dur wilthin Due afrer

GNE Foar mora than one YEAr more Lhan
one yeaAr one year

(Restareg Note |}
2006 2006 2005 2005
5. Debtors {m m L (m
Amoaunts owed by subsichary undertakings 6,111 - 6.663 -
Taxalion recoverable 22 - - -
Deferred tax assets - 7 - 16
VAT recoverable 1 - 1 -
Deferred consideration receivable 140 - - 140
Prepayments and accrued income 4 - (B -
O:her financial assets (nore 9} 4 76 - -
6,282 83 6.675 156

The defarred consideration of £140m in respect of the disposal of the home shopping and Reality businesses was received by the
Company in Apnl 2006 from March UK Limited.,
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Notes to the parent company financial

for the year ended 31 March 2006

statements

2006 2005
{Retlated)
INoté 1)
6. Craditors - amounts due within one year m tm
Loans angd overdrafts (note 8) 218 EM)
Amounts owed to subsidiary undernakings 5,954 6.331s
Taxatlon - 20
Accruals 28 9
Other creditors 20 19
Other financial liabilitres (note 9) 21 -
6,241 6418
2006 2058
7. Creditars - amounts due after more than one year m {m
Loans {note 8) 1,843 1,451
Other financial liabilties (note 9) B -
1,851 1.451
2006 2008
8. Loans and overdrafts im im
Repayable wholly within five years:
€S68m 4.1 25% Eurchonds 2007 395 375
£350m 6.375% Eurcbonds 2009 3156 348
Bank loans 750 415
Overdrafts 218 -
1,719 1,138
Repayable after more than five years:
£350m 5.625% Eurabonds 2013 342 348
2,061 1,486
The amounts due 10 be repaid within five years are repayable as follows:
within one year 218 35
Between one and two years 775 -
getween two and five years 726 1,103
1,719 1,138
All borrowings of the Company are unsecured.
9, Dther financial assets and liabilities
Dua within Due after
anE yaar mora than
ONE YRAr
2006 2006
a) Other financial assets £m fm
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate Swaps 47
Currency swaps - 27
Equity swaps 2
Availanle-for-sale assets
Listeg investments - 6
Yotal other financial assets 4 76
b} Other financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps 2 -}
Foreign exchange (oniracts 19 -
Total other finxncial labilities 21 8

Disclosures in respect of the financial instruments of the Company are included within nate 27 to the Group financial statements.
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10. Share capital and share premium

Number Share Share

of shares capnal premium
Year ended 31 March 2006 m i tm
At 1 April 2005 1.017.2 254 69
Alloited under share option schemes 4.8 2 28
Share consolidation (142.8) - -
Balance at 31 March 2006 879.2 256 a7

Number Share Share

of shares cap et oSrem-gm
Year anded 31 March 2005 m {m {m
Al | April 2004 : 1,014.0 254 35
Allotted under share option schemes 6.7 1 34
Shares cancelied on purchase (3.9 (n -
Balance at 31 March 2005 1,017.2 254 69

Authorised share capital

At 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2005 the authorised share capital of the Company amounted to £313m. At 31 March 2006 this
comprised 1,075.000,000 Ordinary shares of 29 3/43p (2005: 1,250,000,000 Ordinary shares of 25p). At 31 March 2006, 879,240,912
Ordinaty shares of 29 3/43p each had been allotted. called up and fully paid. A1 31 March 2005, 1,01 7,236,451 Ordinary shares of 25p
each had been allotted. called up and fully paid. The change in the par value of the Company shares was in connection with a share
consohdation,

Share consolidation

At an Extraordinary Ceneral Meeting on 13 December 2005, the sharehclders of CUS plc approved a consolidauon of CUS shares,
replacing 1,023m Ordinary shares of 25p each with 880m Ordinary shares of 29 3/43p each. The share conschidation was designed 1o
keep the GUS share price at approximately the same level, subject to normal market movements, before and after the demerger of the
Group's remaining interest in Burberry Group plc. For every 1,000 Ordinary shares of 25p each held immediately prior to the demerger,
shareholders received 305 Ordinary shares of 0.05p each n Burberry Group pic and 860 Ordinary shares of 29 3/43p each m CUS plc.

Treatury Fratit  Touwsl prefil

and £SOP and loss and loss

shares acccunt account

reservg

11. Resarves im im im
At 1 April 2005 as previously siated (248) 1.824 1,576
Prior year adjustment - FRS 17 - 2 2
Prigr year adjustment - FRS 20 - 63 &3
Prior year adjustment - FRS 21 - 200 200
At 1 April 2005 as restated {248) 2,089 1,841
Cumulative adjustment for the implementation of FRS 26 - 7 7
Profit for the financial year - 3 6
Equity dividends paid during the year - (284) (284)
Dividend in specie relating 10 the demerger of Burberry Croup plc - 4317 (437)
Actuarial gan in respect of defined benefit pension schemes - [ a
Credit in respect of share incentive schemes - 28 28
Purchase of ESOP shares (16} - {16)
Tax credit 1n respect of 1iems taken to equity - 1 1
At 31 March 2006 (264) 1.418 1,154

Treasury and ESOP shares represent the cost of shares \n CUS plc purchased by the CUS plc ESOP Trust ('the Trust’) to satsfy the Croup’s
oblhigations under its share incentive plans and shares purchased in share buy-backs. During the year the Trust purchased 4,082,187
(2005: 2.600,000) shares at a cost of £36m (2005: £22m). In the year endec 31 March 2005 a further 22,140,000 shares were purchased
at a cost of £200m by way of share buy-backs. Of these 3,500,000 shares with a cost of £30m were cancelied.
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12. Commitmaents

(a) Capital commitments
There are no significant capital commitments relating to the Company,

(b) Operating lease commitments
Annual commitments for land and buildings, where the commitment expires in more than five years, amounted to £1m (2005: £1m).

13. Share options and awards

The Company has not repeated the disclasures requtred by FRS 20 ‘Share-based Payment’, as these are already inctuded in note 31 of the
Croup financial statements.

Details of the unexercised options are shown below and include those options granted to directors of the Company. Further details of
options granted to directors of the Company are cantained in the Repart on directors’ remuneration and related matters on pages 46
and 47.

2006 2008

() Cpuions and awards in respect of the Ordinary shares of the Company m m
The CUS plc Perfarmance Share Plan 2.1 1.9
The CUS plc Co-Investment Plan 6.0 4.6
The 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes 13.7 13.5
The North America Stock Qpuon Pian 5.4 5.4
The CUS plc Savings Related Share Dption Scheme 9.1 3.8
Other share schemes 0.t 0.1
36.4 343

(i) Awards under the GUS plc Performance Share Plan

During the year ended 31 March 2006, awards were made under this plan m respect of 767,507 (2005: 752,358} Ordinary shares in
the Company. At 31 March 2006 awards in respect of 2,111,640 (2005: 1,939,013} of Ordinary shares remained outstanding and, as
indicated in note 11, shares have been purchased by the CUS plc ESOP Trust to meet obligations under this plan. These awards include
those granted to directors, further details of which are contained in the Repon on directors’ remuneration ang related matters on

page 47.

Duting the year ended 31 March 2008, 569,827 (2005: 427,726) Ordinary shares were transferred from the Trust 1o beneficianes of the
GUS plc Performance Share Plan,

{iii} Awards under the GUS plc Co-Investment Plan

During the year ended 31 March 2006, awards were made under this plan n respect of 1,654,305 (2005: 2.321,962) Ordinary shares
in the Company. At 31 March 2006 awards in respect of 6,050,860 (2005 4.556,040) Ordinary shares remained outstanding and. as
indicated in note 11, shares have been purchased by the CUS plc ESOP Trus: 1o meet obligations under this plan. These awards include
those granted to directors, further details of which are contained 1 the Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters on

page 48.

During the year endeo 31 March 2006, 910,880 (2005: 297.821) Ordinary shares were transferred from the Trust to beneficiaries of
the CUS plc Co-Investment Plan.

{iv) Opuons under the 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes
Unexercised options granted under these schemes wn respect of Ordinary shares in the Company are as follows:

Numbar Number
of shares of shares
1006 2005 Exerciie price Period of exertisr

182,625 315,029 375.7p from 07.04,2003 10 06.04.2010
1,016,274 1,832,707 612.7p From 11.06.2004 to 10.06.2011
130,707 179,961 635.0p From 17.12.2004 to 16.12.2011
1,106,158 2,844,460 653.0p From 06.06.2005 tc 05.06.2012
181,226 747,744 554.0p From 23.12.2005 to 22.32.2012
3,234,502 3,751,549 675.5p From 19.06.2006 to 18.06.2013
72,481 88,333 757.0p From 02.12.2006 10 01.12.2013
3,245,338 3,562,323 809.2p From 01.06.2007 to 31.05.2014
146,506 173,610 B67.0p From 24.11.2007 t0 23.11.2014
3,883,511 - 858.5p from 31.05.2008 10 30.05.2015
526,756 - 8B1.0p From 22.11,2008 10 21.11.2015

13,726,084 13,495,716

During the year ended 31 March 2006, 3.603.506 (2005: 4,005.563) Ordinary shares were 1ssued following the exercise of such
share options.



CUS Annual Report 2006 111

13. Share options and awards (continued)

{v) Options under the Narth Amernica Stock Option Plan
Unexercised aptions granted under the scheme in respect of Ordinary shares in the Company are as follows:

Numbar Number
of shares of shares
2006 2005 Exertne price Period of exercise

27,057 200,407 381.3p From 14.06.2001 to 13.06.2006
6,983 6.983 $26.0p From 06.12.2001 to 0%.12,2006
421,964 650,813 612.7p From 11.06.2002 te 10.06.2007
854,905 1,436,910 653.0p From 06.06.2003 to 05.06.2008
42,206 57,244 554.0p From 23.12.2003 tc 22.12.2008
1,292,235 1,535,436 675.5p From 19.06.2004 to 18.06.2009
28,054 28,054 757.0p From 02.§2.2004 t0 01.12.2009
1,270,788 1,458,033 809.2p From 01.06.2005 to 3).05.2010
23,689 23,689 867.0p From 24.11.2005 to 23.11.2010
1,353,910 - 858.5p From 31.05.2006 to 30.05.2011
39,835 - 881.0p From 22.11.2006 to 21.11.2011

5,361,626 5.397.569

All such options are to be sausfied by the transfer of already issued Ordinary shares and shares have been purchased for this purpose by
the GUS plc ESOP Trust. During the year ended 31 March 2006, 1,221,312 (2005: 1,637,297) Ordinary shares were transferred to
beneficianes following the exercise of such share options.

{vi) Options under savings related share option schemes
Unexercised options granted under the scheme in respect of Ordinary shares in the Company are as follows:

Number Number
of shares of thares
2006 2005 Exercae price Period ol exercise

- 1,669 3B4.0p From 01.05.2004 to 31.10.2004
2,119,222 2,299,567 384.0p From 01.05.2006 to 31.10.2006
1,090 900.375 523.0p From 01.09.2005 to 28.02.2006
617,146 715,718 523.0p From 01.09.2007 to 29.02.2008
1,247,888 1,428,403 508.0p From 01.09.2006 to 28.02.2007
746,151 842.061 S08.0p From 01.09.2008 to 28.02.2009
1,739,952 2.067.393 648.0p from 01.09.2007 to 29.02.2008
520,873 593.254 648.0p From 01.09.2009 to 28.02.2010
1,531,485 - 687.0p From 01.09.2008 to 29.02.2009
588,648 - 687.0p From 01.09.2010 10 28.02.2011

9,112,455 B.848.440

During the year ended 31 March 2006, 1,114,705 (2005: 2,602,142) Ordinary shares were 1ssued following the exercise of such share
optons,

In additron 152,148 shares (2005' 100.356) were 133ued 1n connection with savings based share schemes in France and the LUnited
States, Savings of £710,000 (2005: £529.000) were held in these schemes giving 3 night to acquire 84,031 (2005: 71,113) Ordinary
shares in the Company. .

14, Pensions and other post-retirement banefits

The Company’s employees participate in the CUS Defined Benefit and the GUS Defined Contribution pension schemes, In addihion the
Company provides post-retirement healthcare insurance benefits to certain former employees. The net hability in respect of the defined
benefit scheme and the provision of post-retirement healthcare insurance benefits is recognised in the Company’s batance sheetn
accorcance with the requirements of FRS 17, There are no material pension €osts or contributions payable in respect of the Company's
participaiion in the CUS Defined Contribution scheme,
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14. Pensions and other post-retirement banefits (continued)

() The movements during the year in the net liability recognised in the Company’s balance sheet were as follows: 2006 2605
(L] im

At 1 April 21 60
Total amounts recogmised in the Company’s profit and loss account - as disclosed betow 1 3
Actuanial gain recognised in equily (8) e
Contributions paid (2) (20)
At 31 March 12 21
{in The amounts recogmsed in the Company's balance sheet are determined as follows: 2008 2095
im im

Fair value of schemes’ assets 347 265
Present value of funded schemes’ liabilities (332) (267}
Surplus/(deficit) tn the funded schemes 15 2)
Present value of unfunded pension arrangements (15) [4R8)]
Llability for post-retirement healthcare {12) 9
Retiremant benefit liability recognised in the Company balance sheet {12} 21}

The retirement benefit liability is shown before deferred tax. The associatec deferred tax asset of £4m (2005: £6m) s included within

debtors {note 5).

(iii) The amounts recogrised i the Company’s profit and loss account were as follows: 2006 2005
im n
Current service Cost . 4 2
Interest on schemes’ liabilities 17 17
Expected return on schemes’ assels (20) 18
Sertlement gain in respect of unfunded liabilities of home shopping and Reality businesses - (4)
Total charge/(credit) to Company profit and loss account 1 {3
(iv) The amount recognised in equity:
2006 2003
Im im
(Cain)/loss on assets 4a1) 15
Experience toss/(gain) on habilities 2 (1)
Loss on change of assumptions n 20
Total gain racognised in equity (8) {16}
(v) The history of expenence gains/(losses) on the Company’s defined benefit scheme is as follows:
2008 2003
Difference between the actual and expected return on schemes’ assets:
Amount (£m) {41) 15
Percentage of schemes' assets 11.8% 5.7%
Experience losses/(gains) on schemes’ lizbilities:
Amount ({m) 2 {51}
Percentage of the present vatue of schemes’ liabilities 0.5% 17.8%
Total amount recognised in equity:
Amount (fm) (8) (16)
Percentage of the present value of schemes’ liabilities 2.2% 5.6%
(vi) Analysis of the movement in the deficit in the scheme duning the year:
2006 2005
im im
Deficit at beginning of year 21) (60}
Coniributions paid by the Company 2 20
Current service cost {4) (2)
Cain from settltement - 4
Other finance income 3 1
Actuarial gam 8 16
Deficit at end of year 12y zn

(vii) The principal actuarial assumptions used are shown in note 25 10 the Croup financial statements.
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The principal subsidiary and associate undertakings at 31 March 2006, all of which are incluged in the Croup financial statements, are

listed below.

Particulars of subsidiary undertakings and other stgnificant holdings as required by the Companies Act 1985 will be annexec 10 the next

Annual Return of CUS plc.

Prreriage

Country of of ord.nary
At 31 March 2006 tncorporation shares he!c
Argos Retall Group
Argos Limited Creat Britain 100%
Homehase Limited Creat Britain 100%
ARG Card Services Limited Creat Britain 100%
ARC Personal Loans Limned Creat Britain 100%
ARG Insurance Services Limited Creat Britain 100%
Argos Distnbutors {Ireland) Limited Republic of Ireland 100%
Hampden Croup Limited Republic of treland 100%
Homebase House and Garden Centre Limited Repubhic of treland 100%
Argos Retail Croup (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 100%
ARC Procurement Consultancy (Shanghal} Limited China 100%
Experian
Experian Limited Creat Britain 1 Q0%
ClarityBlue Limited Great Britain 100%
QAS Limited Creat Britain 100%
Experian Holding A/S Denrark 100%
Experian A/S Denmark 100%
Experian Holding France S.A. France 100%
Creditinform AS Norway 100%
Consumerinfo.com USA 100%
PriceCrabber.com USA 100%
LowerMyBills.com USA 100%
Expenan Information Solutions tnc. USA 100%
Experian Services Corporauon USA 100%
Experian Marketing Solutions Inc. UsA 1 00%
Associate
First American Real Estate Solutions LLC USA 20%

None of the above undertakings are directly held by GUS plc.
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Group five year summary

LX CAA® UK CAAP UK CAAP UK GAAP IFRS 1FRS
2002 2003 2004 2005 2003 2006
Profit by division {m im im im {m £m
Continuing operations:
Argos Retail Croup
Argos 212 241 298 309 304 P41
Homebase - 2 102 92 96 52
Financial Services {18) (§3) {5) - - 6
1494 230 395 aMm 400 349
Experian 224 256 282 318 317 417
Central activities 7 (16) 20) 24) 22) (20)
411 470 657 695 695 746
Discontinued operations:
Argos Retail Croup {Home Shopping. Reality and Wehkamp} 61 55 21 20 23 20
Burberry 90 117 141 166 161 94
Lewis Group 31 32 44 55 55 s
Property 25 26 '8 - - -
207 230 224 241 239 119
EBIT 618 700 381 936 934 865
Net interest 67) (58) (54) {26) (24) (36)
Benchmark profit 551 642 827 910 910 829
Include: amortisation of acquisition intangibles (UK GAAP. goodwill) (99) n43) (193) (207 an (37)
Include: exceptional items relating 1o conunuing operations (72) (90) 53 (7 7 (4)
Include: store impairment charges - - - - - (13)
Include: financing fair value remeasurements - - - - - (3)
Include: tax expense on conunuing operations’ share of profits
of associates - - - () () (1)
Exclude: EBIT of discontnued operations (207} (230) (224) (241) {239) {119)
Exclude; net interest of discantinued operations - - 2) 4) 4) (¥3]
Profit before tax 173 179 461 450 648 649
Croup tax expense on continuing operations {104) (93) {12%) (144) (176) (165)
profit after tax from continuing operations 69 86 336 306 472 484
Profit far the financal year from discontinued operations 189 182 164 166 173 11
profit for the financial year 258 268 500 472 645 595
Attributable to
Equity shareholders in the parent company 257 251 473 423 556 569
Minority interests ] 17 27 49 a9 26
Profit for the financial year 258 268 500 472 645 505
Balance sheet
Tangible and intangible fixec assets (other than goodwilli 1,039 1,221 1,197 1,327 1,354 1,491
Fixed assel investments 278 295 103 114 118 150
working capital 1,416 1,053 765 978 6B4 366
Trading assets 2,733 2.56%9 2,065 2,419 2,156 2,007
Goodwill 1,422 2,436 2,338 2,333 2,485 3,068
Tax (UK CAAP: and dividends) (257) {286) (363) (353) [4}] (44)
Transaction consideration (22) {37 131 98 o8 75
Net borrowings (including non-recourse borrowings) (1,485) (2.,086) {1,200} (1.427) (1,427 (1,974)
Nes: assets 2,391 2.596 2,971 3,070 3.311 3,132
Earnings and dividends 2002 2003 2004 2005 2025 2006
Earnings per share 25.7p 25.1p 47.4p 42.3p 59.6p 60.2p
Eenchmark earnings per share 4i.7p 47.8p 60.7p 63.8p 62.0p 62.3p
Dividend per share 21.7p 23.3p 27.0p 29.5p 29.5p 31.5p
Dhivigend cover 1.92 2.05 2.25 2.16 2.10 1.98
interest cover 9.3 12.0 16.3 33.7 39.0 24.0

Years ended 31 March 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005 are shown under UK CAAF, presented in an IFRS format, The nature and magnitude of
the adjustments required 1o show this information under IFRS are expected to be similar to those disclosed in note 38 to the Croup
financial statements.
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Shareholder Information

Ordinary sharsholders
There were 45,149 holders of Ordinary sharas at 31 March 2006 and their holdings can be analysed as follows:

Number of Parcentage Number of Sercentage of
tharehoiders of toral number Ordinary thares Qrdunary sharet

of shareholders ‘0003
Qver 1,000,000 150 0.3 627,150 72.7
100,001 - 1,000,000 431 1.0 146,703 17.0
10,001 -~ 100.000 1,192 2.7 36,661 4.2
5.001 - 10,000 1,508 3.3 10,243 1.2
2,001 - 5.000 5.645 12.5 16,973 2.0
} - 2,000 36,222 80.2 25,481 2.9
45,149 100.0 863,211 100.0

Shareholders are further analysed as follows:

Humper of Percentage Number of Percentage of
shareholders of total numpaer Ordinary shares Qranaty shares

ol thareholders 009
Corporates 9.661 21.4 809,517 93.8
Individuals 35.488 78.6 53,694 6.2
45,149 t100.0 863,211 100.0

Registrar

Enquiries concerning holdings of the Company's shares and notification of the holder's change of address should be referred to

Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA (telephone: 0870 600 3987). A text phone facility for those with
hearing difficulties is available by telephoning 0870 600 3950,

Electronic communications

Shareholders can arrange to receive future GUS annual and interim reports electronically and to submit voting instructions online at
shareholder meetings by registering at www.shareview.co.uk/gusplc. This service is provided by Lloyds TS8 Registrars and gives access
to a comprehensive range of shareholder mformation, inciuding dividend payment details.

GUS website
A full range of investor relations infarmation on GUS is avallable at www.gusplc.com, This includes webcasts of results presentations
given to analysts and fund managers together with the shdes accompanying those presentations,

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The CUS Dividend Reinvestment Plan ('DRIP’) enables shareholders to use their cash dividends to purchase CUS shares. Shareholders
who wish to participate in the DRIP for the first time, in respect of the final dividend to be paid on 4 August 2006, should return a
compleied and signed DRIP mandate form to be received by the Registrar, by no later than 1 4 July 2006. For turther de:iails please
contact Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex, BN99 6DA (telephone: 0870 241 3018).

Share price information
The latest CUS share price is available on the CUS website (www.gusplc.com) and also on the Financial Times Cityline Service {telephone:
0906 843 2740 - calis charged a1 60p per minute)).

Share dealing facility
Existing or potential investors can buy or sell LUS shares using a postal dealing service provided by JPMorgan Cazenove Limited,
20 Moorgate, Loncon EC2R BDA (telephone: 020 7155 5155).

Financial calendar and Annual General Meeting arrangements

Fina} dividend record date ¥ luly 2000
First quarter trading update 12 July 2006
Annual Ceneral Meeting 19 july 2006
Frnal drvidend te be paid 4 August 2006

The Annual General Meeting will be held at the Radisson SAS Portman Hotel, 22 Portman Street, London WiH 7BC and begms a:
11.30am on Wednesday, 19 july 2006.

Following the announcement of the demerger of the remarning two busmesses of CUS, further dates refating to the financial calendar
and Annual General Meeting arrangements in respect of the 2007 financial year will be posted on the CUS website.

Registered office
CUS plt. One Stanhope Cate, London, WIK 1AF
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